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County Council of Beaufort County
Multi-Government Center ¢ 100 Ribauat Road
Post Office Drawer 1228
BReaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228
Telephone (843) 470-2800 FAX (843) 470-2751

To the Chairman, Members of Beaufort County Council,
And Citizens of Beaufort County
Beaufort, South Carolina

Presented herein is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Beaufort County, South
Carolina for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. This report has been prepared by the County’s Finance
Department, and the responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the County. We believe the data, as
presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth
the financial position and resuits of operations of the County as measured by the financial activity of its
varnious funds and account groups; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the
maximum understanding of the County’s financial affairs are included.

The CAFR is organized into four sections:
1. The Introductory Section consists of this letter of transmittal.

2. The Financial Section includes the Independent Auditor's Report, management's discussion and
analysis, the basic financial statements and notes that provide a combined overview of the entire
governmental unit. This section also contains detailed individual and combining fund schedules.
Certain selected supplemental information, that management feels is useful and informative to
various report users, has also been included within this section.

3 The Single Audit Section contains information required by the Single Audit Act of 1984, and the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, including the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards, auditor's reports related to the single audit requirements, and single audit
findings, recommendations, and questioned costs.

4, The Statistical Section presents selected financial, economic and demographic trend data,
generally over the past ten years.



GENERAL INFORMATION
Beaufort County, which was formed in 1785, operates under the Council/Administrator form of
government with Council members elected for four-year terms from each of eleven single-member
districts. This report includes all funds and account groups of Beaufort County that are controlled by this
governing body, and are considered to be the “reporting entity” known as Beaufort County. The services
provided by this reporting entity, and therefore reflected in this financial repon, include, but are not limited
to: General Governmental (general administrative services, tax assessment and collection, courts and
criminal justice administration, economic development); Public Safety (law enforcement, detention center,
emergency medical services, emergency management, building codes enforcement); Public Works
(roads and drainage, engineering, solid waste); Public Health (animal control, mosquito control, alcohol
and drug programs, disabilities and special needs programs, various subsidies); Public Welfare (veterans
services, social services, various subsidies); and Culture and Recreation (library, parks and leisure

services).

In light of NCGA Statement 3, Defining the Governmental Reporting Entity, the County has excluded the
school district, the various public service districts, the fire districts, and the municipalities located within its
boundaries as County Council does not exercise oversight responsibility, and accordingly each entity has
sufficient discretion in the management of its own affairs. The County Treasurer does collect property
taxes and other forms of revenue on behalf of these other political entities. The results of the fiduciary
responsibility are reported on the combined financial statements as Agency Funds.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK
Beaufort County is located in the southeastern corner of the State of South Carolina, known as the
“Lowcountry.” With a land area of approximately 637 square miles, it is bordered to the South and east by
the Atlantic Ocean, to the west by Jasper County, and to the north by Hampton and Colleton Counties.
Beaufort County stretches nearly 30 miles along the Atlantic Ocean and includes 64 major islands and
hundreds of small islands.

The County is one of the fastest growing areas in South Carolina, with a population of 120,937 in 2000,
up form 86,425 in 1990. The County is a center for tourism, retirement and the associated services, and
the military in South Carolina. The County has a balanced and very stable economy, created by a
diversity of public and private employers, with the unemployment rate well below the national average,
the statewide average and that of the neighboring counties. The local tax base has grown an average of
approximately 4% per year over the last five years (discounting the reassessment year), and this trend is
expected to continue.

In addition to the established resort community of Hilton Head island, there are several major
developments underway in southermn Beaufort County. These developments include Sun City Hilton
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Head, with more than 3,500 residents and 15,000 expected at build-out; Spring Island, Callawassie
Island, Colleton River Plantation, Belfair, and Westbury park. As expected, these developments have
sparked an increase in commercial construction along the Highway 278 corridor, including a Home Depot,
a Wal-Mart Superstore, an expanded Factory Outlet Mall, a Target department store, and several major
supermarkets.

Likewise, in northem Beaufort County, communities continue to develop at Dataw Island, Lady’s Island,
Cat Island, Bray’s Island, Habersham and throughout the city of Beaufort, as well as the Town of Port
Royal.

Beaufort County is also the location for three major military installations, the U.S. Marine Corps Recruit
Depot located at Parris Island, the Marine Corps Air Station-Beaufort, and the Beaufort Naval Hospital.
These locations have benefited by the Department of Defense closing certain other military bases in the
nation. The Marine Corps Air Station has received two transferred Navy F-18 squadrons in 2000.

MAJOR INITITATIVES
Our number one goal is to make sure that Beaufort County remains financially sound and that we
maintain a respectable contingency account to take care of the true emergencies that do arise from time
to time; and to provide for a sufficient fund balance to enable our cash flow to carry us through those
months prior to the billing and collection of property tax revenues. We have taken a systematic,
businesslike approach to the running of Beaufort County. Additionally, we want to preserve our current
“AA” bond rating.

In December 1997, the County adopted a Comprehensive Plan for Beaufort County. A portion of this
plan is a comprehensive land use study which proposes various “preservation areas and greenways.” As
a result, the County taxpayers approved a $40,000,000 bond referendum for the purchase of rural and
critical lands. During Aprii 2001, the County issued the first bonds under this referendum for
$10,000,000, and during June 2003, the County issued bonds for an additional $10,000,000 under this
referendum. The last $20,000,000 of bonds authorized by this referendum were issued during November
2004.

In June 2001, the County established a Stormwater Utility fund to address the various stormwater runoff
and drainage problems that exist within the County. This program is an enterprise fund and is financed
through user fee charges. These fees totaled $4,207,825 during fiscal year 2005 and the expenditures
totaled $4,212,250.

In November 1999, the County established a tax increment financing district in Bluffton to fund various
road improvements. This district was amended during June 2000 to include property within the Town of
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Bluffton and to include additional funding for road improvements, a new community park and a new
library. The County had expenditures of $1,016,724 for these projects during fiscal year 2005.

In December 2001, the County established a tax increment financing district to fund construction for the
University of South Carolina Beaufort four year campus in the New River area of Beaufort County. This
New River TIF will also fund construction for the Technical College of the Lowcountry. The County
borrowed $40,000,000 during December 2002 to fund these projects. The County had expenditures of
$21,474,428 for these projects during fiscal year 2005.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The management of Beaufort County is responsible for developing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to
ensure that adequate accounting data are complied to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The County’s accounting system has given
consideration to the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss
from unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial
statements and maintaining accountability for assets. This concept of reasonable assurance recognizes
that the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that the evaluation of costs
and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. Accordingly, management believes that
the County’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance

of proper recording of financial transactions.

SINGLE AUDIT
As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, Beaufort County also is respensible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. This intemal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by
management and the County’s Finance Staff.

As a part of Beaufort County’s single audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the intemnal
control structure, including that portion related to the expenditure of federal awards, as well as to
determine that the County has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The results of the County’s
single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, provided no instance of material weaknesses in the
internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws and regulations. The auditor's reports
are found in the Single Audit Section of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.



BUDGETARY CONTROLS

In addition to the aforementioned internal controls, the County maintains budgetary controls. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the
annual appropriated budget approved by the County’s governing body. Activities of the general fund,
certain special revenue funds, the debt service fund and certain capital project funds are included in the
annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures
cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established by function and activity within an individual
fund. The County also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing
budgetary control. Encumbered amounts outstanding at year end are reported in govemmental fund
types as reservations of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report, the County continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS
Revenues of all govemmental fund types (general fund, special revenues funds, debt service fund, and
capital projects funds) totaled $118,622,368 in fiscal year 2005, an increase of 23.1% over fiscal year
2004. General property taxes accounted for 55.2% of the total revenues in fiscal year 2005, as compared
to 56.5% in fiscal year 2004. The amount of revenues from various sources and the increase (decrease)
over last year are shown in the following schedule:

BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
REVENUES BY SOURCE
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Percent Increase
Amount of Total (Decrease)
Property Taxes $ 65,483,466 55.2% $ 11,029,278
Licenses and Permits 8,462,749 7.1% 2,543,602
Intergovernmental 22,138,156 18.7% 1,573,860
Charges of Services 15,458,622 13.0% 2,961,427
Fines and Forfeitures 1,111,798 9% (105,273)
Interest 1,627,662 1.4% 627,208
Miscellaneous 4,339,915 3.7% 3,691,921
Totals $118,622,368 _100.0% $_22,322,023



Expenditures by all governmental fund types totaled $139,516,042 in fiscal year 2005. The decrease of
$13,054,143 from fiscal year 2004 a result of decreased debt service expenditures due to the payment on
bond anticipation notes during the prior fiscat year and decreased capital project expenditures from bonds
issued in prior years. The amount of expenditures from various sources and the increase {decrease) over
last year are shown in the following schedule:

BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Percent Increase
Amount of Total (Decrease)
General Government $ 24,944,004 17.8% $ 2,641,222
Public Safety 32,348,721 23.2% 2,017,581
Public Works 17,833,904 12.8% 357,735
Public Health 7,131,096 5.1% 413,125
Public Welfare 948,468 % (106,237)
Cultural and Recreation 7,082,111 51% 545,841
Debt Service 12,385,535 8.9% (13,564,370)
Capital Projects 36,842,203 26.4% (5,359,040)
Totals $139,516,042 —100.0% $(13,054,143)

GENERAL FUND BALANCE
The fund balance of the general fund was $11,795,350 as of June 30, 2005. However, this included
$974,7410f funds reserved for specific items. This leaves an undesignated, unreserved fund balance of
$10,820,609. Therefore, assuming 260 working days per year, divided into the total general fund
expenditures and transfers of $63,742,431, this undesignated, unreserved fund balance represents the
equivalent of 44.1 working days of expenditures.

CASH MANAGEMENT
The management of cash and investments is the sole responsibility of the County Treasurer. Cash was
held in demand deposits, certificates of deposit, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, repurchase agreements,
or other interest bearing accounts. The County’s investment policy is {o minimize credit and market risks
while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio. All investments are collateralized by instruments
issued by or guaranteed by the U. S. Government. All collateral was held either by the County, its agent,
or the trust department of a financial institution.



ENTERPRISE OPERATIONS
Beaufort County operates four separate activities as enterprise funds: Beaufort County Garage, Beaufort
County Stormwater Utility, L.ady's Island Airport, and Hilton Head Island Airport.

The Beaufort County Garage just completed its eleventh year of operations as an enterprise fund. This
facility repairs and maintains all County-owned vehicles, as well as, vehicles owned by various other state
and local govemmental units. As of January 1, 1995, the repairs and maintenance cperations of the
County garage were privatized through a contract with First Vehicle Services (this is the successor
company to Managed Logistics Systems, which was party to the first contract). This contract provides for
the complete operation of the garage under a fee for service basis. The Garage also provides bulk
purchase of fuel for use in these vehicles and County-owned heavy equipment. Revenues are generated
from the sale of fuel, and by fees charged for the repairs and maintenance of these vehicles. In addition
to the cost of the contract with First Vehicle Services, expenses include salaries and wages, purchases of
fuel, utilities and other operating expenses of a garage facility.

The Beaufort County Stormwater Utility was established in June 2001. The ultility was formed to address
various stormwater runoff and drainage problems that exist within the County. Revenues are generated
from user fees assessed to the owners of all real property within the County.

The Lady’s Island Airport has been in operation for over twenty-five years. The airport revenues are
generated by the sale of fuels and the rental of hangers.

The Hilton Head Island Airport has been operated by the County for twenty years. The airport revenues
are generated from lease payments, landing fees, ticket counter and automobile rentai agency fees, and
federal grants and reimbursements.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION
As of June 30, 2005, Beaufort County had four outstanding general obligation bond issues, totaling
$106,175,000. In accordance with the South Carolina constitution, Beaufort County's borrowing power is
restricted to eight percent of its assessed property value. Excluded from this limitation are: bond
indebtedness approved by the voters in a referendum and special bonded indebtedness levies assessed
on properties located in an area receiving special benefits from the taxes collected.

Also outstanding as of June 30, 2005 were tax incremental financing revenue bonds totaling $63,680,000.
Note 6 of the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements and Schedules 6, 7, 8, and 10 found in the



Statistical Section of this CAFR provides very detailed information with regard to the bonded debt of the
County.

Other than bonded indebtedness, the County has outstanding capital leases for various pieces of
equipment totaling $298,150. These items total $170,153,150 of which the County currently has
$9,280,423 on hand to pay this debt.

Additionally, the Hilton Head Airport enterprise fund has an outstanding loan for $728,191 This loan is to
be repaid through this enterprise fund.

CAPITAL ASSETS
The County’s capital assets include those capital assets used in the performance of general government
functions and excludes the capital assets of the enterprise funds. As of June 30, 2005 the capital assets
of the reporting entity, amounted to $216,249,981. This amount represents the original or estimated cost
for the assets and it is considerably less than their present value. Depreciation of capital assets is
recognized in the government-wide statements. Specific details with regard to these assets can be found
in Note 5 of the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The County provides group health insurance, disability insurance and life insurance to its employees
through vanous insurance companies. Worker's compensation coverage is handled through the State of
South Carolina Worker's Compensation Fund; additionally various types of insurance coverage are
maintained through the State’s Insurance Reserve Fund. Schedule 14 within the Statistical Section of the
CAFR outlines the various types of coverages maintained by the County.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT
State statues require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or independent public
accountants. The accounting firm of Elliott Davis, LLC was selected by County Council. In addition to
meeting the requirements set forth in the statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements
of the Single Audit Act of 1984, and related OMB Circular A-133. The auditor's report on the financial
statements is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports, pertinent to the
requirements of the single audit act, are included in the Single Audit Section.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The preparation of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report could not have been accomplished
without the professional and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department throughout
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s - The Professional Building
340 Main Sueet. P.0, Box 429

Accountants and Business Advisors Greenwood. SC 29648-0429

Phone 864.229.4951
F3x 864.229.7822

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Beaufort County Council
Beaufort County
Beaufort, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Beaufort County
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005 which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial staterents are the responsibility of County’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opiruon on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit t0 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, ¢vidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financlal statements. An audit also tncludes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Beaufort County as of June 30, 2005, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund and other major governmental funds for the year then ended,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated
January 23, 2006 on our consideration of Beaufort County’s internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of faws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinton on
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with government auditing standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

- 10 -
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The Management’s Discussion and Analysis, as listed in the Table of Conteants, are not a
required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County of Beaufort’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical tables as listed in the Table
of Contents are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly presented,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory
section and statistical tables have not been subjected to auditing procedures appiied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

January 23, 2006 é Lt Dawed el
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BEAUFOAT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE RSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

As managemenl of Beaufort County, South Carolina we offer the County’s financial statements this nerative overview and analysis of the
flnanclal activities of Beaufort County, South Carolina for the fiscal yaar ended June 30, 2005. Please read the informetion presented hare In
conjunction with additional information that we have fumished In our letter of transmittal at the front of this report and the County’s financlel
stalements, which foflow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s The assets of Baaudort County exceaded its lieblities et June 30, 2005 by $77,965,720 (net assets). Of this amount $24,085,307
{unrestrictad net assets) may be usad to meet the govermment’s ongolng obligations lo citizens end creditors.

« The govemments total nel assets increased by $13,046,684 during the fiscal year ended Juns 30, 2005 with a $13,123,302
Increase resutting from governmental activities and a $76,608 decrease resulting from buslness type activities.

e At the end of the cumrent fiscal year, unresarved fund balance for the general fund was $10,820,609, or approximately sevanteen
percent of the general fund expenditures and fransfers.

«  Beaufort County’s capital assets incteased by $29,809,263 during the current fiscaf year. The Increase In govemmental activities
capltal assats of $29,127,514 was the result of: several purchases of property through the Real Property Purchase Program; the on-
going construction withtn the New River Tax (ncrement Flnancing District for the south campus for the Unliversity of South Carolina;
the road construction within the Bluffilon Tax Incremant Financlng District and throughoul the Courty with the County’s Road
impravemenl Program; and the construction at the County Ragional Park al Burion Wells. The Increase in business type activities
capltal assets of $681,749 was the result of the purchasse of equipment for the Stormwatsr Utility and for the Hillon Head Alrport.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This repor consists of three sections: Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section), the Basic Flnenclal Statements and
Required Supplementary Information. This discusslon and anatysls s intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic financlal
statements. The County’s basic financial statements consist ol three parts: 1) govemment-wide finencial statements, 2) fund financial
staternents and 3) notes to the financial staternents. The County's baslc financial statements ajso contain other supplementary
information in addition to the baslic financial statements thamselves.

Government-wide flnancial statements — The govemment-wide financlal statements (Swmtement of Net Assets and Statement of
Activities) are designed o provide readars with a broad overview of the County's finances and ere similar to private sector financlal
statements. These statements Include all assets and llablliles using the accrual basis of accounting used by most private sector
companies.

The sfatement of nel assats shows the County’s assets less its liabllities at June 30, 2005. The difference between these assets and
Hlabliiies Is reporied as net essets. Changes in net assets over time may be helptul In Indicating an improving or deterlorating financial
posttion.

The statement of activines follows the statement of net assets and presents information showing how the County’s nel assets changed

during the fiscal year. The statement presents all underying events, which give rise to the change, regardless of the timing ol refated
cash flows.

Both statemants attempl to distinguish functions of the County that are princlpally supported by taxes and Intergovemmental revenuas
(govemmental aclivities) from other functions that are inlended to recover all or a significant portion of thelr costs through user fees and
charges (business type activities).

The govammemial activites reported in the statemants include genens) government, public satety, publlc works, public heslth, public
welfare, cultural and recreation. The businass type activities Include the garage, stormwater utllity, Lady’s tsland Atrport and Hlilton Head
Alrport.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Fund financlal statements — A tund fs a grouping of refated accounts that Is used to malntain controf over rasources thal have been
sagregated for specific activities or obfectives. Like other state and local govemmants, Beaufort County uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance reiated legal requirements, Alf of the funds of Beaufort County govemmant can be divided Into
three calegories: govemmental, proprietary and fiduclasy.

Governmental funds — Govemmental funds assentially account fof the same functions as those reported under governmental activitles
of the governmaent-wida statement ol nst assets and slatement of activitlas. However, this set of financial statements focuses on events
that produce nees-tenm Inflows and outfiows of spendable resourcas as well as on the balance of spendable resources avallable at the
and of the fiscal year In 8 namower focus than the govermment-wide financlal statements. Such Informalion may be usefu! in evaluating
the County’s near-lemm financing requirements and avallable resources.

By comparing functions between the two sets of slatements for gpovemmaental funds and govemnmental activities, the reader may better
understand the long-term impact of the govemmaent's near-term financing decisions. Both the govemmental fund batance sheet and the
govemmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes In fund balances piovide a reconcllistion to faciltate this
comparison.

Proprietary funds - Proprietary funds essentially account for the same functions as thase reported under the business type activifiea of
tha govemment-wide statement of net assets and stalement of ectivities. Thage funds regort the senvices provided by the County for
which the County charges a user fee or charge imended to recover all or a significant portion of thalr costs.

Flduclery funds — Fiduclary funds are used to account for resources hald for the benefit of other parties. The County Is rasponsible for
ensuring that the assels raported in these funds are usad only for their Intended purpose and by these to whomn thege assets belong.

Notes to the flnanclal statements ~ The noles provide additional Information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided In both the govemmaent-wide and the fund financlal staterments. The fotes are presented on pages 36 through 53 of the report.

Other supplemental Information — In agddition to the baslic financla) statements and accompanying notes, this repost also presents
oertaln supplemental information that further supports the financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The amount of net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a govermment’s financlel position. For Beaufort County, assets exceeded
liapllites by $77,965,720 as of June 30, 2005.

Of this amount, $44,599,990 (approximately 57%) reflects the County’s investment In caphal assels (land, bulldings and equipment), less
any relaled debt used 1o acquire thosa assets that Is still outsianding. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets Is reported
net of related dabt, it should be noted that the rasources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources. since the capltal
aseats themsslvas cannot be used to repay the debt. An additional portion of the County’s nei assels, $9,280,423 (approximately 12%),
ropresants rasources that are restricied to the repayment of the County's bonded indebtedness. The ramalning balance of unrestricted
net assats, $24,085,307 (approximately 31%), may ba used to mee! the govemment’s ongoing abligations to cliizens and creditors.

At the end of the curraent fiscal year, Beaufort Gounty Is able to report posliive balances in all three catagories ot net assels, both for the
govemment as a whols, as well as for its separale govemmentsal and businass-type actlvities.
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Cuarend and other assets
Caphtal assets
Total assets

Long-term labilities
Other liabliities
Total liabilittes

Net assets:

Invest in capltal assets
Net of related debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Beaufort County’s Net Assats
June 30, 2005 and 2004

Govemmaertal Activities Business-type Activiies Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
$ 101,113,182 $ BB.485,698 $ 3480342 § 422,665 $ 104,593,524 §$ 88,888,363
156,381,357 127,253,843 16,809,717 16,127 968 173,191,074 143,381,811
$.267494.530 $_21571954%  $_20.200059 S_16550633 277784598 $.232,270.174
$ 166,734,783 § 141,816,629 $ 559,493 § 728,191 $ 167,284,286 $ 142,544,820
27,706,837 23,873,405 4,817 655 832,923 32,524,592 24 806,328
$ 194441700 $.16579003d § 5377148 $_1561114 __199818.678 $_167,351.148
$§ 28518464 § 21299949 $ 16,081,526 § 15,230,265 $ 44599890 $§ 36,539,214
9,280,423 7,488,002 - - 9,280,423 7,468,002
25,253,922 21,161,556 (1,168.615) [249.746) 24,085,307 20,911,810
$_63062809 $_49929507 $14910031 $_14980519  $_ZIB86R720 $__64.910.026

The County’s nel assels increasad by $13,046,694 during the fiscal year.
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Revenues:

Program Revenues:

Charges for service

Operating grants and
contributions

Capital grants and
contributions

General Aavenues:

Property taxes

Grants and contnbutions

Uarestricted Investment
eamings

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Prograrm Expenses
Govemmental Activities:
General govemmant
Public safety

Publlc works

Public health

Public welfare

Cdltural and recreation
(nterest

Business-type Activities:
Garage

Stormwater utlity
Lady’s Islang Alrport
Hilton Head Arpon
Total expenses

Excess revenues over
axpenaes

Net Assets, beglnning

Net Assets, ending

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Beaufort County's Changes in Net Assets

For the Flscal Years Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004

Govemmenia) Activities Business-fype Activities Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
$ 25033169 §$ 19,633,413 $ 8863635 § 8,050,870 $ 33897104 §& 27.684,283
5,893,333 6,739,125 171,894 157,085 6,065,227 6,896,210
3,148,936 2,770,673 240,806 2,337,140 3,389,742 5,107,813
65,662,852 54,454,188 - - 65,662,852 54,454,188
5,802,176 5,930,598 - - 5,802,176 5,930,598
1,627,662 1,000,454 63.721 31,511 1,691,383 1,031,965
1,467 144 647,994 3,979 1,471,123 647,894
108,635,372 91,176,445 9,344,335 10,576,606 117,879,707 101,753,051
20,435,569 19,299,507 - - 20,435,569 19,269,507
35,659,419 32,383,389 - - 35,659,419 32,383,389
14,804,707 13,982,695 - - 14,904,707 13,882,695
7,343,920 6,864,153 - - 7,343,920 6.884,153
948,468 1,163,940 - - 048,468 1,163,540
0,628,664 7,809,386 - - 8,628,664 7,809,386
7,561,323 6,820,142 - - 7,561,323 6,820,142
- - 3,111,165 2,702,854 3,111,165 2,702,854
- - 4,212,250 3,437,623 4,212,250 3,437,623
- - 464,560 405,512 464,560 405,512
- - 1,632,968 1,505316 1,632,968 1,505316
95,512,070 88,323212 9,420,943 8.051,305 104,933,013 96.374.517
13,123,302 2,853,233 (76,608} 2,525,301 13,046,634 5,378,534
49,929,507 47,076,274 14,989,519 12,464,218 64,919,026 58,540,492
$_£3.052 800 $_.45,820 507 $.14912011 $_14,989 519 $_ 77966720 $__64,919.026
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYStS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

And Other
1%

Operating grants and
contributions
5%

Charges for services
23%

Expenses by Program - Governmental Activities

Cultural and recrestlon Interest Public welfgre
10% 9% 1% Generel government

2%

Public health
8%

Publlc works Pubilc safety
18% 36%
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities

Lady's Istand Alrpont
5%

Hilton Head Alrport

15%
B Garage

3%

Stormwater
46%

Expenses by Program - Bugineas-type Activitles

Hilon Head Airport
17%

Garage
3%

Lady's Island
Stormwater Alrport

45% 5o,
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE AISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS
Beaufort County usés fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compllance with finance-related fegal requirements.

Governmentel funds — The focus of the County's govemmental funds Is to provide Information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances
of spendable resources. Such information Is useful In assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fung balance
may serve as a uselul measure of a govemment's nel resoucces available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscel year, the County’s govemmental tunds reported combined ending fund batances of $81,531,799 an Increase
of $9,606,326 In comparison with the prior year. This increase was the result of the issuance of general obligation bonds which are not
reflected in the governmental fund balances.

The general fund Is the chief operating fund of the Coumty. At the and of the current fiscal year, the lotal (und balance of the general fund was
$11,785,350, of which $974,741 was reserved for encumbrances and camy forwards. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, a
comparson of both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to 1olal fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents
approxdmatety 17% of tolal general fund expenditures and transfars, while lotal fund balance represents approximalsly 18.5% of total general
fund expendituras.

Details of the County’'s govemmental funds are shown In the govemmenl-wids financlal statements. Further details of the County's general
fund are shown on Schedule “A” and fusther details of the County’s nonmajor govemmental funds are shown on Schedules “8”, “C", “D” and
E

Propretary funds — The County’s proprietary funds are shown in the govemmant-wide financial statements.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The odglnal budget and the revised budget are shown on Exhibit 5. The $3.498,597 difference in general fund sxpenditures betwesn these
wo budgets Is the resull of the reclassification of the Parks and Lelsure Servicas Programs from a special revenues fund to the general fund.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capltal assats — Baaufort County's investment in capilal assats for its govemmentat and business-type activities as of June 30, 2005 was
$173,191,074 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment In capilal assets Includes land, bulldings, improvements and equipment.

Long-term debt — Beaufort County had $170,881,341 of total lang-term debl outstanding as of June 30, 2005. This atounl Increased by

$25,027,338 during this fiscal year as a result of the Issuance of $30,500,000 general obligation bonds less the amount of $5.472,662 debt
setvics prnciple pald during the fiscal year.

The County malintains a “Aa” bond rating from Moody's Investors Service, a “AA™ bond rating from Standard & Poor's Aating Group and a “AA”
bond rating from Fitch for its most recant general obligations bonds.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This Rnanclal repori Is designed to provida a gensral overview ot Beaufort County’s finances for all those with an interest in the govemmant’s
finances. Requests for addrional Infosmation or questions conceming any of the information contained in this reporl should be addressed lo
the Controller's Office, Post Office Box 1228, Beaufart, SC 28901-1228.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAAOLINA

Exhibit 1

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2005
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Aclivilies Totals
ASSETS
Cument Assets:
Cash and equlty In pooled cash and investments $ 93,896,497 $ 2,8901.171 & 68,787,668
Recetvables, net 4,014,556 368,174 4,382,730
Due from other govemments 3,062,329 - 3,062,329
Notes recelvable 50,000 - 50,000
inventories - 149,271 149,271
Prepald sxpenditures 89,800 71726 161,526
101,113,182 3,480,342 104,583,524
Capital Assets:
Noa-depreclable 63,527,349 8,466,802 71,984,151
Depreciable 92,854,008 8,342,915 101,196,623
156,361,357 186,809,717 173,191,074
Total Assets 257,494,539 20,290,059 277,784,598
LIABILITIES
Liablitties:
Accounts payable 10,303,463 381,949 10,685,412
Current porion of (ang term debt 5,693,223 168,698 5,861,921
Dus to others 11,674,004 4,267,008 15,841,012
Deferved revenues 36,247 - 36,247
27,706,937 4,817,655 32,524,592
Long term Uabilitles:
Accrued compensated absences 2,274,866 - 2,274,866
Long-term obligations 164,459,927 559,483 165.019,420
166,734,793 559,493 187,204,286
Total Liabllities 194,441,730 5,377,148 199,818,878
NET ASSETS
lrvested [n capital assets, net of related debt 28,518,464 16,081,526 44,599,990
Restricted for debt service 9,280,423 - 9,280,423
Restricted for capital projects, nat of related debt - -
Unrestricted 25,253,922 (1,168,615) 24,085,307
Total Net Assats $ 63,052.809 $ 14912911 § 77,985,720

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these financlal statements.
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Functions/Programs

Govemmental Activities:
General Govemmant
Public Safety
Public Works
Public Heslh
Public Welfare
Cutural and Racreation
(nterest

Total Govermmertal Activities

Business-type Adlivitias
Garage
Stormwater Utility
Lady’s Island Alrport
Hilton Head Airport

Total Business-type Adtivities

Tota!

General Revenues
Taxes
Grants and Contributions Not Restricled
Unrestricted Investment Eamings
Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Assets

Net Assats, Beginning

Nel Aasets, Ending

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

For The Year Ended Juna 30, 2005

Program Revenues

Charges for
EXpenses Servkas

Operating Grants Capltal Grants
and Contributions  anrd Contributions

§ 20435560 $ 11,841,708 $ 1,036,921 § 155,625
36,659,419 5,850,467 468,317 1,080,332
14,904,707 3,198,400 80,849 1,652,979
7,343,920 327,663 3,741,315 -

948,468 21,668 124,065 .
8,628,664 2,823,252 441,866 250,000
7,501,323 - . .
95,512,070 25,033,169 5,803,333 3,148,936
3,111,165 3,108,261 - .
4,242,250 4,207,825 - 87,800
484,560 471,341 - 14,280
1,632,968 1,076,508 171,894 138,726
9,420,943 8,883,935 171.804 240,806

$ 104,933,013 § 33,887,104

$ 6,065,227 § 3,389,742

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financia$ statements.
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Exhiblt 2

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Prmary Govemment
Business Type

Adtiviiles Adtivities Tatals
(7.431,314) $ - 8 (7.431,314)
(27,250,303) - (27.250,303)
(9.972,470) - (8.972,470)
(3.274,042) - (3,274,942)
(802.734) - (802,734)
(5,113,546) - (5,113.546)
(7,591,323) - {7,591,323)
(61,438,632) - (61.436,632)
= (21904) (24904)
- 83,375 63,375
- 21,061 21,061
- (245,840) (245,840)
- (144,308) [144,308)
(61,436,632) $ (144,308) (61,580,940)
85,662,952 §$ -8 65,662,952
5802,176 - 5,802,176
1,627 662 83,721 1,691,383
1,467,144 3,979 1,471,123
74,553.934 67,700 74,627 634
13,123,302 (76,608) 13,046,694
49,929,507 14,989,519 64,919,026

63.052,809 $§ 14912911 §  77,965720
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ASSETS

Cash and equity in pooled cash and Investmenis

Recelvables, net

Ouse from other governments
Notes recsivable

Due from other funds
Prepald expenditures

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabliljes:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll

Dus to others

Daferred property tax revenues
Deferred revenue

Total liabllities

Fund Equlty:

Raserved for encumbrances and carry forwards

Reserved for capital projects
Raservad for debt gervice
Unreserved fund balances

Total fund equity

Total labilltes and fund equity

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Exhiblt 3

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2005

New Aiver  Real Property 2005 General Nonmajor Total
TIF Purchase Obligation  Govemmental Govemmental

General Districy Program Bond Projects Funds Funds
$ 22,924,523 § 8,165,731 § 10,828,356 $ 11,850,218 § 40327,071 § 63,896,497
2,415,107 - - - 1,599,449 4,014,656
1,547,843 - - - 1.514,386 3,062,329
50,000 - - - - 60,000
88,989 - - - 801 89,800
$ 27,026,572 $ 8165731 % 10,828956 $ 11,650,216 $ 43,441,707 $ 101,113,182
$ 2,078323 § 1,032474 § 40,238 § 38,332 $ 2857213 $ 6,046,580
1,675,337 - - - 66,729 1,645,066
11,423,494 - - - 250,510 11,674,004
133,051 - - - 46,435 178,488
21,017 - - - 15,230 36,247
15,231,222 1,032,474 40,238 38,332 3,239,117 19,581,383
974,741 1,720,976 . 3,043,146 5,096,079 10,834,842
- 5,412,281 10,788,718 8,568,738 10,033,725 34,803,462
- - - 9,280,423 8,280,423
10,820,609 - - - 15,792,363 26,612,972
11,785,350 7,133,257 10,788,718 11,611,884 40,202,590 81,531,769
$ 27,028,572 $ 8,165731 $ 10,828,956 $ 11,650,216 § 43,441,707 $ 101,113,182

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financlal stetements.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
AECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30. 2005

Total govemmental fund balances (Exhibit 3)
Amounts reported for govammaental activities In the statement of net assets are difterent because:

Capital assets used In govemmenntal activitles are not financlal resources and, therefore, are
not reported In govemmental funds

Other fong-term assets are nol avallable to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore,
are rgported as deferred in govemmental funds property taxes

Long-term liabllitiss, (nciuding bonds payable, are not due and payable In the cument pefiod
and, therelore, are not reported In governmental funds

accrued Intorest payable

current portion of long tenm debt

accrued compensated absences

long-term obligations

Net assets of govemmental activitlas

The accompanying notes are an Inlegral part of these financlal statements.

.23

§ 81,531,798

156,381,357

179,486

(2,611,817)
(5.693,223)
(2.274,866)
(164,459,927)

$ 63,052,809



Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmenial
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfetturas
Interest
Miscellanaous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Ganaral Governmant
Publlc Safety
Publlc Works
Pubilc Haghh
Public Welfare
Cullural and Recreation
Dabt Service - Princlpal
Debt Savice - Interest and Fees
Cepital Projects

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financlng Sourcas (Uses)
Bond Proceeds
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Ravanues and Other Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balance at the Begianlng of the Yaar

Fung Balance at the End of the Year

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

Exhibit 4

New River Real Property 2005 General Nonmaljor Totals
TF Purchase Obligation Govemmantal Govemmental

General District Program Bond Projects Funds Funds
$ 47,418,184 $ - % - $ - $ 18,064,282 $ 65,483,466
3,393,094 - - - 5,068.755 8,462,749
6,073,748 - 155,625 15,908,783 22,138,156
12,179,830 - - 3,278,692 16,458,622
862,229 - - 229,569 1,111,708
64,028 131,101 155,737 888,188 388,610 1,627,662
311,610 3,694,638 - - 333,667 4,339,915
70,324,723 3,825,739 311,362 888,186 _ 43272358 118,622,368
15,616,654 - . . 9,327,350 24,044,004
29.5)01,879 - - - 35,046,842 32,348,721
7,897,503 - - - 9,936,401 17,833,804
2,172,343 - - - 4,858,753 7,131,096
717,165 - - - 231,303 948,468
6,702,500 - - - 379,611 7,082,119
- - - - 5,285,000 6,285,000
- - - - 7,100,535 7,100,535
- 14,684,525 14,453,059 1,879,222 5,825,397 36,842,203
62,408,044 14,684,525 14,453,059 1,879,222 46,001,192 139,518,042
7.916.679  (10,858,786)  (14,141,697) (981,036) (2,818,834)  (20,893,674)
- - 20,000,000 10,500,000 - 30,500,000
62,458 - 2,102,920 6,751,565 8,916,543
(1,334,387) - - - (7,582,556) (8,916,843)
(1,271,929) - 20,000,000 12,602,920 (830,991) _ 30.500,000
6,644,750 (10,858,768) 5,858,303 11,611,884 (3.849,825) 0,606,326
5,150,600 17,962,043 4,830,415 - 43,852,415 71,825,473
$ 11,795350 $ 7,133,257 § 10,788,718 $ 11,611,884 § 40,202,590 § 81,531,799

Tha accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Tolal net changs In fund talancas - govemmental funds (Exfbit 4)
Amounts reported for govammental activities In the statement of activities are difiereni because:

Governmant funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, In the statement of activities
the cast of those assets are altocated over thelr estimated useful fives and reported as depreciation
exponsa. This is the amount by which capital outlay axcluded depreclation In the curent pertod
capiial outiay
depreciation

In the statement of activities, the loss on disposal of capHal assets Is reported. Conversety,
govemmantal funds do not report any galn or loss on disposal of capltal assets.
net book valus of capital assets disposed

Because some property laxes will not be collected for several months atter the County's fiscal
year ends, they are not considered “available® revenues In the govemmental funds

The Issuance of long-term deb! {(bonds, leases) provides current financlal resources to govemmmental
funds, while the repaymaent of the principal of fong-tarm debi consumes the current financlal
rescurces of governmenlal funds. Nelther bansactions has any aftect on net assets

Issuance of long-temn bonds

bond princlpal paymends

capltal {ease princlpal payments

Some expenses reported In the statement of activiies do not require the use of current financial
resourcées and, thesalore, are not reported as expenditures in govermmental funds

increasse in accrued Interest

increase In accrued compensaled absences

The County has allocated the costs assoclated with the County’'s employee bensfits program
Into the various County depastments. Additionally, the County records its contribution for these
benefits and the payments of the assoclated premlums within a speclal reveaue fund. Therefore,
1o avoid the doubling up of the cost of these benefits within the statement of activitles there needs
10 be a reduction of revenues and a simllar reduction of expenditures:

revenue raduction

axpenditure reduction

Change In nat assets of govemmantal activiies

The accompanying notes are an integral parl of these financia) statements.,
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Exhibit 4
Continued

9,606,326

40,650,125
(8,649,840)

(2,872,771)

179,486

(30.500,000)

5,285,000
27,150

(111,386)
(490,788)

(7.283,711)
7,283,711

13,123,302




Exhibit 5
Sheet 1
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANDO CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Year ended June 30, 2005
GENERAL
Variance
with Final Budget
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Aclual __(Unfavorable)
Revenues
Taxes $ 45258,045 § 45,258,045 $ 47,419,184 $ 2,161,139
Lcensas and Permits 2,676,614 2,676,614 3,383,094 717,380
ntergovemmental 5,832,286 5,832,286 6,073,748 141,482
Charges tor Services 8,246,081 9,614,081 12,179,630 2,565,848
Finss and Forfeltures 896,000 896,000 882,229 (13,771)
Interest 204,200 204,200 64,028 (140,172)
Miscellaneous 178,800 218,000 311,610 92,610
Tolal Aevenues 64,391,826 64,800,226 70,324,723 5,524,487
Expenditures
General Govemment 16,623,971 16,557,168 15,616,654 940,514
Pubfic Safsty 31,070,601 31,004,889 29,301,879 1,793,010
Publlc Works 7,765,494 7,780,856 7,897 503 (116,647)
Public Health 2,260,490 2,276,263 2,172,343 103,920
Public Welfare 741,083 736,083 717,185 18,818
Cultural and Recreation 3,348,737 6,861,714 6,702,500 159,214
Deb! Service - Princlpal - - - -
Debt Service ~ Inerest and Fees - - - R
Capiltal Projects - - - -
Total Expendiuras 61,808,376 65,308,973 62,408,044 2,898,929
Excess of Ravenues Over (Under) Expenditures 2,583,450 (506,747) 7,916,679 6,423,426
Other Finandng Sources (Usas)
Bond Proceeds - - - -
Transfer In 42,750 42,750 62,458 16,708
Transter Out (4.608 844) (1,518,747) (1,334,387) 184,380
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (4.566,194) (1,475,097) (1,271,929) 204,068
Excess of Revenues and Other Sourcas Over
(Under) Expenditures Sources (Usas) (1,982,744} (1,982,744) 6,644,750 8,627,484
Fund Balance at the Beglnning of the year 5,150,800 5,150,600 5,150,600 -
Fund Balance at the End of the Year $ 3,167,856 § 3,167856 $ 11,795,350 $ 8,627,494

The eocompanying notes are an integrel part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit S
Sheeat 2
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES (N FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYFPES
Year anded Junse 30, 2005

NEW RIVER TIF DISTRICT

Varlance
with Final Budget
Original Fina Favorable
Budgel Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

Revenues
Texes $ -8 - 8 - 8 -
Ucensas and Permits - - - -
Intergovemmental - - - -
Charges for Services - - - -
Fines and Forfeitures - - - -
Interest - - 131,101 134,101
Miscoflaneous - 3,694,638 3.694.638 -

Total Revenues - 3,684,638 3,825,739 131,101

Expenditures

General Govemment

Public Salety - - - -
Public Works - - - -
Public Health - - - -
Public Walfare - - - -
Cultural and Recreation - - - -
Debt Service - Prnclpa) - - - -
Debt Service - interast and Fees -
Caphal Projects 17,778,790 21,474,428 14,684,525 6,769,903

Total Expenditures 17,779,790 21,474,428 14,684,525 8,789,809

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (17,779,790) (17.779,790) (10,858,786) 6,921,004

Other Financing Sources (Uses}
Bond Proceeds - - - -
Transfer in - - - -
Transfer Qut - - - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - - -

Excess of Ravenues and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures Sources (Uses) {17,778,790) (17,779,790) (10,858,786) 6,921,004

Fund Balance at lhe Beginning of the year 17,992,043 17,002,043 17,992 043 -

fund Balance at the End of the Year $ 212,253 § 212253 § 7,133,257 ¢ 6,921,004

The accompanying notes are an integral parl of these financlial statements.
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Exhlbit 5

Sheet 3
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUOGET AND ACTUAL
ALl GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Year ended June 30, 2005
REAL PROPERTY PURCHASE PROGRAM
Varance
with Final Budget
QOriginal Final Favorable
Budgst Budget Actual __(Unfavomable)
Revenues
Taxes $ - - 8 -8 -
Ucenses and Permilts - - - -
Intergovemmental - - 165,828 155,625
Charges for Services - - -
Finas and Forfelturas
Interest $0,000 50,000 155,737 105,737
Misceflaneous
Total Revenues 50,000 50,000 311,362 261,362
Expendltures
General Government
Public Safety - - - -
Public Works - - - -
Pubiic Health - - - -
Publlc Weftare - - -
Cultural and Recreation - - - -
Debl Service - Princlpal - - - -
Dabt Service - Inlerast and Fees - - - -
Capitat Projects 24,880,000 24,980,000 14,453,059 10,526 841
Total Expendliures 24,880,000 24,980,000 14,463,059 10,526,841
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (24,530,000) (24,630,000) (14,141,697) 10,788,303
Other Financing Sources (Usés)
Bond Proceeds 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 -
Transfec In
Transfer Out - - - -
Totad Other Financing Sources (Uses) 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 -
Excess of Revenuas and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures Sources (Uses) {4,930,000) {4,830,000) 5,858,303 10,788,303
Fund Balance at the Beginning of the year 4,930,415 4,830,415 4,830,415 -
Fund Balance at the End of the Year $ 415 § 415 § 10,788,718 § 10,788,303

The accompanying notes are an Integral par of thesa financlal stalemers.
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Exhlibit 5
Sheat 4
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAAOUINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Year ended June 30, 2005
2005 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND PROJECTS
Varlance
with Final Budgat
Original Final Favorablg
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorabla)
Revenuas
Taxes - - - 3 -
Licenses and Permits
Intergovemmontal 150,000 150,000 - (150,000)
Charges for Sernvices - - - -
Fines and Forfeltures - - - -
Interast 970,000 970,000 868,186 (81,814)
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total Revenuss 1,120,000 1,120,000 888,186 (231,814)
Expenditures
General Govemment
Public Salety - - - -
Public Works - - - -
Pubtlc Health - - - -
Pablic Welfara - - - -
Cultural and Recreation - - - -
Dsit Sefvice - Principal - - - .
Debt Service - laterest and Fees - - - -
Capital Projects 11,820,000 13,697,190 1,879,222 11,817,968
Total Expenditures 11,820,000 13,697,180 1,879,222 11,817,968
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expendityres (10,700,000) (12,577,120) (991,036) 11,586,154
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Bond Proceeds 10,500,000 10,500,000 10,500,000 -
Transter In 200,000 2,077,180 2,102,920 25,730
Transfer Oul - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 10,700,000 12,577.190 12,602,820 25,730
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures Sources (Uses) - - 11,611,884 11,611,884
Fund Balance st the Beginning of the year - - - -
Fund Balance at the End of the Year - - 11,611,884 $ 11,611,884

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thase financial statements.
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ExhibH 5
Shest &
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Yaar endad June 30, 2005
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Varlance
with Flnal Budget
Origlnal Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual __(Unfavorabie)
Revenuas
Taxes $ 16425314 § 16,425314 $ 18,064,282 § 1,638,968
Licenses and Parmlts 2,658,000 2,653,000 5,068,755 2,415,758
Intergovemmenial 13,777,207 13,797,207 15,508,783 2,111,578
Gharges lor Services 2,504,153 2,585,753 3,278,692 682,939
Flnes and Forlelturas 145,000 145,000 228,569 84,569
Interest 104,000 84,000 388,610 204,610
Miscelianeous 181,536 156,536 333,867 177,131
Total Ravenues 35,880,210 35,866,810 43,272 358 7,405,548
Expenditures
General Government 8,343,783 8,735,783 9,327,350 (681,567)
Public Safety 2,508,313 2,508,313 3,046,842 {538,529)
Public Works 13,698,575 12,705,533 9,936,401 2,768,132
Publlc Health 5,233,547 5,233,547 4,958,753 274,794
Publlc Welfare 296,813 266,813 231,303 65,510
Cultural and Recreation 4,868,002 1,089,465 379,611 709,854
Debt Service - Princlpel 5,285,000 5,285,000 5,285,000 -
Debt Service - Interast and Fees 5,835,433 7,118,475 7,100.535 17,940
Capttal Projects 19,378,851 17,484,601 5,825,397 11,669,204
Tolal Expenditures 65,448,317 60,487,530 46,091,192 14,376,338
Excess of Ravenues Over (Under) Expenditures (29,568,107  (24,800,720) (2.818,834) 21,781,886
Other Financing Sources (Usss)
Bond Proceeds - - - -
Transfer in 6,441,745 5.610,837 6,751,565 1,140,728
Transter Out (2,088,859) _ (6,225,338) __ (7,582.556) {1,357,218)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 4,352,886 (614,501)  (830,991) (216,490)
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expendituras Sources (Uses) (25,215,221)  (25,215,221) (3.649,825) 21,585,396
Fund Balance al the Baginning of the year 43,852,415 43,852 415 43852415 -
Fund Balance at the End of the Year $ 18,637,194 § 18,637,184 § 40202590 § 21,585,396

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of thesa financiel statements.
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Exhiblt 5

Sheet 8
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Year ended Jung 30, 2005
TOTALS
Vaslance
with Final Budget
Orglnal Flnal Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorabls)
Revenues
Taxes $ 61,683,359 § 61,683,359 $ 65,483,466 $ 3,800,107
Licanses and Permits 5,329,614 5,329,614 8,462,749 3,133,135
Imergovemmental 19,859,493 19,876,493 22,138,156 2,258,663
Charges for Services 11,840,234 12,209,834 15,458,622 3,248,788
Fines and Forfeitures 1,041,000 1,041,000 1,111,708 70,788
Interest 1,328,200 1,318,200 1,627,662 309,462
Miscellaneous 380,136 4,070,174 4,339,915 269,741
Total Revenues 101,442,636 105,531,674 118,622,368 13,090,694
Expenditures
General Govemmant 24,967,754 25,292,951 24,844,004 348,947
Public Satety 33,578,914 33,603,202 32,348,721 1,254,481
Public Works 21,464,069 20,486,389 17,833,904 2,662,485
Public Health 7,494,037 7,509,810 7,131,096 378,714
Public Waetfare 1,037,896 1,032,896 048,468 84,428
Cultural and Recreation 8,214,739 7,851,179 7,082,111 869,068
Debt Service - Principal 5,285,000 5,285,000 5,285,000 -
Debit Sarvice - (nlerest and Fees 5.835,433 7,118.47§ 7.100,535 17,840
Capital Projects 73,958,641 77.646.219 36,842,203 40,804,016
Total Expenditures 181,836,483 185,926,121 139,516,042 46,410,079
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expendiures {80,394,447) (80,304 ,447) (20,893,674) 59,500,773
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Bond proceeds 30,500,000 30,500,000 30,500,000 -
Transfer In 6,684,495 7,730,777 8,916,943 1,186,166
Transfer Out (6,697,803) (7,744.085) (8,916,943) (1,172,858)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 30,486.692 30,486,692 30,500,000 13,308
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (49,907,755) (49,807,755) 9,606,326 59,514,081
Fund Balance ai the Baginning of the year 71,925,473 71,925,473 71,925 473 -
Fund Batance at the End of the Year $ 22,012,718 § 22017,718 & 81,531,799 § §9,514,081

The accompenying notes are an integral pan of these financtal statements.
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments with Trustee
Recaivables, nst
Imemal balances
Inventortes
Prapayments
Totel curren assets

Capllal assets
Accumulated depreciation

Total) Assets

LABILITIES
Llablitties:

Account payable

Accrued payroll

Due to Faderal Aviation Admininstration
Cuyyent portion of long term debt

Total current llabllides

Long term portion of debt

Total liablliies

NET ASSEYS:

Invasted In capital asssls, net
of celated debt

Unresticled

Tolal Net Assels

The accompanylng nolas are an integral pan of thase financlal statements.
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Exhibit 8
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAAOLINA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2005
Stormwater  tady'sisland  Hilton Head
Garage Utility Alrport Atrponl Totals

3 (83,193) $ 683615 § (318435) $ 2,609,184 2,801,171
156,174 67,621 19,808 124,571 368,174

- - (240,000) 240,000 -

53,005 67,394 38,872 - 149271

71,726 - - - 71,728
187,712 808,630 (499,755) 2,973,755 3,480,342

393,781 1,408,716 2,684,738 16,603,166 21,091,421
(281,113) (411,858) (420,103) (3,168,832) (4.281,704)
112,668 998,060 2,264,635 13,434,354 16,809,717
310,380 1,806,690 1,764,880 16,408,109 20,290,059
69,983 73,813 5,836 142,663 292,295

1,285 39,779 5,063 43,527 89,654

- - - 4,267,008 4,267,008

- - - 168,698 168,698

71,268 113,592 10.899 4,621,896 4,817,655

- - - 569,493 559,463

71,268 113,592 10,899 5,181,389 5,377,148
112,668 998,060 2,264,835 12,706,163 16.081,526
126,444 695,038 (510,654)  (1,479,443) (1,168,615)

$ 239,112 ¢ 1,693,098 $& 1,753,981 § 11,228,720 § 14,912,911




Exhibit 7
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNODS
Year snded June 30, 2005

Stormwaler Lady’s Island Hillon Head

Qarage Utility Alrport Alrport Totals
Operating ravenues:
Garage bilings $ 1577872 ¢ - 8 - 8 - & 1877872
Fuel and of\ sales 1,530,360 - 362,642 1,899,002
Stormwatar utlliity lees - 4,038,941 - - 4,039,841
Stormwater utility project billings - 168.884 - - 168,884
Concesslon sales - - 9,265 - 9,265
FBO leass paymenis - - . 60,880 60,880
Flrefighting fees - - - 97,894 97,894
Landing fees - - 7.561 121,756 129,317
Parking/tax fess - - - 18,207 19,207
Rentals - - 90,174 682,673 672,847
Passenger faclliles charges - - - 160,830 160,930
TSA grants - - - 171,854 171,894
Other charges 29 - 1,699 3,168 4,836
Total opsrabng revenues 3,108,261 4,207,825 471,341 1,248,402 9,035,829
Operaling expenses:
Costs of sales and services 3,006,954 - 231,415 - 3,238,369
Personnel 44,154 908,227 82,452 738,827 1,773,660
Purchased services 23,006 933,914 59,644 334,970 1,351,534
Supplies 3,851 232,870 15,813 54,006 306,540
Other - 1,963,891 - - 1,963,881
Depreclation 33,200 173,348 75,236 465,983 747,767
Total operaling expenses 3,111,165 4,212,250 464,560 1,683,786 9,381,761
Operating Income (loss) (2,904) (4.425) 6,781 (345,384) (345,632)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenges)
Contiibuted assets - 87,800 14,280 138,726 240,806
Gain (foss) on sale of property and equipment {7.051) 38,337 (562) (26,745) 3,979
(nterest eamed - 1,789 - 61,632 63,721
Interas! expense - - - (39,182) (39,182)
Tota) non-operating revenues (7,051 127,926 13,718 134,731 269,324
Change in Net Assets (9,955) 123,501 20,499 (210,653) (76,608)
Net Assets, Baginning 240,067 1,569,597 1,733,482 11,437,373 14,689 519
Net Assets, Ending $ 239,112 § 1,693,098 $ 1,753,981 § 11226720 $ 14,912,911

The accompanying notes are en integral part of these financial stalemenis.
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Exhibtt 8

Sheet 1
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPHIETARY FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
Stormwater  Lady's island  Hilton Head
Gamage Utility Alrporl Alrporl Totals
Cash flows from operating activittes:
Cash receifved from customers and users $§ 3018505 § 4,168817 § 464,422 § 1,133257 $ 8,785,001
Cash pald to employees (44,010) (917.427) (82,359) (744,906) (1,788,702)
Cash pald to suppliers (3,216,235) (3,118,439) (369,033) (423,6840) (7,127,347)
(241,740) 132,951 13,030 (35,289) (131,048)
Cash flows from noncapliial financing activites:
Advances from Fedesal Aviation Administration - - - 4,267,008 4,267,008
Cash flows from capllal and relaled financing activittes:
Contributed capital - 87,800 14,280 138,726 240,806
Proceeds from sale of fixed assels - 199,665 - - 199,685
Purchase of capital asssats - (443,303) (80,861) (1,101,038) (1,625,202)
Princlpal payment on debt . - - - (160,512) (160,512)
Interest pald on dabt - - - (39,182) (39,182)

- (155,838) (66,581) _(1,162,008) (1,384,425

Cash flows from Investing activities:

Interest eamead - 1,789 - 61,932 63,721
Net increase {(decreass) in cash and cash equivaients (241,740) (21,098) (53.551) 3,131,645 2,815,256
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2004 158,547 704,713 (264.884)  (522,461) 75,915
Cash and cash equlvalents, June 30, 2005 $ (83,193 $ 683,615 $ (318435) § 2,609,184 $ 2,881,171

The accompanying notss are an Integra) part of thase financial staterments.
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Exhibit 8

Sheet 2
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
Stormwater  Lady's Island  Hillon Head
Garage Utility Alrport Ajrpont Totals
Reconcliation of operating income to net cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (2904) $ (4,425) $ 6,781 $ (345384) §  (345,932)
Adjusiments 10 reconcile:
Depreciation 33,200 173,348 75,236 465,983 747,767
Changes [n assets and liabiliies:
(Increase) Deciease In account receivable (88,756) (39.008) (6,818) (115.145) (250.828)
(Increass) Decreass In invenilories (19,566) 33,107 (5,134) - 8,407
{(Increase) Decrease in other current assets - - - - -
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable (162,858) (20,871) (57,027) (34,664) (275,420)
Increase (Decrease) in accured payroll 144 (9,200) ) (6,079) (15,042)
Increase (Decreasae) in other current liabilities - - - - -
{272,038) (35,972) (68,967)  (155,888) (532,883)
Net cash flow from operating aclivities $ (241,740) $ 132,951 $§ 13,030 $ (35.289) $ (131,048)

The accompanying notes are an Integral pan of these financlal stalements.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENTY OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Cash and equity In pooled cash and investments

Yotat assats

UABILITIES
Lisbilities:
Due to agancy

Total liablhtes

NET ASSETS
Reserved for ancumbrances and cerry forwards

Total net assets

AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 2005

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit 9

$ 43,584 562

43,584,562

—_—t

43,584,562

43,584,562



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended Juneé 30, 2005

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Palicles

The financial statemenis of Beaufort County, South Carolina, have been prepared In conformily with accouming principles (GAAP)Y generally
accepted in the United States of America as applled to goveammental units. The Governmerntal Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Is the accepled
standard-setting body for establishing govemmantal accounting and financlal reporiing principias. The County also applles Financial Accounilng
Standards Board (FASB) stalsment and Inlerpretetions issued on or before November 30, 1989 to Itz govermmeantal and businass-type activities and
10 Its proprietary funds provided they do not conllict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The more significant of the govemment's accounting
policles sre described below.

Basis of Presentation
The County's baslis financial statements consist of gavemmeni-wide statements, Including a statament of nel assets and a statament of actvitles,
and fund financial sialements which provide a more detalled level of financlal Information.

Govemment-wids financlal statements
The statament of nef assels and the statement of activities display information about the County as a whole, These statements
Include the financial activitles of the primary govemment, except for fiduclary funds. For the most par, the effect of Interfund
activity has been ramoved from the statements. The stetements distingulsh befween thase activities of the County thal are
govemmental and those that are considerad business-type activitles.

The statemen! of net 8ssets presents the Ninancial condition af the governmantal and business-type activites for the Caunty at
yoar-end. The statement of activities presents a comparnison between direct 8xpenses and program revenues for each program
or function of the County's governmaental activitles and for the business-type activities of the County. Direct expensas are those
that are spedifically assoclaled with a secvice, program or department ang therefore clearly kdentifiable 16 a pacticular functlon.
Program revénues include charges paid by the recipient {or the goods or services offered by the program, grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program and intarest eamed
on grants thal is required to be used lo suppor a particular program. Revenues which are not classlfied as program revenues
are presenied as general revenues of \he County, with certaln limhted exceptions. The comparison of diract expenses with
program revenues ldengfles the exten! (o which each busingss segmeni or govermmenta! function Is seli-financing or draws
from the genarel ravenues of the County.

Fund finandal statements
During the year, the County segregates transactions refaled 10 certain County functions or activities (n sapanate funds In order to
alg financial management aad to demonstrale lagai comphancs. Fund financial statements are designed 1o present financia)
Information of the County at this more detalled lavel. Ths {ocus of govemmental and enterpiisa fund financial statementsis on
major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated end presented In & single
column. Fldudary funds are seported by type.

Measurement focus, basls of accouning, and financial statement presentaton
The government-wide financial stataments are reponad uslng the aconomic resources managemenl! locus and the sccrual
basls of accounting, as aca the proprietary tund and flduciary fund financisl statemants. Revanues are recorded when earmad
And expenses are recorded when a liability 1s incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Propery taxes are
recognized as revenues In the year for which thay are (evied. Grants and simiiar ftems are recognized as revenve as soon as
all sligitility requiremants imposed by the provider have been met.

Govemmental fund financlal slataments are reported using the curent financlal resources mesasurement locus and the modified
accrual basls of accounting. Revenues are recognized as socon as they are both measurable and available. Revenuas are
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Note 1 — Summary of Slgnificant Accounling Pollcles - Continued

considered to be avallable when they are colleciible within the current perdod or soon enough theraafter Yo pay llabifiies of the
cumrrent periad. For this purpose, the govemment conslders cevenues to be avallable If they are coliscted within 60 days of the
and curren! fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a llabliity Is Incurred, as under accrual accounting.
Howaever, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compansated absences and cialms and judgments, are
recorded only when payment Is due.

Property taxas, franchise taxes, llcenses, and Interest associaled with the current fiscel perod are all considered to be
suscéptble to accrual and so have been recognlzed as revenues of the current fiscal peried. All other revenue ltems are
consldered to be measurable and available only when cash Is recelved by the govermment,

The government caports the (ollowing major govemmental funds:
The genera! fundis the govetnment's primary operating tund. 1 accounts for all financial resources of the general
govemmaent, except hose requiced to be eccounted for In anather fund.

The new river TIF district fund accounts for the expendiiure of the bond proceeds of the bonds Issued for the
Improvements within the TIF disirict Thess Improvements include the new river campus for the Unlversity of South
Carolina-Beaufort and the south campus for the Technlcal Collage of the Lowcountry.

Tha real property purchase program fund accounts (or the expendtture of bond proceeds of the bonds Issued tar the
purchase of rural and critical (ands within the County.

The 2005 general obligation bond projects hund accounts for the expenditure of the bond procesds of the bonds
Issued for various caphtal projects throughout the County.

The County reports the following major enterprisa funds:
Tha garage fund accounts for the actlvities of the County’s garage operations.

The stormwater utiflity fund accounts {or the activities of the Gounty’s starmwater uiliity operatlons.

The Lady's laland alrport fund accounts for the activities of the County’s afrport operations on Lady’s Island.

The Hitton Head airpor fund accounts for the activities of the County’s alrport operations on Hliton Head (sland.

Addltionally, the govemmaent reports the following fund types:

Special cevenue funds
The spedal revenue funds are used to accounti for the pracseds of specific revenue sources (other than
speclal assessments, or major capltal projects) that are legally rastricied to expenditures for specifled
pumposes.

Debt service tund
Debt service funds are usad 10 account for the accumuladon of resources for, and the payment of, general
long-term debt princlpal and Interesl.

Cap!tal prolects funds
Capltal projects funds ace used to account for financlal resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities.
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Nole 1 — Summary of Significam Accounting Policles — Continyed

Agency Fund
The agency fund accounts for monles held on behalf ot school districts, speclal distrcts and other

agendles thal use the County as a depostiory or property taxes are collecied on behalf of the other
govemments.

As a general rufe the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wids financlal statements. Exceptions to thls
genéral rule are charges betwaen the govemment's garage function and various olher functions of the govemment Elimination of thase
charges would distort the direct cosis and program revenues reparted for the varlous functions concemed.

Amount reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privilegas provided, (2)
operating grants and contdbutions, and (3) capllal granis and contributions. intemally dedicated resources are reporied as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Llkewise, general revenues include all 1axes.

Propriatary funds distingulsh operating ravenues and axpensss from nonopeorating ltems. Operating revenuas and expenses generally
rasult from providing services and producing and dellvedng goods In connection with a propristary fund's principal ongoing oparations.
The principal operatng revenues of the County enterprise fund are charges {0 customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cosl of sales and services, administrative expenses, snd depreclation on capltal sssets. All revanues and
expoanses not meating this dafinition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are avatiable for use, His the govemmant’s palicy to use rastricted resourcss first, then
unrastricled resources as they ars needed.

Measurgment Focus
Govemmeni-wids financial statements
The govemment-wide financlal stalements are prepared using the economic resources measurament focus. All assets and
llablies assaclated with the operation of the County are included on the statement of net assels.

Fund financlal statements

Al governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resourceg measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only cumrent assets and current fiablilties generalty are Included on the balance sheet. The statement of
revenues, expendiures and changes In fund balances reports on e sources (i.a., revanues and other financing sources) and
uses (l.e., expenditures and othar financing uses) of currend financlal resources. This approach differs from the manner (n
which the govemmentel aclivilles of tha govermment-wide financlial stalements are prepared. Govemmental tund financlal
statemenls therefore include a reconcitiation with brief explanalions (o better ldentlfy the relationship between the govermment-
wida staiements and the statements for govesnmaenilal funds.

Uke the govemment-wide Slatements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. All asssts and al llabllitles associated wilh the operalion of these tunds are Includad on the statemeni ot
net assats. The statement of changes In fund net assets presents Increases (l.e., revenuss) and decreass (i.e., 8xpenses) in
net tolal assets. The statemant of cash flows provides Informatlon about how the County finances and meets lhe cash How
needs of its proprietacy activities.
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Note 1 —Summary of Slanlficant Accounting Poltcles - Continued

Basis of Accouriing
Basls of acobunting determines whan transactions are recorded In the financial records and reported on the finandial stalements. Govemment-wide
financlal stalements are prepared using the accrual basls of accounting. Govemmental funds use the modified accrual basls of accourting.

Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accruel basla of accaunting. Differencas in the ecciual and the modlfied acensal basls of accounting arise
in the racognltion of revenue, the recording of deterred revenue, and In the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Net agsets - Net assets represent the difference between assets and llablliles. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt
conslgts of caphial nesets, net of accumulated depreclation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used lof the acquisttion
construction or Improvements of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations Imposed on thelr usa etther
through the aenabling legislation adopted by tha County or through extemal restriction Imposed by creditors, grantors, laws, or regulations
ot othar govemments.

Deferred revenue - Defared revenue arses when assats are recognized before revenue recognition crlteria have been satisflad. On
govemmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the svaliable pertod have also been reponed as
deferred revenue.

Eaqulty In Pooled Cash and Investiments - The County maintalns a pooted cash and Investment account for all funda for accounting and
Investment purposes. This givas the County the abllity to invest idle cash for short perlods of ime and to eam the most favorable avaliable
ra(e of retum. The "equilty In pooled cash and Investments® represents the amount of pooled cash and Investments owned by each fund of
the County. Certaln Individual tunds may reflact a cash deficit, from §me to ime. Thess cash deficiis are not considered an equity
tranglor since the transfer has not been approved by County Councll and {s consldered to ba temporary in nalure.

investrents - Investments consist of certificatss of deposit and repurchase agreements. All Investments are recordad at cast, which
approximates mackel value.

Recelvables - All recelvables are reporied at thelr gross value and whan appropriate, are raduced by the estimated portlon that Is
uncollsctile.

Inventories - Inventortes conslst of fuels and supplies (Entarprse Funds) and are slatad at the Jower of “irst-In, first-oul” cost or market.

Capital Assets - Caplital assets purchased or acquired with an orlginal cost of $500 or more are reponed at historical cost or estimated
historical cost. Comributed assets are reported at falr market value as of the date recelved. Aaditions, Improvements and other capital
outiays that significantly extend the useful life of an assel are capitalized. Other costs Incurred for repales and maintenance are expansed
as Incumred. Deprociation on all assals Is provided on ihe stralght-line basls over the following estimated useful lives:

8ulidings 20 - 25 years

Improvements 20 - 25 years

Equipment 5—10 years

Revenues - Substantally alt govemmental fund revenues are accrued. Property laxes are billed and colfected within ihe sama perlod In
which the taxes are levied,

Expenditures — Expandltures ace recognized when the relaled fund ilablifty is (ncurred.

- 40 -



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yeac anded Jung 30, 2005

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Compensated Abgances -~ The County accrues compensaled absences and associaled smployse-related costs when eamed by the
employes.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financlal statements In conformity with generally accepted accounting principlas requires
managament 1o make estimates and assumplions thal atfect the County’s financial position and results of operations and disciosure of
ocontingent assets and llabifitles. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting - The County uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflecied In the
financlal statements:

1) The County Administrator submits 1o County Councll, prior 10 June 1, propased operating, speclal ravenus, debi service, and
capltal lmprovement (CIP) budgets for the fiscal yaar commencing July 1. The operating, special revenus, dept service, and
CIP budgets Include proposed expenditures, ravenues and financing sources.

(2) The Councll requires such changes to be made as it deems necessary, provided the budget remalns In balance and Is subject
to the notice of heasing requiraments of Seclion 4-8-140 of the South Carolina Statutes.

3 Public hearings are held pursuani to Sectlon 4-9-140 of the South Carolina Statustes in order for the Coundil ¢ adopt the
tertative and final budget.

(4) Prior to July 1, the operating. special fevanue, debt sarvice and CIP budgets are legally enacled thwough passags of an
ardinance sefting forth anticipated revenues and appropriations by fund.

(5) The County Administrator or his deslgnee is authorizad to tansfes funds among operating acoounts or among caphal acoounts
within a department. Alf transfers between departments and programs or between operating and caplial accounts must be
autharized by the Councll In accordance with Section 4-3-140 of the South Carolina Statutes. In accordance with County
Ordinance #2004/22, Section 12, amounts of $10.000 of less can be approved by the Councll Chalman and/or Coundl Finance
Commitiee Chalman; transfers of $5,000 or less can be gpproved by the County Administralor and/or his designee.

(6) Formal budgetary integration [s employed as a measurement conirot devics for all govemmental funds aof the County. The level
on which expenditures may not Jegally exceed appropriations Is Lhe fund level.

@ Budgets fof the govemmental tund types are adopted on a basis consistent with ganerally accepied accounting principles.
(8) Revenues In excess of the currem budget ordinance may be expended as directed by the revenue source or for the express
purpose for which the funds were generated withoul turiher approval by County Councll, as per Section 14 of County Ordinance
#2004/22.
2. Cash and Equilty in Pogled Cash and [nvestments
Custadlal Cradit Risk - Depostts

Cuslodial credit risk Is the risk that In the event of a bank fallure, the County’s deposlits may not be retumed to It. The County doas not
have a depasit policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2005, the carrying amount of the County's deposlis was $28,474,510 and the
bank bafance was $31,107,700. All of the County’s deposits at year-and were covered by faderal depository Insurance of by collateral
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Cash and Equity In Pooled Cash aad Investments — Continued:

held in the pledging financlal Institutions’ rust departments In the County’s name. Therefore, none of the County's deposits were exposed
to custodial credil risk at June 30, 2005.

Inyestments
As of June 30, 2005, the County has the following investments:

Jovestmart maturities (in years)

Falr Less than
Investmen( Tvpe Value 1 1-8 : 5-10

US Treasury Obligallons $ 5867312 $ 5867312 $ - $ -
US Govemment Agency Obligations 53,654 068 42 804 535 8,000,000 2,849,533
59,521,380 48,671,847 8,000,000 2,849,533
Federated mutual funds 7,639,488 7,639,488 - -

South Carolina local govéemment
lnvastment poot 8,312,025 8,312.025 - -
Repurchasa agreements 36,424 847 36,424,847 - -
$111,897.240 $101,048,207 $_£.000,000 $___2.649.533

Interest rate risk

The County doas not have a formal Investment policy that limits investmen| maturiles as a means of managing fis exposure to fafr value
lagses arising from Increasing imeresl rales.

Cradit risk

The County has no Investment policy that would further liml (ts investmant cholces othar than state iaw. As of June 30, 2005, the
undertying securtty ratings of the Counly’s ivesiment [n the South Carolina Local Govemnment Investment Poof may be obtalned (rom the
LGIP’s complete financlal statements. These financlal stalements may be obtalned by writing to the following address:

The State Treasurar's Office

Local Government Investment Pool
Post Office Box 11778

Columbla, SC 28211

The County's Investments In U.S. Govemmeni Agency Obligatons were rated Aaa by Moody's investors Sevices.

Concentralion of ¢radi fisk
Tha County ptaces no Imi on the amount the County may Inves! in any one Issuer. As of June 30, 2005, no single issuer invastmeant
oxceeded 5% of total investments.

’

Recelvables/Dus from Other Governments

All property taxes recelvable are shown net of allowances for uncollectibles. The County considers all taxes to be collectible; therelore, no
allowance for uncollectibles has besn esiablished.
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Aecelvables/Due from Other Governmenis — Conlinued:

The foltawing detalls recalvables-net by fund:

Nonmajor
General Govemmental
Fund Funds
Propery tax recelvable $ 702,803 3 245,096
Licensas and fees receivable 179,389 489,338
Fines recelvable 829,833 -
Accounts recelvable - other 703,082 865,017
$2,415107 $___1.509.449
Key dates In the property tax cycte for lax year 2004 are as fotlows:
Assessment date 2003
Proparty taxes levied Septlember 1, 2004
Tax bllis rendered October 1, 2004
Property laxes payable March 16, 2005
Delinquency date March 17, 2005
Tax sale date October 1, 2005
The following detalls tha due from other govemments by tund:
Nonmajor
General Governmenial
— Fund __ Fund
Slate aid to subdivislons $ 1,386,041 3 -
General Govemmen! programs 73,405 235,399
Public Safety programs 88,497 521,950
Public Works programs - 508,155
Alcohol & Dnug programs - 68,682
Disabilties and Special Needs programs - 40,860
Public W elfare programs - 52,855
Cuitural & Recreaticnal programs - 86,495
$_1.547 943 $_1514 386

Noles Receivable

Noles recelvable of $50,000 preseated In the General Fund relates {o a loanmade o the Lowcountry Reglonal Transportation Authority for
opemtional support and 15 to be repald as funds bacome available over the next two years.
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Ital Assets

Govemmental Activities

Capital assets not belng depreciated:
Land & Improvements

Construction In prograss

Total capital assets not belng depreclated

Other capltal assets:

Bulldings & improvements
Equipment

Tolal other caplial assets

Less accumulated depreciation
Other caplial assets, net

Total Govermmental Activities

For the caplital assets of the governmental activitles, depreclatton ls computed on the stralght-line melhod of depreciation over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from five to twenty-flve years. Depreclation expense for the year ended June 30, 2005

Year ended Juna 30, 2005

Balance Dlsposals Balance
June 30, 2004 Addiions or Transfers June 30, 200§
$22,207,332 $ 16,487,400 $ - $ 38,894,732

34,604,813 23,192.284 32,964 280 24832 617
56,611,845 39,679,684 32,964,280 83,527 349
90,544,033 30,904,080 199,154 121,248,959
37,868,487 3,030,841 9,525 455 31,473,673
128,512,520 33,034,721 9,724,609 152,722,632
58,070,622 8,649,840 6,851,838 59,868,624
70,441,898 25,284 881 2872771 92,854,008
$127,253 843 §_64,964,565 $36.837,081 $_158.381,357

was $8,649,840 and the accumulated deprediation as of June 30, 2005 was $59,868,624.

The deprediation expense was allocatad as follows:

General Governmeant
Publlc Safety

Publlc Works

Public Health

Public Weflare

Cultural and Recreation
Total

$ 2,673.880
3,655,700
560.873
212,824

1,548,553
$_8.649 840
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Capttal Assels — ed:
Business-type A J
Balance Disposals Balance

June 30, 2004 Additlons or Tranglers June 30, 2005
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land & Improvements $ 7.713,105 $ - $ - $ 7.713,108
Canstruction In progress - 783,697 - 753,687
Total capfial assats nol belng depreciated 7,713,108 753,687 - 8,466 802
Other capltat assets:
Bulldings & Improvements 9,098,445 - - 9,098,445
Equipment 3,312,259 871,102 657,187 3,526,174
Total other capltal assets 12,410,704 871,102 657,187 12,624,619
Less accumulated depreclation 3,085,841 747,787 461,904 4,201,704
Other capital assets, nel 8,414 863 123,335 195,283 8,342 915
Business-type actlvies capial assets, net  $16. 127 868 $____B877032 $_195 2R3 $._ 16309717

For the capital assets ol the business~type actvities, depraciation Is compirtad on the straight-ine method ol depreclalion over the
asUmaled useful llves, which range from five to twenty-fiva years, of the assets. Depreclation expenss for the year ended June 30, 2005
was $747,767 and the accumuleled depreciation as ot June 30, 2005 was $4,281,704.

The depreclation expense was allocated as follows:

Garaga $ 33200
Stormwater Utliity 173,348
L ady’s Island Alrport 75236
Hiton Head Alrport 465,983
Total $.747767

Long-Term Obligatons

Govemmental Business-type
Activitles Activities
General obligation bonds $ 106,175,000 $ -
TIF Revenue bonds 63,680,000 -
Note payable - 728,191
Capltat leases 298,150 - -
$_170,15315Q $__228191
General Qbligation s

in June 1899, the Counly Issued $9,100,000 In General Obligation boads, beaning Interest rates of 4.60% to 525% and with varying
mafunty dalas through 2008. The proceeds of thase bands were usad for various County projects inciuding the purchase of developrment
rights on Lemon Island, the construction of the Buckwalter Parkway, the minor renovations of vatious County bulidings and park faciities,
and other govemmental projects within the County.
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Long Term Obligations - Continued:

in Apiil 2001, the County Issued $30,000,000 In General Obligation bands, bearing Interest rates of 4.375% to 5.25% and with varying
maturity datas through 2020. The proceeds of these bonds were used as follows: $10,000,000 for the purchase of real proparty programs
as approved by referengum In November 2000; $10,000,000 1o pay the bond anticipation nates Issued May 2000; and $10,000,000 {or
various County projects Including the purchase of ielecommunications equipment, the construction of additlonal fadilliyes tor the Datention
Center, the construction of additional hangars at the Lady's \siand Alrport and for other govermmental prolects within the County.

In May 2002, the County issued $25,100,000 in General Obligaton bonds, bearing Inlerest rates of 3.0% to 4.875% and with varying
maturtty dates through 2022. The proceeds of these bonds were used as follows: $10,850,000 (o pay off the outstanding bonds and
refated cots of the 1983 General Obllgation Issue; and $14,000,000 for varlous County projects to Include the purchase of
tetecommunications equipment, improvemenls to varfous county parks, consiruction of solld wasle drop off centers and for other
govemment construction projects within the Caounty.

In June 2003, the County issued $25,500,000 (n General Obligation bonds, bearing interest rales of 2.0% to 5.0% and with varying
maturities through 2023. The proceeds of these bonds were used as follows: $10,000,000 for the purchass of rea! property program as
approvad by referendum in November 2000; $5,000,000 for paving and Improving roads within the County; and $10,500,000 for various
County projects including the purchase of telecommunications equipment; Improvements to vanous County parks, and for other
govemmental construction projects within the County.

in November 2004, the County Issued $30,500,000 In General Obligation bonds bearing interest rates of 3.0% to 5.0% and with varylng
maturities through 2025. The proceeds of these bonds werg used as fallows: $20,000,000 for the purchase of real property program as
approved by referendum In November 2000; and $10,500,000 for various County projects Including the purchase of various pubilc works
and public safety vehiclas; improvemenits Yo varlous County parks and for other govemmental construction projects within the County.

The 1989, 2001, 2002, 2003, and 2005 general obligation bonds are collaterallzed by the full (alth and credlt of the County and are
payable (rom ad valorem laxes.

General obligation bonds accounted for (n the County's Statement of Net Assels consist of the following at June 30, 2005:

Rates and Original Outstanding
Dascription Dates Maludty Issue at June 30, 2005
1999 Improvemeni Bonds 4.6% - 5.25% 2008 § 9,100,000 § 5,200,000
2/1 and 81
2001 County Bonds 4.375% - 5.25% 2020 30,000,000 25,620,000
211 and 8/1
2002 County Bonds 3.0% - 4.875% 2022 25,100,000 20,705,000
2/1 and 811
2003 County Bonds 2.0% -5.0% 2023 25,500,000 24,150,000
2/1 and 8/1
2005 County Bonds 3.0% - 5.0%
2/1 and 8/1 2025 30,500,000 500,0

$120.200.000 $106,175 000
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Long Term Obligations - Confinued:

A schedule of the debt service requirements assoclated with the general obligation bonds follows:

Flscal 1899 2001 2002 2003 2005

Year Improverment County County County County

Ending Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Total
2008 $ 2,035,200 $ 2,531,629 $ 2,631,100 $ 1,671,500 $ 1,385,875 $10,258,304
2007 2,056,400 2,521,504 2,616,600 1,706,500 1,685,875 10,586,879
2008 1,568,000 2,516,254 2,610,800 1,740,500 1,676,875 10,113,429
2009 - 2,493,004 2,598,225 1,773,500 1,667,875 9,532,604
2010 - 2,483,079 2,587,025 1,803,250 1,808,875 8,692,229
2011-20t5 - 12,371,945 7,024,012 9,810,312 9,568,000 38,775268
2016-2020 - 12,190,744 5,628,269 10,631,563 12,434,750 40,785,326
2021-2025 - - 2,266,000 6260312 22,581,250 31,107,562

Total 5,664,600 37,118,158 27,962,031 35,297,437 562,810,375 158,852,602

L ess amount
representing Interast 484, 800 11,498,158 7,257,031 11,147 437 22310375 52,677,602
Net $_5200000  $25620000  $20705000  $24,3150000  $30500000  $106.175000

Total interest pald on bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2005 was $3,959,473.

The followlng Is a schedule of pancipal payments for all generat cbilgation bonds:

Flscat Year
Ending Amount

2006 $ 5,530,000
2007 6,075,000
2008 5,850,000
2009 4,515,000
2010 4,840,000
2011-2015 22,275,000
2016-2020 29,750,000
2021-2025 27,340,000
Totat $ 106,375,000

Tax Increment Finanging Aevenus Bonds

in November 2002, the County Issued $40,000,000 in Tax Increment Financing Aevenue Bonds for the New River T(F Distric\, beadng
Inerest rates of 3.0% 0 5.5% and with varying maturlties through 2027. Tha proceeds of these bonds were used to provide Infrastructure
and ather Improvements within the Tax Inctemen) Financing Distict, Including butldings for both the Unlversity of South Carolina ~
Beaufort and the Technical College of the Lowcountry.

in Novembar 2003, the Gounty issued $23,680,000 In Tax (ncrement Aavenus Bonds foc the Bluffton TIF Dlstrict, bearing Interest rates of
2.0% 10 5.0% and with varying maturliies through 2028. The proceeds of these bonds were used 10 pay the outstanding bond anficipaton
note and o provids Infrastructure improvements within the Tax Increment Financing Distrct.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year anded June 30, 2005

Long Tenmn Obligations - Continued:

The following is a schedule of the debt service requirements:

Fiscal Year New Rliver Bluffton
Ending TIF TIF Total
2006 3 1,889,882 $ 1,276,080 $ 3,265,862
2007 2,189,883 1,263,380 3,483,263
2008 2,233,883 1,314,815 3,548,698
2009 2,286,382 1,334,955 3,621,337
2010 2,548,463 1,403,600 3,850,063
2011-2015 15,780,450 8,801,750 24,582,200
2016-2020 17,932,500 11,081,750 29,024,850
2021-2025 18,425,000 11,308,500 26,733,500
2026-2028 7.508.250 3,445,750 10,854,000
Total 70,853,052 41,270,580 112,163,673
Less amount representing Interest 30,893,092 17,590,580 48,483,673
Net $40.000,000 $23,680,000 $A3.680.000

Total Intaresi pakd on bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2005 as $3,130,962.

Note Payable

In Septamber, 2000, the County Issued a note for $1,325,000 for the balance owed on the purchase of land for the Hilton Head Alrport.
The note Is payable in annual payments of $205,838, Including interest at 5.1% through September, 2008.

Capital Leases

As of June 30. 2005, the County has one lease-purchase agreement to purchase communication equipment with a lease tarm of 10 years
and an Interest rate of 3.95%. The communlcation equipment under this capftal lease Is Included in the equlpment in Nots 5.

The following Is a schedule of future minlmum lease payments under this capital lease, together with the presént value of net minimum
lease payments at June 30, 2005.

Flscal Year

Ending Amount
2006 $ 40,0600
2007 40,000
2008 40,000
2009 40,000
2010 40,000
2011-2014 160,000
Total 360,000
Less amount caprasanting interesl 61,850
Net $____ 208150
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BSEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO TRE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yeoar ended Juna 30, 2005

Long Tenn Otligations - Continued:

The County records capltal lease payments as cumrent year expendltures in the fund to which the lease applles. The liabllity for capital
leases and the assoclated assets ase recorded.

Total Interest pald on capltalieases for the year ended June 30, 2005 was approxdmately $12,850 which was recorded as an expendinire
In the Speclal Revenue Fund for E-911 equipment.

Changes In Long-Term Liabliltles

Balance Balance
June 30, 2004 Additions Retirements June 30, 2005
General Obligation Bongs $ 80,960,000 $ 30.500,000 $ 5,285,000 $106,175,000
T{F Revanue Bonds 63,680,000 - - 63,680,000
Notes Payable 888,703 - 160,512 728,191
Capltal Leases 325300 - 27,150 298,150
Totals $ 145,854 003 $_230.500.000 $_5.472 662 $170.881,.341

Of this total of iong-tern (labllities, $5,861,921 Is due within the nexl fiscal year and $165,019,420 Is due In later years.

Seagment Iniormatbion for Busingss-tyne Activities

The County malintains {our Enterprise Funds which provide garage {vehicle repair), stormwater utiifty and alcport servicés. Segment
information is as follows:

Stormwaltsr Lady’s (sland Hilton Head
Garage utinty Alrpon Alrpont Totels
Operating Revenues $ 3,108,261 $ 4,207,825 $  47¢.341 $ 1,248,402 $ 9,035,829
Cost of Sales and Services 3,006,854 - 231415 - 3,238,369
Operating Expenses before 71.011 4,038,802 157,909 1,127,803 5,395,625
depreclation
Depreclation 33,200 173,348 75236 465,983 747,767

Operaiing Income (10s8) $ (2,.904) $ __{4405) $ 6,781 $___(345.9p4) $_(345 932)

Capital Conlributions . 87,800 14,280 138,726 240,806
Proparty/equlpment addiions - 442,900 - 428,202 871,102
Working Capltal 126,444 695,038 (510,654) (1.648,141) (1,337,313)
Tolal Assets 310,380 1,806,690 1,764,880 16,408,108 20,280,059
Long-term debt - - - 728,191 728,181
Assets-net of related debt 112,668 998,060 2,264,635 12,706,163 16,081,526
Unrastricted Nel Assats 126,444 695,038 (510,654) 1479443 (1,168,615)
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended June 30, 2005

QOperating L 685838

The County leases cenaln offlce space and machinery and equipment under cancelable operating leasss. Under the tems of the lease
agraements, the County’s obligation to continue rental obfigations is contingent upon the continued appropriation of funds by the County
for that purpose. Total rental expenses for the year ended June 30, 2005 were approxdmately $266,600. The mlnimum commiment for
operating 1ease paymenis for the next five years will be approximaiely $260,000 per yeas.

Dafamred Compensatlon Plans

All s1ate and local govemment employees can participate in a deferred compansaton plan cregted In accordance wilh Inlemal Revenue
Code 457. The plan, admlnistered by the stale public empioysee ratirement system through a state approved nongovemmeatal third
party, pemilts governmental employees to defer a portion of thelr salary untl) future years. The defarred compensation 18 not avallable to
an employee untll \ermination, retframaent, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

County employees may participate In a 401{k) deferred compensation plan avaliable o state and local governmental employees through
the state public employee reiremsnt systam. The 401(k) program Is admintstered by a state approved nongovernmentai third pasty.
Contributions by employees undar the 401 (k) progrem totaled approximately $300,000 for the yeer ended June 30, 2005. There are no
empioyer contributions made by the County to this plan. Particlpant acoount balances are nof Included In thase financial statements.

Retiremen! Plang

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASS) lasued Statement No. 27 entitled “Accounting for Pensions by Stale and Local
Govemment Employees” in November 1994. This Stalement suparsedes the requirements of GASB Statement No. 5. The foliowing
informallon ts provided in order to meet the disclosure requiremenls prescribed In paragraph 20 of GASB 27.

Substantialty all full {ime, permanent County employees are required by law (Title 9 of the S. C. Code of Laws) lo particlpate In statewide,
cost sharing muliipie-employer defined banefit penston plans adminlstered by the State Retirement System. Generally all employees, with
the exception of law enforcement personnet and certaln gthers, paritcipate In the South Carolina Astirement Systam (SCRS). Law
enforcement personnel and certaln other employees participate (n the South Caroltna Police Officars Retirement System (PORS).

Both the South Carolina Retirement Sysiem and Polics Officara Retiramant System offer retitement and disabliity benefits, cost of living
ad]ustments on an ad-hoc basls, Iife insurance benefils and survivor benefits. The Plan's provislons are established under Title 9 of the
SC Code of Laws.

A Comprehenslive Annaal Financlal Repon contalning financlal statements and required supplamentary Information for the South Carolina

Rellrament System and Police Officers Aetiremant System Is issued and publicly avallabte by writing the South Caroling Refirement
System, P.O. Box 11960, Columbla, SC 29211-1960.
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BEAUFRORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended June 30, 2005

Helremeni Plans — Continued:

Actuarially established employer contribution rates are as loliows:

Retiremem Proqram

Group
Untunded Accidental Lite
Accrued Death (nsurance
Normal Clabllity Program Program Total

SCRS

State & School 5.00% 2.55% N/A 15% 7.70%

Other 5.00% 1.70% N/A 5% 6.85%
PORS 8.43% 1.87% 20% .20% 10.70%

Contribution rales are developed by the SCRS and PORS using the entry age normmal cost method. The normal contribution rate W cover
current cost has been dotermined as a levet pecceniage of payroii. A market related valus of plan assats Is used for acluarial valuation
purposas. Gains and losses are reflacted In the unfunded accrued llabllities that are baing amortized by regular annual contributions as a
level percent of payroll within a 30-year period, assuming 4 1/4% annual payroll growth lor SCAS and PORS.

All employers contribute at the actuanally required contribution rates.

Contribution Informaton: SCRS PORS
Covered payroil $24,944,707 $ 12,100,679
Employee contiibutions 1431785 721,012
Employes contribution rate (based upon salary) 6.0% 6.5%
Employer contribution rate; includes group 6.85% 10.7%

life coverage In both SCRS and PORS and
accldental death coverage In PORS (based upon salaty)

The County’s employer contribution fo the SCRS {or the years endad June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 wers $1,669,955, $1,581,119, and
$1,502,947 respeciivety, which are equal to the required coniributions.

The County's emptoyer coatribution to the PORS for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $1,246,870, $1,1698,363, and
$1,135,473 respectively, which are equel 1o the required coniributions,

Vesting Requirements:

WIth five years of service, an employes Is enbited lo a deferrad annulty commencing af age 60 under the SCRS and atage 55 under the
PORS.

Retirement Bensfits:

Reatiramant benefits ol pasticipants In the SCRS and the PORS are currently determined as follows:
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year endad June 30, 2005

10. Rellrement Plans — Continued:

SCRS - The maximum manthly retirement allowance at age 65 or 30 years' service, ts generally determined by the following formula:

. Total 12 highest consecutive quarters of salary (divide by 3).
] Multiply the amount by 1.82%.

s Multiply the results by the total months of creditable sarvice.
« Divide results by 12.

PORS - The refiremont benefil al age 55 or 25 years' service Is generally determined conslstent with the aforementioned SCRS
formula, except that the average salary is multiplled by 2.14% for Class il members.

Eady Retirament - SCRS

Age Senvice reaulred Eary Retirement Penalty
at least 60 Nona 5% lor each year of age under 65
58 2§ 4% for each year of sendce under 30

Full formula retirement Is avallable with 30 years of service, regardless of age, or age 85.

There are no early retirament provislons under PORS. A membet must have 25 years service for full retirement or must be age 55 with §
yaars servce; both criteria provide for full formula benefit with no reduction.

Employees eliglble for service retirement may participate In the Teacher and Retiree Incentive Program (TERI). TERI particlpants may
relre and begln accumutaling retfremenl benefits on a defsrred basls without Yenminating employment for up to five ysars. Upon
termination of employment or at the end ol the TERI perlod, whichever s eartler, participants wlil begin recelving monthly service
refiroment benefits which will Incfude any cost of fiving adjustments granted dufing the TERI period. Becauss paricipants are considered
refired durdng the TER! period, they do not make SCRS contribullons, do not eam service credlt, and are ineligible to recelve group ille
Insurance benefits or disabllity retirermant baneflts.

Certaln Stale empioyess may eleci to particlpate in the Optional Aetirement Program (OAP), a defined contripution plan. The OAP was
established In 1987 under Title 9, Chapter 17, of the South Carolina Code of Laws, The ORP provides reliremen{ and death benefits
through the purchass of Individual fixed or vartable annulty contracts, which are Issued to, and become the propecy of the participants.
The Stale assumes no llablity for this plan ather than for payment of contibutions to designated Insurance compandes. To elect
partlclpation in the ORP, sliglble employses must lirevocably waive SCRS membership within thelr first ninety days of employment.

Undac State law, contributions to the OAP are required at the same rates as for the SCRS, 7.55 percent plus the retiree surchacge of 3.25
percent fcom the employer in Nscal year 2005.

None of the County's employsas have elected to be covered under optional retirement pians as ot June 30, 200S.

Disablity Rellrement

(n order to recelve Disabliity Retirement banefts, an employee musl have S years ol credited sefvice untess the injury is job related.

Reclplents ceceive a service retitament benefit based upon continued service to age 65 for SCRS and to age 55 tor PORS with no change
in compensation.
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BEAUFORTY COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended Juns 30, 2005

Retlrement Plans — Continued:
dental Death Program

Under this proviston of the PORS, an annuity Is provided to the widow (or the speclfied beneficlary) of a member whose death was while In
performance ol duty. The annulty would squal 50% of members compensation at the time of death.

Group Llfe insuraacs Beneflls
A lump-sum paymeant equal 1o one year's salary Is payable to the beneficlary upon the death of an active member with atleasi one year of
genvics. There Is no sarvice requirement for death resulting from actual performance of duties. Lump-sum paymenis of up 10 $3,000

(SCRS) or $4,000 (PORS) are payabie 1o & retiree’s beneficlary based upon years of servics at retirement.

Withdrawal of Employee Contribution

Accumulaled contribulions and crediied Intersst payable ace pald within § months but not lass than 90 days after termination of all coverad
emptoyment.

Post Retlrement Increase

Annual Increases In retirement benelits are calculated at 4% per year, provided the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the prior calendar year
was 3% or higher. If the CPllis lass than 3%, CP1 (s granted. Increases ara approved annually subject to compliance with funding policy.

Statewlde Plan Actuarial Information

The South Carolina Retiremen! Sysiems do not determine separate measurements of assets and pension benefil obllgations for individuat
employars. An actuarial vatuallon is performed for the systems annually. No changes In actuarial assumptions or benefit provisions have
occurred subsequent to July 1, 1995 The Interasi rate assumption for actuarial purposes s 7.25%. An assumpgon of future COLA
adjusiments was removed (SCRS and PORS) and the method of valving asseéts was changed from book value to a smoothed market
value.

The Syslems uss a projected beneflt mathod lor actuarial valuation with level percenlage entry age, normal cost and open-end unfunded
accrued liability. At fuly 1, 2003, based upon the actuadal method used for funding purposas:

SCRS PORS
Unfunded Accrued Liability 3 4,200,995,000 $ 233,480,000
Liquidation Perlod 25 years 11 years

Other Post Employmant Banefits

The County providas post-retirement health, life and dental care benefils, as per the requiremants of a local ordinance, for certaln retirees.

Substantialfy ail employaas wio rellre under the State retirements pians are aligible 10 continue thelr coverage wilh the County paying
100% of the premlum fof those with 28 or mare yeaers of service, 76% of the premium for those with 20 ysars to 27 years of service and
50% of Ihe premium for those with 15 years to 20 years of sendce.  As of year-end there were 63 emplayaes who had retired with the
County and were receiving heallh Insurance benefits. For the year anded June 30, 2005, the County recognized axpendttures of $109,152
for healthcare premlums.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year endad June 30, 2005

Accryed Compensated Absances and Other Benefits

Effective February 15, 1893, Beaufort County adopied a new leave pollcy for &l employees. The TOW P/SCA pollcy was replaced with &
polley granting Personal Leave Days and Personal Disabllity Leave. Under the new policy, employees were entitled lo a maximum
Personal Leave balance of 280 hours. Upon termination, smployees will be pald for all unused, unpald Personal Leave up to this
maximum. Tha llablllty recorded at Juna 30, 2005, o cover unused, unpald Perscnal Leave induding fringe benafils {otaled $2,342,788.
Of this amount, $2,274,866 [s considered a long-term (ablilty.

All leave hours accrued in excess of this Personal Leave maximum were accrued to the employee's Personal Disabllity leave account. A
maximum of 360 hours may be malntalned in an employse's Parsonal Disabliity (eave account. The only accrual to this balance accurs
whan an employee's Personal Leave account exceeds 280 hours, at which ime excess hours are “rolled over* to the Personal Disabliity
leave account. Personal Disabllity leave I 10 be used In the case of an exiended or life threatening finess. This eccouni can ondy be used
once all accrued hours tn the Personal Leave account have bean used to a balance of 80 hours or less. The amployee must present a
doctlor's statement verlfying the disabiliity or lliness In order to utilize hishar Parsonal Disabillly leave. Employees with remalning SCA
laave balances may retain those balances. The same rules goveming the use of Personal Disabliity leave apply 1o the uss of SCA Isave.
Upon terminallon of employmeni with Beaufort County, no payment for any unused SCA or Personal Disabllity leave wilt be made.

The County does not provide post employment health care benefits except those mandated by the Consolidated Omnlbus Budget
Reconclilaton Al (COBRA). The requlrements aslabitshed by COBRA are fully funded by smployses who eleci covarage under the Act,
and no direct costs are incurmed by the County.

Commitmertts and Contingencles

On November 22, 18381, the County entered Into a 20 year lease agreement with the Genaral Services Administraion of the U. S .
Govemmeni (GSA) for the use of the former Baaufon County Courthouss bullding by GSA as a Federal Courthousa. Under this
agreement, the County renovated the bullding In accordance with GSA specificalions al an approximate cost of $1,933,744. Flnancing
has been amanged (or the funding of these costs and the County has assigned ali ights and tnferest In the lease payments from GSA to
the lendet. The terms and required payments on the lease are the same as the terms and required payments on the loan. Afler the
payment of the loan and the end of the Jeasa larm, the asse! will remaln as property of the County.

Arphirage rules - State and local bonds Issusd after 1984 are sub|ect 10 arbltrage restrictions as enacted by the Federai Govermment. To
retaln the bonds' tax exempi status, local governments must comply with Lhe regulations as adopiad by the govemment expendall ol the
bond proceeds within designated periods which could be up to three years. The County Is in compliance with all arblirage rules.

As of Junie 30, 2005, the County has oulstanding conslructon contracts o} $4,764,122.

Risk Management and Litigakon

The County Is exposed to various risks of losses related 10 torts; thefis ol; damage lo and destruction of assets; errors and omisstons;
Injures to employeas; and nalural disaster. The County manages risk through employee educational and preventlon programs and

through the purchase of casualty and flabiiity insurance. All isk managemant acllviies are accounted for In the General Fund.

Expenditures and clalms are racognlzed when Il Is probable thal a loss has occurred and the amouni of the loss can be reasonabiity
estimated. (n determining claims, events lhat might create claims, bul for which nane have been reported are consldered.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended Juns 30, 2005

Risk Management and t ltigation — Continued:

The County Is @ party to several tawsuits which seek to recover property taxes pald under protest and 10 overtum propenly soid at “tax
sales."

The County’s attomey estimales that the amount of actual or potenyal clalms agalnst the County atJune 30, 2005 will not materially affect
the financlal conditions of the County. Therefore, the General Fund comalns no provision for estimaled ¢claims.

Fund Equlty Deficits and Subsaguent Evenis

AtJune 30, 2005, thers were several Indlvidual agency accounts with defictt balances. However, these Individual accounts are offset by
postive balances In other agency accounts hatd for the same or goveming agency.

in November 2005, the County Issued $25,000,000 in Bond Anticipation Notes with an Interest rate of 4.5% and & maturity ol Decembar
16, 2006. The proceeds of these noles will be used for road construction projects In the County
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evenuss
Taxes
Current taxes
Homestead exemption
Dalinquent taxes
Aulomobile taxes
Penaltias

Licenses and Permits
Building permits
Efectriclan licensas
Moblle home psmmits
Mardage licenses
Animal licenses
Other licenses
Cable franchlise fees
Business ltcenses

Intergovemmental
State ald 1o subdivisions
Merchants' Inventory tax
Manutaciurers tax
Motor caster tax
Payments In lisu of laxas
Veterans Office stipend
Emergency Preparedness
Public Delender stipend
Registration and Election
Tax form stipand
Salary supplements
Stale ald (o libraries
State aid to mapping
Cther state grants
Pallution control penaities

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005

Schedule A-1
Sheet 1

Vardance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 38,668,045 40,390,231 1,722,186
800,000 726,632 (73,368)
1,800,000 2,081,030 281,080
3,400,000 3,669,781 269,781
590,000 551,510 {38,490)
45,258,045 47,419.184 2,161,139
1,800,000 2,437,571 637,571
17,500 17,205 (295)
3,750 2,673 (1,077)
119,564 76,835 {39,728)
7,200 8.360 1,160
35,600 89,425 53,825
235,000 282,468 47,468
458,000 476,457 18,457
2,676,614 3,393,894 717,380
5,350,000 5,446,441 96,4414
143,724 143,724 -
28,000 28,851 B5t1
36,000 36,699 699
77,000 71,192 {5,808)
7,082 6,601 (481)
50,495 98,497 48,002
88,581 72,451 (16,130)
12,500 11.848 (652)
3.457 3,744 (313)
7.875 7,875 -
87,572 116,218 18,646
10,000 7,000 (3,000)

- 5,000 5,000

20.000 18,207 (4,783)
5,932,286 6,073,748 141,462

-56-



Chargas (or Services
Register of Deeds fees
Sheritfs foes
Probate Court fees
Magistrates' Clvil (ees
Clerk of Gourt fees
Famlly Court foas
Master In Equity fees
Tresurer's fees
EMS feas
DSO feas
Rezoning/CRB lees
Vital statistics
Anlma¢ Sheiter feas
Recreation fees
Sheriff's sendcs contracts
Boarding of prisoners
Telephone relmbursements
Other lees and raimbursements

Flnes and Forfeltures
Clerk of Court fines
Maglstrates' Court finas
Ubrary fines
Other fines
Forfeitures

Intarest

Miscellaneous
Bental of county property
Sale of county property
Misceltaneous

Total Revenues

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF AEVERUES - AUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005

-67 -

Schedule A-1

Sheet 2
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actua (Unfavorable)
4,648,000 7143589 $ 2,494,589
80,000 84 819 4,819
421,224 405,500 (15,724)
250,000 212,722 (37,278)
123,000 158,248 35,249
238,600 307,637 69,137
175,000 241,639 66,639
25,000 16,812 (8,188)
1,121,050 1,066,090 (54,960)
10,000 23,227 13,227
2,862 3,325 463
32,000 37,310 5,310
35,850 36,075 225
368,000 341,143 (26,857)
1,961,563 1,915,731 (45.832)
53,000 111,295 57,305
29,500 22,706 6,794)
37,542 52,062 14,520
9,614,081 12,179,830 2,565,849
66,000 8,954 (57,046)
745,000 755,274 10,274
80.000 110,462 30,462
- 12 12
5,000 7,527 2,527
896,000 882,229 (13,771)
204,200 64,028 (140,172)
136,000 173,004 37.004
60.000 104,575 44 575
23,000 34,031 11,031
219,000 311,610 92,610
64,800,226 $§ 70324723 $ 5,524,497




Expenditures
General Govemment

County Coungil
Parsonnel
Purchased Services
Supplies
Capltal
Other

Auditor
Personnsl
Purchased Services
Supplies
Capital

Treasurer
Personnel
Purchased Services
Supplies
Capital

Clerk of Coun
Personnel
Purchased Services
Supplles
Capital

Femily Coun
Personnel
Purchased Sewvicas
Supplies
Caphal

Probate Court
Personnel
Purchased Services
Supptes
Capital

Schedule A-2

Sheet 1
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CARGOLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual Encumbrances  (Untavorabie)

$ 386,843 § 378,227 § S 8,616

156,985 153,128 - 3,860

31,729 30,546 626 557

18,985 16,922 1,974 89

48,050 - - 48,050

642 502 578,820 2,600 61,172

402,577 379,868 - 22,709

66,028 54,828 - 11,200

11,363 9,858 626 879

13,297 12.963 - 34

493,285 457.517 626 35,122

570,840 560.118 - 10,722

67.170 63,159 - 4,011

18,150 17,754 - 396

16,474 16,014 - 460

672,634 657,045 - 15,589

379,609 387,840 - (8,231)

284,208 295,749 - (1.541)
13,900 24,075 - (10,175)
3.850 3,820 16,000 (16.870)
691,567 711,484 16,000 {35,917)

281,647 261,170 - 20,477
45,096 54,125 - (9.029)

9,151 8,321 - 830

2,000 - 1,973 27

337,894 323,616 1,973 12,305

662,989 654,243 - 8,746

79,975 73,104 - 6.871

13,232 10,274 - 2,858

9,560 3,006 6,508 46

765,756 740,627 6,508 18,821

-58 -



Coroner
Personnel
Purchased Senvices
Supplles

Magistralas Couft
Parsonnel
Purchased Servicas
Supplies
Capital

Maaster In Equity
Personnel
Purchased Services
Supplles

Ganeral Subsidies

County Adminlstrator
Personnel
Purchased Services
Supplies

Capltaf
Other

Housing Coordinator
Personnet
Purchased Services
Supplies
'Oﬂser

Publlc information Officer
Personnet
Purchased Sendcas
Suppiles

Schedule A-2

Sheet 2
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROUNA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Varlance
Favorable
Budgel Actugl Encumbrances  (Unfavorable)
$ 143321 $ 148315 $ -3 {4,994)
115,765 128,755 - (12,890)
10,813 6,640 - 4,173
269,899 283,710 - (13,811)
1,034,208 924,424 - 109,784
155,690 144,730 - 10,969
62,733 28,034 37,179 (3.380)
37,406 34,368 8,000 (4,962)
1,290,046 1,132,456 45 179 112,411
214,010 219,734 - (5,724)
14,050 7,821 - 3,229
4,000 2,300 5,000 {3,300)
229,060 229,855 5,000 (5,7985)
384,862 385,660 - (798)
224,874 250,675 - (25,801)
89,613 91,978 - {2,3685)
7,870 6,928 - 1,542
1,512 1,512 - -
1,202 - - 1,202
325,071 350,493 - (25.422)
34,619 32,748 - 1,871
800 106 - 694
430,000 - 430,000 -
465,419 32,854 430,000 2,565
62,083 56,091 6,892
17,250 4755 4,925 7,570
16,737 7.458 313 8,068
96,870 68,304 5,238 23,428
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County Attomey
Personnel
Purchased Semvices
Supplles
Capital

Intemal Audilor
Personnel
Purchased Services
Suppltes
Capltal

Public Defender
Personnel
Purchased Services
Supplles

Vater Regisiration and Elections
Personnag)
Purchased Services
Supplies
Captial

Assessor
Personnel
Purchased Services
Suppiles
Capital

Register of Daeds
Personnel
Purchased Services
Supplles
Capltal

Schedule A-2

Sheet 3
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Varance
Favorable

Budget Actual Encumbrances  (Unfavorable)

$ 182,037 § 175,936 $ - § 6,101
207,015 403,232 - (186,217)

5,613 4,671 313 629

1.697 1,270 - 427
366,362 585,109 313 {188,060)

128,830 120,054 - 8,776

8,075 7,872 - 203

9,564 8,614 940 10

7,450 7,392 - 58

153,919 143.932 940 9,047
498,262 522,320 - (24,058)

34,598 26,547 8,048

6,500 4,615 626 1,259
539,357 553,482 626 (14,751)
252,159 274,620 - (22,461)
163,918 231,496 1,840 (69.518)

36,040 34,310 1,566 164

49,315 48,625 - 690
501,432 689,051 3,506 (91.125)
1,451,990 1,539,085 - (87,105)

327,024 236,880 - 90,144

31,100 21,751 2,782 6,567

8,016 7,795 - 21

1,818,130 1,805,521 2782 9.827

434,260 427,447 - 6,813

198,238 141 171 46,337 10,730

20,000 19,737 - 283

8,281 2,058 6,153 73

660,779 590,410 52,450 17,879
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Development Board
Other

Laglslative Delegation
Personnel
Purchased Sarvicas
Supplies

Grants Management
Personnel
Purchased Services
Supplles

Zoning and Development
Personnel
Purchased Services

Supplles

Codes Enforcement
Personcel
Purchased Servicas
Supplies

Planning and Comprefiensive Plan
Peraonnel
Purchased Servicas
Supplies
Capital

GIS
P ersonneé)
Purchased Sesvices
Supplles
Capftal

Schedule A-2

Sheet 4

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Varlance
Favorable
Budget Actust Encumbrances  (Untavorablé)

$ 270,000 $ 270,000 - $ -

38,001 ag,732 - 731)

8,199 1.840 - 6.259

2,038 391 - 1,647

48,238 41,063 - 7,175

74,186 54,627 - 18,558

2,595 697 - 1,898

805 64 - 741

77,586 55,388 ~ 22,198
185,606 187,044 - (1.438)

18,250 18,667 . 1,583

5,412 4,838 313 261

209,268 208,545 313 406

162,033 159,442 - 2,591

14,633 10,756 - 3,877
5,856 5,759 2.870 (2,973)

182,322 175,857 2,870 3.495
577,385 583,273 - (5.888)

266,053 106,849 150,000 9,204

0,653 9,632 . 21

6,778 - 8,778 -

859,869 699,754 156,778 3,337
207,989 211,408 . 3.417)

34,832 34,555 - 277

9,500 7.271 313 (,816

15,511 15,474 - 37
267,832 268,706 313 (1,187)

-61 -

(s ]



Schedule A-2

Shest 5
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Varnance
Favorable
Budget Actual Encumbrances  (Unfavorable)
DA-Community Services
Personnel 3 162,026 $ 166,130 § - ¢ (4,104)
Purchased Services 14,360 8.509 - 5.851
Supplles 3,050 1,790 - 1,260
179,436 176,429 - 3.007
Staff Services
Personne} 253,809 271,564 - (17.755)
Purchased Semvices 40,569 25,559 - 15,010
Supplles 23,800 7,457 596 15,747
318,178 304,580 586 13.002
Employse Senvices
Personnel 407,985 403,254 - 4731
Purchased Services 417,588 339,583 - 78,405
Suppliss 21,259 18,401 - 2,858
Capital 4,400 4,368 - 32
851,632 765,606 - 86.026
Records Management
Personnel 118,408 118,815 - 407)
Purchased Sanvices 27,105 20,996 - 6,108
Supplies 18,982 16.478 313 2,191
Capltal 2,452 1,226 - 1,226
166,947 157,515 313 9,119
Controlier
Personnal 103,485 105,379 - (1,894)
Purchaged Senvices 4,540 2,515 - 2,025
Supplies 1,750 1,564 - 186
109,775 109,458 - 317
Flnance -
Personnel 260,015 207,865 - 52,050
Purchased Senicas 86,090 59,372 - 26,718
Suppites 21,903 11,145 . 10,758
Capltal 2,000 1,098 - 2
370,008 280,480 - 89.528
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Sheet 6
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Vardance
Favorable
Budget Aclual Encumbrances _(Unfavorable)
Purchasing
Parsonnel $ 175,468 § 163,668 $ - 8 11,800
Purchased Sarvices 23,052 23,121 - (69)
Supplles 7,150 4,430 626 2,04
205,670 191,219 626 13,825
-Business License
Pessonnel 88,082 90,256 - (2,174)
Purchased Servicas 15,551 11,417 - 4,134
Supplles 4,582 3,282 313 987
108,215 104,955 313 2,947
Management Information Systems
Personne) 1,039,690 1,038,555 - 135
Purchased Senices 284,142 277337 6,000 805
Supplies 57,007 54,876 1,879 152
Caplial 72,858 78,5685 - {5,927)
1,453,497 1,450,453 7,879 {4,835)
DA-Public Servicas
Persornel 128,531 124,356 - 4,175
Purchased Services 12,700 9,984 - 2,718
Supplies 2,450 2,256 - 194
143,681 138,506 - 7,085
Totay General Government 16,557,169 15,616,654 743,782 196,732
Publlc Safety
Sheriff's Office
Personnel 11,447,101 10,985,576 - 451,525
Purchased Services 1,708,762 1,183,807 17,861 496,694
.Supplies 958,174 - 855,501 . 21,180 -82,493
Capital 1,112,164 928,612 120,863 62,609
15,227,221 13,973,596 160,004 1,083,621
Emergency Management
Personnel 380,437 385,162 - (14,725)
Purchased Services 117,052 110814 - 6,238
Supplies 18,0886 18,859 313 1,714
Capltal 9,719 8,959 - 721
Emargancy operations 78,539 - (79,539)
526,094 611,372 313 (85,591)




Communications
Personnel
Purchased Services
Suppliss
Capltal
Other

£Emergency Medical Services
Personnet
Purchased Sesvices
Supplies
Capitai
Other

Detention Center
Parsonnel
Purchased Senicss
Supplies
Capital

Buftding Codes and Inspections
Personnef
Purchased Services
Supplies
Capital

Pubilc Safety Subsidias

Total Public Safety

Schedule A-2

Sheal 7
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Year ended June 30, 2005
Varlance
Favorabie

Budget Actual Encumbrances  (Unfavorable)

$ 2173001 $§ 1,871,619 § - $ 202282
1,840,780 1,597,289 - 243,491

967,565 52,486 7.478 37,591

52,304 31,450 20,848 6

75,000 75,000 - -

4,239,550 3,727,854 28,326 483 370

4,165,650 3,885,518 - 280,131

362,392 292,845 - 69,447
233,097 239,243 626 (6.772)

10,146 10,142 - 4

110,000 110,000 - -

4,881,285 4,537,849 626 342,810

3,836,055 4,000,017 - (163,962)
1,086,964 1,162,281 - (75,317)
136,289 149,855 - (13,566)
10,120 11,842 - (1,722)
5.069,428 5,323,895 - __(254,567)

987,831 988.896 - (1,065)

109,862 92,273 - 17.569

30,227 36,489 - (6,262)

17,141 3,305 13,818 18

1,145,061 1,120,963 13,818 10,280

6,250 6,250 - -

31,094,889 29,301,879 209,087 1,589,923




Public Works
Facilittes Malntanance
Parsonnel
Purchased Services
Supplles
Capital

Public Works
Personnel
Purchased Services
Supplies
Capital
Other

Englnesiing
Personnel
Purchased Services
Supplles
Capital

Public Works Subsidies

Total Public Works

Publlc Health
Animal Shelter and Conirol
Personnel
Purchased Services
Supplies

Schedule A-2
Sheet 8
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCREDULE OF EXPENDITUHRES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Yaar ended June 30, 2005
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual Encumbrances  (Unfavorable)
$ 2,118,204 2,041,071 & - 8 77,133
1,753,373 1,902,251 - (148,878)
328,828 323,145 - 5,683
4,075 8,338 - (4,263)
4,204,480 4,274,805 - (70,325)
1,757,280 1,566,365 - 180,915
426,187 426,058 - 78
191,895 232,547 - (40,652)
3,164 3,156 - 8
435,800 529,564 - (83,784)
2,814,276 2,757,680 - 56,586
662,828 715,772 - (52,844)
38,480 44,040 - (5.560)
19,150 25,526 939 (7,315)
17,842 55,039 - (37,197)
738,300 840,377 839 {103,016)
23,800 24,631 - (831)
7,780,856 7,897,503 939 (117 586)
464,394 454,782 - 8,612
54,898 57,045 - (2,137)
114,116 118,060 - (3,844)
633,408 629,887 - 3,521
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Sheet 9
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLUINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Yaar ended June 30, 2005
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual Encumbrances _{Unfavombie)
Masquito Contro)
Personnel $ 724,055 § 689,309 § - $ 34,746
Purchesed Services 195,507 137,430 8,200 49,877
Supplles 456,796 457 961 313 (1,478)
Capital 45,289 36533 8,593 163
1,421,847 1.321,233 17,106 83,308
Public Heallh Subsidies 221,208 221,223 - (15)
Tolal Public Health 2,276,263 2,172,343 17,106 86.814
Publlc Welfare
Vetorans Affalrs Office
Personnel 116,164 121,234 - (2,070)
Purchased Services 24,459 21,653 - 2,806
Supplies 2,765 2,267 - 488
146,388 145,154 - 1.234
Departmen of Social Ssrvices
Pesonnel 37,078 37,580 - (512)
Purchased Services 151,400 135,715 - 15,685
Supplies 1,800 1,780 - 10
Other 60,000 60,000 - -
250,278 235,095 - 15,183
Public Weffare Subsidies 339,417 336,916 - 2,501
Total Public Welfare 736,083 717,165 - 18,818
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Sheal 10
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGEY AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
Yeas ended June 30, 2005
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual Encumbrances  (Unfavorabis)
Cuitural and Recreation
Libraries
Personnel $ 2226407 3§ 2,212,158 § - $ 14,248
Purchased Servicas 512,703 485,578 - 17,125
Suppties 596,847 580,374 313 6,260
Caplal 10,880 - 8,514 1,166
3,346,737 3,298,110 9,827 38,800
Parks and Lelgure Services
Personnel 2,059,471 1,819,435 - 140,038
Purchased Services 1,197,148 1,208,813 - (11,667)
Supplles 109,150 127,013 - (17,863)
Capital 25210 25,120 - 81
Other 124,000 124,000 - -
3,514,977 3,404,380 - 110,587
Total Cultural and Recreation 6.861.714 6,702,500 9,827 149,387
Tolal Expendituras § 65306073 § 82,408,044 § 974741 $ 1,024,188
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Schedule B-1

June 30, 2005
Total
Speciat Debt Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Service Projects Gavemmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and equity in pooled cash and investraents $ 17,875,788 § 9,140,602 $ 133026681 § 402327071
Receivables, net 1,445,606 153,843 - 1,599,449
Due from other governmanls 1,514,386 - - 1,514,386
Prepaid expenditures 801 - - 801
Tolal Assets $ 20836581 § 9302445 § 13,302,681 $ 43,441,707
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabliities:
Accounts payable $ 2312891 ¢ - 8 544,322 §  2,857.213
Accrued payroll 67,768 - 1,961 69,729
Due {0 others 250,510 - 250,510
Deferred property tax revenues 24413 22,022 - 46,435
Deferred revenues 15,230 - - 15,230
Totat Liabilities 2,670,812 22,022 546,283 3,239117
fFund Equity:
Reserved for encumbrances and carry forwards 2,373,406 - 2,722673 5,096,079
Reserved for capital projects - - 10.033,725 10,033,725
Reserved for debl service - 9,280,423 - 9,280,423
Unreserved fund balances 15,792,363 - - 15,792,363
Total Fund Equity 18,185,769 9,280,423 12,756,398 40,202,590
Tolal Liabilities and Fund Equity $§ 20836581 $ 9,302,445 § 13,302,681 §$ 43441,707
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Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and Pemmlts
Intergovemmenteal
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeltures
{merest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenuas

Expendilues

General Govermment
Public Safety
Public Woria
Public Health
Public Welfare
Cultural and Recreation
Debt Service - Princlpal
Doabt Service - Interest and Fees
Capital Projects

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenuas Over (Under) Expenditures
Ofther Fj ng Sources (Uses

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financlng Sources (Useas)

Net Change In Fund Balances

Fund Balances at the Beginning of the Year

Schedule B-2
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
Total
Special Debt Caphal Nonmajor
Revenue Senvice Projects Governmential
Funds Funds Funds Funds

3 8,648,605 § 9,262,206 153,471 $ 18,064,282
5,068,755 - - 5,068,755
15,583,514 48,608 278,663 15,808,783
3,278,692 - - 3,278,692

38,522 246,778 103,310 388,610

323,667 - 10,000 333,667
33,171,324 8,556,590 545,444 43,272,358
9,327,350 - - 9,327,350
3,046,842 - - 3,046,842

9,936,401 - - 9,836,401
4,958,753 - - 4,858,753
231,303 - - 231,303

379,611 - - 379,611

- 5,285,000 - 5,285,000

- 7,100,535 - 7,100,535

- - 5,825,387 5,825,397

27,880,260 12,385,535 5,825,397 46,091,192
5,291,064 (2.829,945) (5,279,953) (2,818,834)
1,334,386 4,428,366 988,813 6,751,565
(4.690,824) (2,881,732) (7.582,556)
(3,356.438) 4,428,366 (1,802,819) (830,991)
1,934,626 1,598,421 (7,182,872) (3,649,825)
16,231,143 7,682,002 19,839,270 43,852,415

$ 18,165,769 $§ 9,280,423 $ 12,756,998 $ 40,202,590

Fund Balances al the £nd of the Year
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ASSETS
Equity In pooled cash and investments
Recetvables, net
Due from other governments
Prspayments
Total agsets

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:

Acoounts payable

Accruad payroll

Due to others

Deferrad property tax revenues
Deferred revenues

Total lisbllites

Fund Equity:
Fuad balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for Special Revenue Funds

Total liablliies and fund equity

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 30, 2005

General Public Public Alcohol
Govemment Safety Works and Drug
Programs Programs Programs Programs
$ 39460803 3% 1568912 $ 7,242035 9 (62,720)
345,161 772,478 224,338 41,314
235,399 521,950 508,155 68,882
- - 801 -
$§ 4527363 § 2863040 $ 7975329 % 47 2768
$ 271,308 § 128,977 $ 16352318 $ 7,243
1,382 7,032 11,889 9,354
- 207,433 - -
6.098 - 18,315 -
276,789 343,442 1,665,522 16,5587
128,571 453,856 1,758,629 1,878
4,120,003 2,065 642 4,551,178 28,800
4,248,574 2,519,589 6,308,807 30,679
$ 4527363 $ 2,663,040 $ 7875329 § 47,276
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Schedule C-1

Disabilties Cutiura)
and Spedal Public and
Needs Welfare Recreational
Programa Programs Programs Total

$ 331814 § 27407 $ 4821537 § 17.875788

29,721 24,968 7,926 1,445,606
40,850 52,855 86,495 1,514,386
- - - 801

$ 402385 $ 105230 $ 4915958 §$ 20,836,581

$ 11798 $ 37332 § 120814 § 2312891

35,194 888 2,029 67,768
43,077 - - 250,510
- - - 24,413

- 15,230 - 15,230
190,069 53,450 122,943 2,670,812
25,779 4,892 - 2,373,406
186,537 46,888 4,793,015 15,792,363
212,316 51,780 4,793,015 18,165,769

§ 402385 $ 105,230 $ 4,915,958 § 20,836,581
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Sheet 1
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
AtLL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
Genergl Govemmeni Programs
Varance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabls)

Revenues:

Taxes $ 2,105,063 $ 2,164,735 $ 59,672

Ucansges and pemnits 475,000 797,001 322,001

Intergovemmaental 7,303,400 8,205,107 901,707

Charge for services 370,000 689,979 319,879

Fines and forfiatures - - .

[nterast 12,000 13,559 1,589

Miscellaneous 40,000 77,551 37,551
Total Revenues 10,305,463 11,047,932 1,642,469
Expenditures:

General Government 8,735,783 9,327,350 (591.567)

Public Safety - - -

Public Works - - -

Public Health - - -

Public Welfare - - -

Cultural and Recreation - - -
Total Expenditures 8,735,783 9,327,350 (591,567)
Excess of Revenuss Over (Under) Expenditures 1,569,680 2,620,582 1,050,902
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 2,000 2,000 .

Transters oul {1,815,587) (1,827,238) (11,651)
Total other inancing sources (uses) {1,813,587) (1,825,238) (11,651)
Net Change In Fund Balances (243,907 795,344 1,039,251
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 3,453,230 3,453,230 -
Fund Balances al End of Year $ 3209323 $ 4248574 § 1,039,251
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF AEVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

Schedule C-2

Revenuss:
Taxes
Ucenses and permiis
Intergovernmental
Charge lor services
Flnes end forfietures
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
General Govammenl
Public Sataty
Public Works
Public Health
Public Welfare
Cutura) and Recreation

Total Expendituras

Excess of Revenuss Over (Under) Expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers In
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net Change In Fund Balances

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year

Fund Balances al End of Year

-73-

Sheet 2
Public Safety Programs
Vasance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

- 8 - $ .

- 39,207 39,207

543,704 1,460,152 916,448
843,553 846,307 102,754
145,000 229,569 84,569

- 3,842 3,842

- 67,147 67,147
1,532,267 2,746,324 1,214,067
2,508,313 3,046,842 (538,529)
2,508,313 3,046,842 {538,529)
(976.056) {300,518) 675,538
217,807 213,326 (4,481)
217,807 213,326 (4,481)
(758,249) (87,192) 671,057
2,606,790 2,606,780 -
1,848,541 § 2,519,508 § 671,067




Schedule C-2
Shest 3
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
ALl SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
Publlc Works Programs
Varance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabla)
Revenusas:
Taxes $ 6,115,063 § 6,483870 $ 368,807
{lcoenses and pamlts 1,630,000 1,860,800 830,900
Imergovemmenial 1,452,800 1,733,828 261,028
Charge foy services 1,117,000 1,337,508 220,509
Flnes and forfletures - - -
Interest 20,000 12,578 (7.421)
Miacellansous 51,230 58,328 47 098
Total Revenues 9,786,083 11,527,014 1,740,921
Expenditures:
General Govemment - - -
Publlc Safety - - -
Public Warks 12,705,533 9,936,401 2,769,132
Publlc Health - - .
Publlec Weltara - - -
CuHural and Recreation - - -
Total Expenditures 12,705,533 9,936,401 2,769,132
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (2,919,440) 1,590,613 4,510,053
Other finencing sources (usas):
Transters In - - -
Transfers ot (1,048,100) (1,435,316) (387,216)
Total other financing sources (uses) (1.048,100) (1,435,318) (387,218)
Net Change In Fund Balances (3.967,540) 155,297 4,122,837
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 6,154,510 6,154,510 -
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 2,186,870 § 6,309,807 § 4,122,837
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Sheat 4
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES (N
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

Public Haalth - Alcohol and Drug Prograrms

Variance
Favorable
Budge! Actual (Untavorable)

Revenues:

Taxes $ -8 -3 -

Licenses and permits - - -

Intéergovernmenta) 676,003 707,692 31,689

Charge for sendces 110,000 139,244 29,244

Fines and forfletures - - -

Interest - - -

Miscellaneous - - -
Totael Revenues 786,003 846,636 60,933
Expenditures:

General Government - -

Public Safaty - - -

Public Works - - -

Public Health 1,090,061 1,004,500 86,461

Public Wellare - - -

Cultural and Racreation - - -
Total Expenditures 1,090,861 1,004,500 86.461
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expendilures (304,958) (157,564) 147,394
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 304,958 188,243 (116,715)

Transfers out - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 304,858 188,243 (116,715)
Nei Change (n Fund Balances - 30,679 30,679
Fund Balancas at Beglnning of Year - -
Fund Balancas at Eng of Year $ - 8 30,679 § 30.679
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Schedule C-2
Sheel 5
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

Public Haalth-Disablliies and Special Needs Programs

Variance
Favorabie
Budget Actual (Untavorable)
Revenues:
Texses $ - 8 - 8 -
Licenses and permtis - - -
(ntergavermmental 2,955,068 3,033,623 78,5585
Charge for sarvices 155,200 143,084 (11,216)
Finas and forfietures - - -
interest 12,000 894 (11,106)
Miscellansous 32,308 38,536 7,230
Total Revenuss 3,154,574 3,218,037 63,463
Esxpenditures:
Generel Govemment - - -
Public Safety - - -
Public Works - - -
Public Health 4,142,586 3,854,253 188,333
Publlc Weiltare - - -
Cuitural and Recreation - - -
Total Expenditures 4,142,586 3,854,253 188,333
Excass of Revenues Over (Under) Expendilures (988,012) (736,216) 251,796
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in 906,734 833,855 (72,878)
Transfers out - - -
Tolal other financing sources (uses) 506,734 833.855 (72,879)
Net Changs In 'Fungd Balances (81,278) 97,639 178,917
Fund Bafances at Beginning of Year 114,677 114,877 -
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 33,389 § 212,316 $ 178,917
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Schedule C-2

Sheet 8
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
Public Welfare Programs
Varnance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Untavorable)

Revenusas:

Taxes $ - § - $ -

Licenses and permits - - .

Intergovernmental 169,000 117,464 (51,536)

Charge for sernvices - 21,669 21,669

Flnes and torfietures - - -

Interast - - -

Miscsllaneous 33,000 18,544 (14,456)
Totaf Revenues 202,000 157,677 (44,323)
Expenditures:

Genaral Government - - -

Public Safety - - -

Publlc Works - - -

Public Haealth - - -

Public Walfare 296,813 231,303 65,510

Cultura) and Recreation - -
Total Expenditures 296,813 231,308 65,510
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (94,813) (73.626) 21,187
Other flnancing sources (uses):

Transters In 81,000 85,744 14,744

Transfers out - (100) (100)
Total other financing sources (uses) 81.000 05,644 14,644
Nat Changa in Fund Balancas (13.813) 22,018 35,831
Fund Balances at Baeglnning of Year 28,762 29,762 -
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 15,849 § 51,780 $ 35,831




Schedule C-2

Sheet 7
BEAUFOHT/COUN‘N. SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF AEVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
Cultural and Recreation Programs
Varance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Aevenues:

Taxes $ - 8 - $ -

Ucenses and permits 1,148,000 2,371,647 1,223,647

Infergovemmental 400,532 325,648 (74,884)

Charge for services - - -

Flnes and forflelures - - -

Interest - 7.548 7,548

Miscallaneous - 22,581 22,561
Total Revenues 1,548 832 2,727,404 1,178,872
Expenditures:

General Government - - .

Fubllc Safety . - -

Public Works - - -

Pubiic Heelth - . .

Public Welfare - - -

Cultural and Recreation 1,089,465 379,611 709,854
Total Expenditures 1,089,465 379,611 709,854
Excass of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 459,067 2,347,793 1,888,726
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers In - 1,218 1,218

Transfers oul o (480,000) (1,428,170) (338,170)
Total other financing sources (uses) (490,000) (1,426,852) (936,852)
Net Change In Fund Balances {30,833 20,841 951.774
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 3,872,174 3,872,174 -
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 3,841,241 § 4,793,015 $ 951,774
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Sheet 8
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Year erded June 30, 2005
Totals
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:

Taxes $ 8,220,126 $ 8,648,605 $ 428,479

Llcansss and pamits 2,853,000 5,088,765 2,415,755

Intergovemmenta) 13,500,507 15,583,514 2,083,007

Charge for 3anvices 2,585,753 3,278,692 682,839

Fines and forfisturas 145,000 229,569 84,569

Interest 44,000 38,522 {5.478)

Miscellaneous 156,536 323.667 167,131
Total Revenues 27.314,922 33,171,324 5,856.402
Expendituras:

General Govemment 8,735,783 9,327.350 (591,567)

Public Safety 2,508,313 3,046,842 (538,529)

Public Works 12,705,533 9,936,401 2,769,132

Publlc Heailth 5,233,547 4,958,753 274,794

Public Welfare 296,813 231,303 65.510

Cuttural and Recreation 1,089,465 379,611 709,854
Total Expanditures 30,569,454 27,880,260 2,688,194
Excess of Revenuas Ovear (Under) Expaenditures (3.254,532) 5,291,064 8,545,586
Other financing sources (uses):

Translers in 1,512,499 1,334,386 (178.113)

Transfers out (3.353,687) (4,690.824) (1.337,137)
Total other financing sources (usas) (1,841,188) (3,356,438) {1,515.250)
Net Change In Fund Balances (5,095,720) 1,934,626 7.030,346
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 16,231,143 16,231,143 -
Fund Balancas al End of Yaar $ 11,135423 $ 18,165769 $ 7,030,348
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF AEVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - GENERAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Year ended June 30, 2005

Sheldon
General Accommodations  Def Webb Purchase of Economic
Govemmant Tax Development  Real Proparty Development
Grant Program Agreement Program Grant

Revenues:

Taxes $ - 3 - $ - $ 2,164,735 § -

Licenses and pemits - - . .

latergovemmental - 613,014 - 2,348 14,650

Charge lor services - - - . .

Ineras) . - 289 - .

Miscellaneous - - 71,487 6,064 -
Total revenues - 613,014 71,776 2,173,147 14,650
Expenditures:

General Government

Personnel - R - . .

Purchased services 10,500 - 384,323 16.650

Suppiies - - 8,016 - -

Capltat - - - -

Other - 486,404 - - -
Total expenditures 10,500 486,404 8,016 384,323 16,650
Excess of Revenues Over

{Under) Expanditures (10,500) 126,610 81,760 1,763,195 (2,000)
Olher financing sources (Usas):

Transfers In - - - - 2,000

Translers o - (54,401) - _(1.772,837)
Total other financing sources (Uses) - (54,401) - (1.772,837) 2,000
Nel Change In Fund Balances (10,500) 72,208 61,760 20,358 -
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 10,500 50,085 132,578 2,420,091 -
Fund Balances (Deflct) at End of Year  § - $ 122264 $ 194339 $ 2,440,449 § -
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Schedule C-3
Local Employer
Accommodations Education Group Public
Tax Clerk Assistance Benefit Defender Reforastation
Program Treasurer of Gourt Trust Trust Trust Trust Total
3 - - 3 - 8 - $ - 8 - 8 - 3 2,164,735
797,001 - - - - - - 797,001
- - 196,316 - 7,296,133 82,647 - 8,205,107
- 689,979 - - - - 689,979
- 49 7,573 31 643 335 268 9,188
- - - - - - 77,551
797,001 690,028 203,888 31 7,296,776 82,982 268 11,943,561
46,181 117,471 74,870 - - 58,415 - 287,037
4,878 234,002 35,000 - 7,293,711 - - 7,879,094
1.648 5,559 373 - - - - 15,584
- - 48,486 - - 8,081 - 586,567
475,649 - 15,014 - - 877,058
528,345 357,062 158,829 15,014 7,293,711 66,496 - 9.325.350
268,656 332,966 45,059 (14,983) 3,065 16,486 268 2,620,582
- - - - - - - 2,000
- - - - - (1,827,238)
- . - . - - - (1.825,238)
268,656 332,986 45,059 (14,983) 3,065 16,486 268 795,344
184,352 204,736 25,517 84,699 189,351 151,350 3,453,230
$ 453,008 $ 332966 $ 249,795 § 10,534 § 87,764 § 205837 §$ 151,618 § 4,248,574
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROUINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL AEVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY GRANTS
Year ended June 30, 2005

Emergency Drug
E-911 Public Maedical Highway Task Victims Sheriff's
Telephone Safety Senvices 170 Force Assistance  Speclal
Program Grant Grant Program Program  Program  Program
Revenues:

Ucenses and permits $ - % - $ - 3 - 8 - 8 - $ -

Intergovernmental - 1,090,332 27,772 - 3.158 45,377 -

Charge for services 888,050 - - - - - 58,257

FInes and forfistures - - - - - 150,153 -

Interast - - - 3,584 - - -

Miscellaneous - - - - - -

Total ravenues 888,050 1,080,332 27,772 3,584 3,156 195,530 58,257
Expenditures:

Public Safety

Parsonnel 151,332 9,688 - 11,890 - 181,914 58,555

Purchased services 466,682 197,803 1,582 151,489 3,156 21,754 -

Supplies 5,625 101,288 13,125 908 1,252 9,837 -

Capital 41,598 828,668 7.588 159,687 12,019 2,840 -

Olher 106,203 - 6.596 - - 20,000 -
Total expenditures 771,441 1,137,477 28,291 324,084 16,427 236,345 58,555

Net Changes in Fund Balances 116,609 (47.145) (1,519) (320.490)  (13,271)  (40,815) (298)
Other financing sourcas (Uses):

Transters In - 15,000 §,519 - - 101,310 -
Tolal other financing sources (Uses) - 15,000 1,519 - - 101,310 -
Nel Changs in Fund Balances 116,609 (32,145) - (320,490) (18,271) 60,495 (298)
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year {3.799) 59,111 - 2,244,898 17,798 22,828 6,153
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 112810 § 26,9866 § - $ 1924408 $ 4527 § 83423 § 5855
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Schedule C4

School Sheriff's Sheriti's SheritPs
fAesource  Sheritfs Drug Family Drug Detention Hazardous
Officor Grant Award Count Seizure Center Materials
Program Program Trust Trust Trust Trust Trust Tolal
$ - 8 - $ - 8 - 8 - § 39207 ¢ 39,207
266,353 8,343 - - - - 18,819 1,460,152
- - - - - 946,307
- - 66,090 - 13,326 - 229,569
- - 181 76 - 46 45 3,842
. - - - - 67,147 67,147
266,353 8.343 66,271 76 13,326 67,193 58,071 2,746,324
281,194 - - - - - 2,330 704,003
13,886 8,343 - - 21,778 886,473
6,810 - - - - 2,022 140,867
- - 3,126 - - - 1,146 1,057,113
- 35.015 827 4,800 73228 11,717 258,386
301,890 8,343 38,141 827 4,800 73,228 45,993 3,046,842
(35,537) 28,130 (751) 8,526 (6,035) 12,078 (300,518)
95,497 - - - - 213,326
95,497 - - - - 213,326
59,960 . 28,130 (751) 8,526 (6.035) 12,078 (87.192)
81,562 75,636 43,339 5,098 33,009 21,1186 2,606,790
$ 141,522 $ 103,766 $ 42588 § 13,565 § 26,974 § 33,194 § 2.519.598

-83-



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND RALANCES

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and pemits
Intergovernmentat
Charge for sesvices
Interast
Miscellaneous

Total revenves

Expenditures:
Public Works
Persannel
Purchased servicas
Supplies
Capitat

Total expenditures

Exoess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other financing sources (Uses):
Transfers oul

Tolal other financing sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances al Beginning of Year

Fund Balances at End of Year

Year ended June 30, 2005

County Solid
Road County Oil Waste/
improvement Dralnage Collection Recycling
Program Program Grant Grant
$ - 8 - ¢ - -
1,652 879 - 21,959 2,998
1,110,061 220,800 - -
8,315 - - -
2,771,355 220,800 21,959 2,898
171,735 - - -
76,319 678 5,270 2,998
1.207 28 - -
3,586.852 - 16,689 -
3,836,113 706 21,959 2,998
(1,064,758) 220,094 - -
{327.100) - - R
(1,391,858) 220,094 - -
5.161.583 158,577 - -
$ 3,769,725 § 375671 § - -
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Schedule C-5

Solid
Tire Waste Road
Recycling Recycling impad
Gant Program Fees Total
$ - $ 6483870 3% - % 6,483,870
- - 1,860,900 1,860,900
49,738 6,154 - 1,733,828
- 6,648 - 1,337,509
823 1,729 1,712 12,579
- 98,328 - 58,328

50,561 6,596,729 1,862,612 11,527.014

- 870,547 - 1,042,282
25,490 4,659,061 28,901 4,798,717
- 76,198 - 77,433
90,130 52,092 272,206 4,017,969
115620 _ 5657,808 301,107 9,936,401
(65,059) 938831 1,561,508 1,590,613

- - (1,108,216) _ (1,435,316)
- - (1,108,216) _ (1,435,316)

(65,059) 938,831 453,289 165,297

467.860 (385.527) 755,017 6,154,510

$ 402,801 § 553304 $ 1208306 $ 6.309.807
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - ALOOHOL AND DRUG PROGRAMS

Revenues*
Inergovernmentat
Charge for services

Total revenues

Expendiures;
Public Health
Personnel
Purchased services
Supplles
Cther

Total expenditures

Excess ol Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other financing sources (Uses):
Trans(ers in
Total other financing sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year

Fund Balances at End of Year

Year ended June 30, 2005

-86 -

Salety Schoot
Central Action Intervention
Administration Program Program
$ - 60,154 38,944
- 79,758 -
- 139,912 38.844
152,059 110,183 35,288
66.116 783 11,185
10,581 2,723 231
{230,521) 33.797 13,891
(1,765) 147 456 60,605
1,765 (7.544) (21,661)
28,914 7.544 21,661
28914 7,544 21,661
30,679 -
$ 30,679 - -




Community
Based Preventive Inlensive
Treatment Education Outpatient
Program Program Frogram Toal
$ 299,763 § 213969 § 94862 § 707,692
56,401 3,085 - 139,244
356,164 217,054 94,862 846,936
249,539 146,335 108,551 801,935
44,753 52,905 7.960 183,702
1,468 2,039 1,821 18,863
87,805 59,852 35,076 -
383,665 261,131 153,408 1,004,500
(27,501) (44,077) (58.546) (157,564)
27,501 44,077 58,546 188,243
27,501 44,077 58,546 188,243
- - - 30.679
$ $ - 8 - 8 30,679

- B7 -
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS PROGRAMS

Year ended Juna 30, 2005

Centrat Employed  Supervised Service Famlly Glft

Admini Services  Managemant Coordination Suppont Store

strafion Program Program Program Program Program
Revenuss:

Intargovemmental $ - $§ 858746 § 47900 § 270,771 § 13,796 § 20,473

Charge for services - - - - -

Interest 894 - - - - -

Miscefianeous - 33,266 3,545 - - 2.650
Tolal revenues 894 892,012 51,445 270,771 13,796 23,123
Expendltures:

Public Health

Parsonnel 303,763 763,689 28,678 221,572 - 48,416

Purchased senices 131,134 158,183 1,078 4 583 14,173 7,767

Supplles 21,172 53,878 994 2,075 - 4,247

Caplial 1,740 49,473 - - - 4916

Other {457,248) 150,156 4,981 36,237 7,250
Total expenditures 581 1,175,379 35,731 264 467 14,173 72,596
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 313 (283,387) 15,714 6,304 (377) (49,473)
Other financing sources (Uses):

Transfers in - 254,455 - - 3 51,181
Total other financing sources {Uses) - 254,455 - - 377 51,181
Net Change (n Fund Balances 313 (28,912) 15,714 6,304 1,708
Fund Balances al Beginning of Year - 81,971 - - - -
Fund Balances al End of Year $ 313 § 33,059 § 15,714 & 6304 § - 3 1,708
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Schedule C-7

Port Royal Eary Summer  Community Enhaaced Vacation
Residence Intervention Services Tralning Services in your Resplte  Rehabllitation
Program Program Program Program Progrem  Community  Program Program Tolal

$ 820,408 § 163,450 §& 12,397 §& 642,163 § 66,210 § 6787 § 16818 $ 93,704 § 3.033.623

76,050 . - 67,534 . . - - 143,984

- - . - - - - - 894

. - 75 - - - - - 39,536
896,458 163,450 12,472 710,097 66,210 6,787 16,818 93,704 3,218,037
865,668 142,507 5,208 658,852 - 20,894 2,008 22,323 3,083,366
54,702 3,549 8,053 44,815 44,883 4,605 13,367 68,537 559,449
61,701 2,602 589 50,067 . . . . 197.325
45476 . - 12,508 . - - - 114,113
119,885 26,845 - 92,415 3,386 3,058 1,855 11,179 -
1,147,432 175,203 13,850 858,657 48,269 28.558 17,318 102,039 3,854,253
(250.974) (11,753) (1,378)  (148,560) 17,041 (21,771) (500) (8.335) (738,216)
254,074 11,753 950 241,630 - 9,540 644 9,251 833,855
254,074 11,753 950 241,830 - 9,540 644 9,251 833,855
3,100 - (428) 93,070 17.941 (12,231) 144 916 97.639
19,307 - 13,399 20,000 - . - - 114,677

$ 22407 % - % 12971 $ 113070 § 17,941 $ (12,231} $ 144 § 916 $§ 212,316
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCES

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WELFARE PROGRAMS

Ravenues:
Imergovemmental
Charge for services
Miscsllanaous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Public Welfare
Personnel
Purchased services
Supplles
Capltal

Total axpenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other financing sources (Usas)

Transfers In
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Bajances

Fund Balances al Baginning of Year

Fund Balances at End of Year

Year ended Jung 30, 2005

-980 -

Dauluskie Mobility Sheldon
Ferry Developmant  Rehabllitation
Granl Authority Project

$ 61,676 $ - 8
- - 1,585
61,676 - 1,585
81,851 13,400 -
81,951 13,400 -
(20.275) (13.400) 1,585
35,000 - 14,744
- {100) -
35,000 (100} 14.744
14,725 (13,500) 16,329
16,758 13,500 (16,329)
$ 31483 $ - 8




Collaborative
Organization Group
lor Setvices Famity
10 Youth Conferencing Total
$ 55,788 $ - 117,464
21,669 - 21,669
16.959 - 18,544
04,416 157,677
81,095 - 81,095
10,399 35,625 141,375
6,045 292 6,337
2,496 2,496
100,035 35,917 231.303
(5.619) (35,917) (73,628)
10,000 36.000 95,744
- - (100)
10,000 36.000 95.644
4,381 83 22,018
15,833 - 20,762
) 20214 % 83 51,780

-91 -
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURAL AND RECREATION PROGRAMS

Year ended Juna 30, 2005

Summer
PALS Nutrition
Library PALS General Program
Grants Miscellaneous Services Grantg
Revenues:
Licenses ang pemits $ - $ - -
Intergovemmental 87,417 - - 237,341
Interest - . . .
Miscellaneocus 11,163 - - -
Total revenues 98,580 - 237,341
BExpenditures:
Cultural and Racreation
Personnel - 42,644
Purchased services 5,204 - - 193,772
Supplles 18,231 - - 925
Cepital 34,267 - - -
Tolal expenditures 57.792 - - 237,341
Excass of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 40,788 - - -
Other financing sources {Uses):
Transfers In - - - -
Transfers out - {6,144) (1.813) -
Total other financing sources (Uses) - (6,144) {1.813) -
Net Change In Fund Balances 40,788 (6,144) (1.813) -
Fund Balances at Baginning of Year $0.657 6,144 1,813 -
Fund Balances al End ol Year 3 131,445 § - - -
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Schedule C-8

State PALS Library Library
PARD Impact Impact Ubrary Speclal
Grants Fees Fees Trust Trust Total
- % 902,672 $ 1,468,975 § - 8 - § 2,371,847
890 - - - - 325,648
- 4,201 2,344 226 897 7,548
- - - 10,898 500 22,561
8380 906.953 1,471,318 13,124 1,197 2,727,404
- - - - - 42,644
- - - - - 199,066
- - 23,715 39,547 13,514 95,826
7.708 - - - - 41,875
7,708 - 23.715 39,544 13,514 379.811
(6,818) 906,953 1,447,604 (28,417) (12,317) 2,347,783
1,218 - - - - 1,218
- (200,000) (1,220,213) - - 1,428,170}
1,218 (200.000) (1,220,213) - - (1,426,952)
(5,600) 706,953 227,391 (28,417) (12,317) 920,841
5,600 2.165,770 1,150,474 52,910 398,806 3,872,174
- § 2872723 $ 1377865 $ 24,493 § 396,489 $ 4,793,015
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ASSETS
Equity In pooled cash and nvestments
Recelvables, net

Total Assets

LIABLLITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Uabilides:

Accounts payable

Deferred property lax revenues

Total Llabllities

Fund Equlty:
Aesetved for debt senvice

Totel Uabllittes and Fund Equity

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Schedule D-1

June 30, 2005
County Wide Noew
General Bluffion Aiver
Obligation TF TiF
Bonds Bonds Bonds Totals
$ 778,658 7,279,635 1,080,309 9,148,602
117,719 1,512 34,612 153,843
$ 886,377 7,281,147 1,124,621 9,302,445
$ - - - -
22,022 - - 22,022
$ 22,022 - - 22,022
874,355 7,281,147 1,124,921 9,280,423
3 896,377 7,281,147 1,124,921 9,302,445
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Schedule D-2
Sheet 1
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUNOD BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Year ended Juns 30, 2005

County Wide General Obligalions Bonds

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Untavorable)
Revenuas:
Taxes $ 7.455,188 §$ 7,791,248 3 336,060
InMergovemmental 46,700 46,606 $ (94)
Interast 50,000 87.790 § 47,790
Total revenues 7,551,888 7.935,644 383,756
Expenditures:
Debt Service - Prinlcpal 5,285,000 5,285,000 -
Debt Service - Interest and fees 3,968,475 3,960,973 7,502
Tolal debt senice expendilures 9,253,475 9,245,973 7,502
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expsnditures (1,701.587) (1.310,329) 391,258
Other financing sources (Uses):
Transfers in 2,099,837 2,099,937 -
Total othar financing sources (uses) 2,088,937 2,098,937
Excass of Revenues and Other Sources Over
{Uoder) Expenditures and Other Uses 398,350 789.608 391,258
Fund Balances al Beginning of Year 84,747 84,747
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 483,097 & 874,355 391,258
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Scheduls D-2

Sheet 2
BEAUFORAT COUNTY, SOUTH CARGLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FOND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
Bluttion TIF
Varnanca
favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 250,000 $ 369,440 § 119,440
Intergovemmaental . - .
Interest - 136,572 136,572
Tolal revenuses 250,000 506,012 256,012
Expenditures:
Debt Service « Prinlcpat
Debt Service - Interest and fees 1,150,000 1,145,580 4,420
Total debt service expanditures 1,150,000 1,145,580 4,420
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (800,000) (639,568) 260,432
Other inancing sources (Uses):
Transters In 1,014,000 2,328,428 1,317,429
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,011,000 2,328,429 1,317,429
Excess of Revenues and Other Sourcas Over
(Under) Expendltures and Other Uses 111,000 1,688,861 1,577,861
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 5,592,286 5,592,286 -
Fund Balanceas at End of Year $§ 5703286 § 7,281,147 § 1,577,861
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Schedule D-2

Sheet 3
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
New River TIF
Variance
Favorable
Budge! Actuat (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 500,000 $ 1,101,518 § 601,518
Intergovernmental - - -
Interest - 12,4168 12,416
Tolal revenues 500,000 1,113,834 613,004
Expenditures:
Debt Servics - Prinicpal
Debt Service - interest and {ess 2,000.000 1,993,982 6,018
Total debt service expenditures 2,000,000 1,993,982 6,018
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expendilures (1.500,000) (880,048) 619,852
Other financing sources (Uses):
Translers In - - .
Totat other financing sources (uses) - - .
Excess of Revenuses and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expendilures and Other Uses (1,500,000) (880,048) 618,952
Fund Balances al Baginning of Year 2,004,969 2,004,868 -
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 504,968 $ 1124921 § 619,852

-97 -



Schedule D-2

Sheet 4
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF AEVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Year endad June 30, 2005
Totals
Varnance
Favorable
Budgst Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Taxes 3 8,205,188 % 9,262,206 $ 1,057,018
Intergovemmeatal 46,700 46,606 (94)
Interest 50,000 246,778 198,778
Total revanues 8,301,888 9,555,590 1,253,702
Expenditures:
Dabt Servica - Peanicpal 5,285,000 5,285,000 -
Debt Servics - Interest and fess 7,118,475 7,100,535 17,340
Tolal debt service expenditures 12,403,475 12,385,535 17,940
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (4,101,587) (2,829,945) 1,271,842
Other financing sources (Uses):
Transfers In 3,110.837 4,428,368 1,317,428
Total other financing sources (uses) 3,110,937 4,428,366 1,317.429
Excess of Revenuss and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditores and Other Uses {990,650) 1,598,421 2,589,071
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 7,682,002 7,682,002 -
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 6,691,352 § 9,280,423 § 2,589,071
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

June 30, 2005

Lady's
Capital Blufiton Island 1996 1999
improvement TIF TIF Bond Bond
Program District District Projects Projects
ASSEYS
Equlty in pooled cash and investments $ 84682 % 1,264,259 192,769 $ 1,542 § 1,600
Total assets $ 84662 § 1264259 192,769 $ 1542 1,600
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Llabilities:
Accounts payabfe $ 879 $ 100,332 - $ 3542 8 1,600
Accrued payvoll 1,961 - - - -
Tolal liabilitles 2,640 100,332 - 1,542 1,600
Fuad equity:
Reserved and reserved for encumbrances - - - - -
Reserved for capital psojects 82,022 1,163,827 192,769 - -
Total fund equity 82,022 1,163,927 192,768 - -
Total liabitibes and fund equity $ 84,6682 § 1,264,259 192,769 § 1,542 § 1,600
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2000 2001 2002 2003
Bond Bond Bond Bond
Projects Projects Projects Projects Totals
$ 153,329 § 1,102,497 4,576,151 § 5,825,872 $ 13,302,681
$ 153,329 $ 1,102,487 4576159 $ 5825872 $ 13,302,681
3 53,685 § 18,300 544258 § 313,756 $ 544,322
- - - - 1,961
53,685 18,300 54,429 313,755 546,283
- - 654,965 2,067,708 2,722673
99,644 1,084,197 3,866,757 3,544 409 10,033,725
99,644 1,084,197 4521722 5,612,117 12,758,398
$ 153,329 § 1,102,497 4576151 & 50925872 $ 13,302,681
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Schedule E-2

Shes! 1
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAACLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Yaar ended Juna 30, 2005
Capltal Improvemenis Program
Varlance
Favorable
Budget Aclual {Untavorable)
Reveauas:

Taxes $ - 3 132 132

Intergovernmantal - 28,663 28,663

interest - - -

Total revenues - 28,795 28,795
Expendilures:

Capllal projects 5.501 146,142 (140,641)
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (5.501) (117.,347) (111,848)
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in - . -

Transfers oul - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - - .
Excass ol Revenugs and Other Sources Over

{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (5.501) (117,347) (111,846)
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 199,369 199,369 -
fund Balances at End of Year $ 193868 § 82,022 $ (111,846)
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Schedule E-2

Sheet 2
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CRANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL CAPITAL PAOJECT FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
Blutffion T Projects
Vaciance
Favorable
Budget Agtual {Unlavorable)
Ravenues:

Taxes $ - $ - $ -

Inlergovernmental -

inferest - - -

Total revenues - -
Expenditures:

Capltai projects 1,825,800 1,016,724 809.076
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expsenditures (1,825,800} (1,016,724) 809,076
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in - -

Translers out - - -

Total ather financing sources (uses) - - -
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (1,825,800} {1.0186,724) 809,076
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 2,180,651 2,180,651
Fund Balancas st End of Year $ 354,851 % 1,163,927 $ 809,076
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Schedula E-2

Sheel 3
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Year ended Juna 30, 2005
Lady's (sland TIF Projects
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenuss:
Taxes $ - 8 153,339 $ 153,339
Inlergovermmaental - - -
Interast - - .
Miscatlaneous - . -
Total revenues - 153,339 153,339
Expondilures:
Capltal projects
Excess of Revenuss Over (Under) Expenditures - 153,339 153339
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers In . . .
Transters out - - -
Toftal other financing sources (usas) - - -
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Cver
{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses - 153,339 153,338
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 39,430 39,430 -
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 38,430 $ 192,769 $ 153,339
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Schedule E-2
Sheet 4
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

1996 General Obligation Bond Projects

Variance
Favorable
Budget Aclual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Taxes $ - 9 S -

inlergovernmenlal - . -

Interest - 286 286

Miscellaneous -

Total revenues 286 286
Expenditures:

Capltal projects 19,397 18,339 1,058
Excess ol Ravenuas Over (Under) Expanditures (19,357) (18,083) 1,344
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in - - .

Transfers oul (255,144) (256,488) {1,344)

Total other financing sources {uses) (255,144) (256,488) (1,344)
Excess ol Ravenues and Other Sources Over

(Under) Expenditures and Oths Uses (274.,5471) (274,541) -
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 274 541 274 541 -
Fund Balances at End of Year $ - 3 - $ -
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Schedute E-2
Sheet 5
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

1999 Genaral Obligation Bond Projacts

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual _(Untavorable)
Revenuss:

Taxes $ - 8 - % -

Intergovemmental - - .

Interest - 1,126 1,126

Misceflaneous - 10,000 10,000

Total revenues - 11,126 11,126
Expendliures:

Caplig! projects 675,857 675,856 1
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (675,857) (664,730) 11,127
Other financtng sources (uses):

Transters In 24,131 24,131

Teansfers oul (557.024) __(575,761) (18.737)

Total other financing sources {usas) (532,893) (551,630) (18,737)
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over

(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (1.208,750) {(1,216,360) (7,610)
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 1,216,360 1,216,360 -
Fund Balances al End of Year 8 7610 $ $ (7,610)
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Schedule E-2
Shest 6
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

2000 General Obligation Bond Projects

Varance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unlavorable)
Revenues:

Taxes $ - % - 8 -

Intergovemmental - - -

Interes) - 784 784

Miscellaneous - - -

Total revenues - 784 784
Expendilures:

Capltal projecis 1,113,430 1,014,570 98,8580
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,113,430) (1.013,786) 389,644
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 256,633 256,633 -

Transfers out (25,100) (25,100) -

Tolal other financing sources (Uses) 231,533 231,533 -
Excess of Revenues and Other Sourcas Over

{Under) Expendilures and Other Uses (881.897) (782,253) 89,644
Fund Balances al Beginning ol Year 881,897 881,897 -
Fund Balances at End of Year $ - $ 99,644 & 99.644
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Schedule E-2
Sheel 7
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BA(ANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

2001 General Obligation Bond Projects

Vanance
Favorable
Budget Aclual (Unfavoradle)
Revenusas:

Taxes $ -8 -3 -

Intergovemmental

Interest - 3,023 3,023

Miscellaneous - - .

Toteal revenues - 3.023 3,023
Expenditures:

Capital projects 1,627,091 683.670 943,421
Excass of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,627,091) (680.647) 946,444
Other financing sources {uses):

Transfers In 137,254 137,254 -

Transfers out (347,515) {347,515) -

Tolal other financing sources {uses) (210.261) (210.261) -
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over

(Under) Expengltures and Olher Uses (1,837.352) (B90,508) 946,444
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 1,975,108 1,97505 -
Fund Balances at End of Year 3 137,753 § 1,084,187 § 946,444
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES (N

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovemmental
Interast
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Capital projects

Excess of Hevenuss Over (Under) Expandilures
Other financing sourcas (uses):

Transfers In
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expendilures ang Other Uses

Fung Balances at Beginning of Year

Fund Balances al £ng of Year

ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

Schedule £-2
Sheel 8

2002 Gaenaral Oblgation Bond Projects

Varance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ - -8 -
250,000 250,000
. 7,843 7,843
250,000 257,843 7.843
5,297,546 836,348 4,461,198
(5.047,546) {578,505) 4,469,041
569,383 570,795 1,412
(22,629) (22,629)
546,754 548,166 1,412
(4,500,792) (30,339) 4,470,453
4,552,061 4,552,061 -
$ 51,269 4,521,722 § 4,470,453
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005

Schedule E-2
Sheet 9

2003 Gensral Obligation Bond Projects

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unlavorable)
Revenues:

Taxes $ - 8 - -

Intergovernmental - . -

(nterest = 90,248 80,248

Miscellaneous - .

Tolal revenues - 80,248 90,248
Expenditures:

CapHal grojects 6,929,978 1,433,748 5,496,231
Excass of Ravenues Over (Under) Expendltures (6.929,979) (1,343,500) 5,586,479
Other financing sources (uses):

Transféers In

Transfers out (1,664,239} 1,664,239 -

Total other financing sources (uses) _(3,664,239)  (1,664,239) -
Excess of Aevenuas and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (8,594,218) (3,007,739) 5.586.479
Fund Batances at Beginning of Year 8,619,856 8,619,856 -
Fund Balances al End of Year 3 25638 § 5612117 § 5,586,479
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Sheat 10
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CGAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CRANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Year ended Juna 30, 2005
Totals
Vanance
Favorabla
Budgel Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Taxes $ - 3 153,471 § 153,471

Intergovernmental 250,000 278,663 28,663

Interest - 103,310 103,310

Miscellanecus - 10,000 10,000

Total revenues 250,000 545,444 295,444
Expenditures:

Caplal projects 17,494,601 5.825,397 11,669,204
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (17.244,601) (5.279,953) 11,964,648
Olher financing sourceés (uses):

Transters in 987,401 988,813 1412

Transfers out {2.871,651) (2,891,732) {20,081)

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,884,250} (1.802.919) (18,669)
Excess of Revenuss and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (19,128,851) (7,182,872) 11,945,879
Fund Balances at Beglnning of Year 19,939,270 19,938,270 -
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 810,419 § 12,756,388 § 11,845,979
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Shest 1
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
Year ended June 30, 2005
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Additions Daductions June 30, 2005
Broad Creaek Public Semics District

Operatlons:

Assels

Equity in pooled cash and Invastments $ 183718 § 1,364,801 § 803,660 $ 644,940

Liabilities

Dus to agencies $ 163,719 $ 1,364,901 $ 903,680 $ 644,040
Water/Sewer:

Asgets

Equity in pooled ¢ash and invesiments $ __ 57446 § 65,705 $ 123,000 $ 148

Uabifltles

Dus to agancles $ 57,445 $ 65,701 § 123,000 $ 146
Debl Service:

Assets

EqQuity In pooled cash and Investmenls $ (180,045) § 340,000 $ 339,626 $ (179,580)

Uabllites

Due to agencles $ {180,045) $ 340,000 $ 339625 $ (179,580)
Captial Projects:

Assels

Equity In pooted cash and Investmenis $ - § - 8 - 8 -

Llabilities

Due to agencles $ - 8 - % - $ -

Fripp Istand Publlc Service Distict

Ergslon Control:

Asseéls

Equity in pooled cash and Invesiments $ 49,184 § 22,513 § - $ 71,707

Llabfliles

Due 10 agencles 3 49,194 $ 22,513 § - § 71,707
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Schedule F

Sheel 2
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAAOLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Y ear ended June 30, 2005
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Addifions Deductions June 30, 2005
Fripp Istand Public Service District (cont'd}

Water/Sewer

Assels

€quity in pocled cash and iInvestments $ 50,688 $ 80.100 $ - 8 139,788

Uabllites

Due 1o agencles $ 59,688 $ 80,100 § - 139,788
Debt Service:

Assets

Equlty in pooled cash and investments ) 98,846 § 100,618 & 85318 ¢ 114,146

Liabliitles

Dus o agencies $ 08,846 § 100,618 § 85318 $ 114,146
CapHal:

Assets

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 40 3 1,753,607 § 1,122,605 § 631,042

Labilitles

Dus 1o agencles 3 40 $ 1,753,607 $ 1,122,605 $ 831,042
fire 1% Funds:

Assets

Equity In podled cash and investments 3 10,571 § 19,996 § 8,495 § 22,072

Liablities

Dus to agencies $ 10,571 $ 18,996 $ BA495 § 22,072
Fire Operations:

Assefs

Equity in pooled cash and Invesimants $ 302,324 § 655,510 & 501,202 $ 456,632

Liabilities

Due to agancles $ 302,324 3§ 655,510 $ 501,202 § 456,632

Forest Beach Pubilc Service Districi

Oporations:

Assets

Equlty in pooled cash and investmenls $ - $ 276 § 263 B 13

Llghliitles

Due to agencles 3 - $ 276 $ 263 $ 13
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Scheduta F

Sheat 3
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIARILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year ended June 30, 2005
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Additons Oeductions June 30, 2005
Forest Beach Public Service District

Flrs Opsrations:

Assets

Equity In pooled cash and investmenis $ - $ 6,012 $ 4,523 § 1489

Llabilitles

Due {0 agencles $ - 8 6012 § 4523 § 1,489
Fre Debt:

Assets

Equlty In pooted cash and investments $ - 8 753 § 565 § 188

Llabilttigs

Due to agencies $ - 8§ 753 § 565 § 188

Hifton Head #1 Public Senvice Districl

Operatlons:

Asgsets

Equlty In pooled cash and Investments $ 1,342,428 § 834,186 § 500,000 $ 1,676,614

Llabiliies

Due o sgencies $ 1342428 § 834,186 $ 500,000 $ 1,676,614
Water/Sewer:

Assels

Equity In pooled cash and investments $ 1,145,275 § 402,847 $ 500,000 $ 1,048,122

Llabi(ities

Due to agencles $ 1,145275 § 402,847 §$ 500,000 $ 1,048,122
Debt Service:

Assals

Equity In pooled cash and investments 3 93,080 $ 734,143 § 637,141 § 190,082

Liabiliies

Dua to agencles $ 93,080 $ 734,143 $ 637,141 $ 190,082
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Scheduls F

Sheet 4
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year ended June 30, 2005
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Additions Deductions June 30, 2005
South Beach Public Seevice District

Water/Sewer.

Assels

Equity in pooled cash and investmenis $ 31,640 § 287,445 § 270,700 $ 48,385

Uabllities

Dus 10 agenclas $ 31,8640 § 287,445 $ 270,700 $ 48,385
Debt servicea:

Assets

£quity In pooled cash and investments $ 7428 § 1,782 § - $ 8,910

Uabilities

Due 10 agencies 3 7,128 § 1,782 § - 3 8,910
Fire Operations:

Assets

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ - § 12,207 § 9,155 § 3.052

LUiabllities

Dus to agencies $ - 8 12207 § 9,155 § 3,052
Fire Debt:

Assels

Equity In poolad cash and investments 3 - $ 726 8 545 $ 181

Liabilities

Due 10 agencies $ - $ 726 $ 545 § 181

Bluffton Fire District

Qperalions:

Assets

Equity In pooled cash and investmenis $ 312,078 $ 5566800 $ 5411428 § 467,450

Liabilittes

Due to agencies $ 312,078 $ 5.566,800 $ 5411428 $ 467,450
Debt service:

Assets

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 147,854 $ 209.171 § 118,297 § 238,728

Llablities

Due to agencles $ 147,854 § 209171 § 118,297 § 238,728
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Schedule F

Shest 5
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year ended June 30, 2005
Balance ' Balance
Juty 1, 2004 Additions Deductions June 30, 2005
Biuffton Fire District- (cont'd)

Capital Projects:

Assels

Equity In pooled cash and Investments $ 1,627 § 2 8 - 8 1.629

Liabililes

Due to agencles $ 1627 § 2 $ - $ 1,629
Flre Deparimant 1% Fund:

Assets

Equity in pooled cash and Investments $ 17,065 § 157,440 § 156,800 § 17,705

Liabflittes

Due to agencles 3 17,065 $ 157,440 $ 156,800 $ 17.705
Impact Fees:

Assels

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 1,610,093 $ 826,580 § 543,880 $ 1,892,793

Liablliles

Due 10 agencles $ 1,610,083 § 826,580 $§ 543,880 % 1,892,763
Burton Flre District
QOperallons:

Assets

Equity in pooled cash and investimenis $ 827,347 $ 3,186,865 ¢ 3,320,300 $ 693,912

Liabililles

Due 10 agencles $ 827,347 § 3,186,865 $ 3,320,300 $ 693,912
Dabt Sarvice:

Assets

Equity in poolad cash and invesiments $ 216,637 $ 288,727 $ 256880 $ 258,484

Liabilities

Due 10 agencies $ 216,637 $ 298,727 $ 256,880 §$ 258,484
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Burion Fire District - (conf'd)
Fire Department 1% Fund:
ssets
Equity In pooted cash and invesiments

Uabitfties
Due to agencies

Impact fees:
set
Equity in pooled cash and investments

Liabllities
Dué to agencies

Daufygkle Island Flre District
Opesations:
Assels
Equilty In pooled cash and invesiments

Liabllives

Due to agencies

Debt Service:
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments

Liabllities
Dusa to agencles

flre Department 1% Fund:
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments

Liabilities

Schedule F

Sheel 6
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year ended June 30, 2005
Balance Batance
July ¥, 2004 Addibons Deductions June 30, 2005

55,782 29,854 15,436 70,200

55,782 29,854 15,436 70,200

221,208 73,113 - 294,321

221,208 73,113 - 294,32t

93,444 667,253 665,660 75,037

83,444 667,253 685,660 75,037
(7.414) 62,159 60,898 (6.153)
(7,434) 62,159 60,898 (6,153)

7.466 9,864 9,806 7,524

7,466 9,864 9,806 7,524

Dus (0 agencies
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Dauskis Island Fire Dlstrict - (cont'd)
Impact Faas:
Assels
Equity §n pooled cash and Investments

Ligbilities
Dus to agencies

Lady's Is! 'St. Helena Firs Di t
Opeations:
Asgets
Equity In pooted cash and Investments

Uabillities
Due (0 agencies

Debt Service:
Assets
Equity pooled cash and investments

Liabilitias
Bue to agencias

Fire Department 1% Fund:
Assels
Equity in pooled cash and invesiments

Liabllities
Due to agencies

|mpact Fegs
Assets
£quity In pooled cash and investments

Liabihuses

Scheduls F

Sheeat 7
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year snded June 30, 2005
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Additions Deductions June 30, 2005

27,182 38,260 - $ 65,442

27.182 38,260 - 8 65,442

(125,176) 3,100,284 2,814,051 § 161,057

(125,176) 3,100,284 2,814,057 § 16%,057

(233,378) 153,130 16,948 § (87,196)

(233,378) 153,130 16048 § (97,196)

87,355 58,508 68,917 $ 76,846

87,355 58,508 68,917 $ 76,946

772,233 185,278 400,843 § 556,668

772.233 185,278 400,843 § 556,668

Dus 10 agsncies
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Schedule F

Sheel 8
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year ended June 30, 2005
Balance Baiance
__July 1, 2004 Additions Deduclions __June 30, 2005
Shetdon Fire District
Opeatlons:
Assets
Equily in poaled cash and Investments $ 22708 $ 728,104 $ 760,242 $ (9,430)
Llabilitles
Due 10 agencles $ 22,708 $ 728104 $ 760,242 § (9,430)
Debt Seyvice:
Assets
Equity pooled cash and investments 3 1,654 § 55,471 $ 59,010 & (1,585)
Uabilitias
Due to agencies $ 1954 $ 55,471 § 53,010 § (1,585)
Fire Deparment 1% Fund:
Assels
Equity in pootéd cash and investments 3 5492 § 10,202 § 7.078 § 8.616
Liabilites
Due to agencies $ 5492 § 10,202 § 7,078 § 8,616
Impact Fess
Assels
Equity In pooled cash ang Invesiments $ 11,863 § 6569 $ - 8 18,432
Liabilnieg
Due 10 agencles $ 11,863 § 6,569 $ - $ 18,432
City of Beaufort
Municipal:
Assals
Equity pooled cash and investmenis $ 120,755 § 4,709,148 % 4,501,669 § 328,234
Ligbllities
Ous 10 agencites $ 120,755 § 4709,148 $ 4,501,669 § 328,234
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Schedule F
Sheeat 9
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year snded Juna 30, 2005

Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Additions Deductions June 30, 2005

City of Bea - (cont'd
Flre Department 1% Fung:
Assets
Equity {n poolad cash and investments $ - 8 41,956 § 41,056 §

Llabifitias
Due to agencies $ - 8 41,856 § 41,956 $ -

Town ¢f Pon Rovyal
Munlcipal:
Assets
EQuity peoled cash and investments $ 41,454 § 1,726,025 § 1,608,632 § 68,847

Liabilities
Due 10 agencles $ 41,454 $ 1,726,025 § 1,608,632 $ 68,847

Fire Departmen! 1% Fund:

Assels
Equity In pooled cash and Investmeanis $ - § 9,148 § 9,148 §

Liabililias
Due to agencies $ - $ 9.148 § 9,148 § -

Town ol Bluffton

Municipal:
Assels
Equity pooled cash and invastments $ 13,0016 $ 792317 $ 724,286 $ 81,047

Llabllitles
Dus 1o agencies $ 13,016 § 792317 § 724,286 § 81,047

Town of Yemasseg
Mgnicipal:
Assels
Equity In pooled cash and Investmeants $ 149 § 15,875 §$ 13.017 § 3,007

Llabilifies
Due 10 agencias $ 149 $ 15875 § 13,017 ¢ 3,007
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Schedule F

Sheel 10
BEAUFOAT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year ended June 30, 2005
Batance Balance
July 1, 2004 Additions Deductions June 30, 2005
Town of Yemassee-(cont'd)

Fire Depadment 1% Fund:

Agsets

Equlty In pooled cash and investmenls $ - 3 144 3 144§ -

Ligblliies

Due to agencies $ - § 144 $ 144§ -

Town of Hilton Head

Municlpal:

Assets

Equity pooled cash and investments $ 623,590 $ 21,171,528 § 20,934,191 § 860,927

Lablities

Due fo agencies $ 623,590 $ 21171528 § 20,934,191 § 860,927
Fire Operalions:

Assels

Equlty pooled cash and Invesiments $ - $ 19846 § 14,902 § 4,944

Liabilities

Duse to agencies $ - $ 19846 § 14,902 $ 4,844
Fire Debt Service:

Assets

Equity In pooled cash and investments $ 19,163 § 1,253 § 17,905 § 2,51

1 1abilllieg

Dus o agencies $ 19,163 § 1,253 § 17,806 § 2,511

Fire Department 1% Fung;
Assels
Equity in pooled cash and inveslmenis $ - 8 500,040 § 500,040 $ -

Liabllibas
Due to agencies $ - $ 500,040 $ 500,040 $ -




Schedula F

Sheet 11
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year ended June 30, 2005
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Addilions Deductions June 30, 2005
Beaufonrt~Jasper Academy for Caresr Excellence

General:

Assets

Equity pooled cash and investments $ 1,085,398 § 2,841,900 $ 3,161,650 $ 775,648

Liablitas

Due to agencies 3 1,095,398 § 2,641,800 $ 3,161,650 § 775,648
Speclal Revenue Fund:

Assels

Equity pooled cash and invesiments $ 118,485 $ 448,593 $ 514,384 § 50,694

Liabliidas

Due to agencies g 118,485 § 446,593 $ 514384 § 50,694
Capltal:

Assets

Equity pooled cash and investments $ [184,128) § - $ - § (184,128)

Liabllites

Due 10 agencies 3 (184.128) $ - 8 - $ (184,128)
Education Improvement Act:

Assefts

Equity pooled cash and Investmenls $ (877,336) $ 20,658 $ 119,888 $ (967,566)

Llabilites

Dus to agencies $ (877,336) $ 29658 $ 119888 § (967,566)

Beautort County School Distri

General:

Assets

Equity In pooled cash and investments $ 9,390,137 § 132085748 § 128,235.697 § 13,240,188

Liabltities

Due to agencies $ 9,390,137 $ 132,085,748 § 128,235,697 $ 13,240,188
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Beautort County School Districl-(cont'd)
Special Revenue:
Assets
Equity in pooted cash and Invesiments

Llabitities
Due to agencies

Debt Service:
Assels
Equity pooled cash and investments

Liabilities
Due to agencies

Capitak
Assets
Equity pooled cash and investments

Ltabifilies
Due to agencies

Lunch Fund:
Assels
Equity pooled cash and investments

Uabllities
Due o agercies

School 8% Projects:
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and invesiments

Liabilities
Duse to agencies

Education Improvement Act:
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and invastments

Liablliies

Schedule F
Sheet 12
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year ended June 30, 2005
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Additons Deductions Juns 30, 2005

(2,590,470) $ 19,883,664 21,374,848 (4,081,654)
(2,590,470) § 19,883,664 21,374,848 (4,081,654)

7.304,082 $ 27,766,423 25,547,542 9,522,963

7,304,082 $ 27,766,423 25,547,542 9,522,963

10,272,184 § 637,703 761,903 10,147,984

10,272,184 § 637,703 761,503 10,147,984

1,725,452 § 3,402,237 3,373,550 1,754,139

1,725452 8 3,402,237 3,373,550 1,754,139

334526 $ 13,095,947 15,215,323 (1,784.850)
334526 § 13,095,947 15,215,323 (1,784,850)

94,671 § 13,775,990 13,245,027 625,634

94,671 § 13,775,990 13,245,027 625,634

Dus (o agencies
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Schedule F

Sheet 13
BEAUFOAT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year ended dune 30, 2005
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Addilions Deductions June 30, 2005
Beaufort County School Distrct - {conl'g)

Impact fees:

Assers

Equity pooled cash ang investments $ 2,947.689 § - $ 2,047.689 § -

Liabililigs

Dus to agencies $ 2,947.689 $ - $ 2,947,689 § -
Faclifties 2000:

Assels

Equity pooled cash and Investments $ 2072711 $ - § - ¥ 2,072,711

Lighllitles

Duse to agencies $ 2,072,711 § - 3 - $ 2,072,711
Facilittes 2005:

Assets

Equity pooled cash and Investments $ 3,379,079 § 10,882,550 § 12,083,561 $ 1,278,068

Liabllities

Due 10 agencies $ 3379079 $ 10,882,550 § 12,983,561 $ 1,278,068
ladigent Health Care

Assets

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ (46,547) $ 2,172,420 § 2,005,269 $ 30,613

Liabilties

Dus to agancles $ (46,547) $ 2,172,429 § 2,095,269 $ 30,613
Continuing Education

Assets

Equity In pooled cash and investments $ 1,277,894 § 4,323,797 $ 5,681,364 $ (79,873)

Liapl(ities

Due to agencies $ 1,277,894 § 4,323,797 § 5681364 § (78.673)
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Schedule ¥

Stest 14
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED
Year ended June 30, 2005
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Additions Deductions June 30, 2005
Special Assessments
Assets
F£qulty in pooled cash and investmenls $ 120,153 § 76,687 § 31,075 §$ 165,765
Llablitties
Due lo agencies
Budington Estates $ 12,780 $ 830 § - § 13,610
Burlington Land 9,211 B71 - 9,882
Cedacrest 528 35,568 - 36,096
Kings Granl Il 8,153 1,299 - 9,452
O'Neal Place 7.668 563 - 8,231
Robin Wood 10,205 681 - 10,886
Seabrook 41,982 36,571 31,075 47,478
Woodland Eslales 9,240 468 - 9,708
Tansl Village 2,620 4 - 2,624
Bay Pines 17,766 az2 - 17,798
Total fiabilities $ 120,153 § 76,687 § 31,075 $ 165,765
Totats - All Agency Funds
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 44,526,860 $ 282,5156583 § 283,457,951 § 43,584,562
Ligblliies
Due to agencies § 44526860 § 2B2515653 § 283457951 $ 43,584,562
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINES, ASSESSMENTS AND SURCHARGES
JUNE 30, 2005

Court Fines gand Fees
Court fines and fees collected

Coun fines and fees ratalned by County

Courl Fines and fess Remitied 1o the Siate Treasurer

Court Assesgments
Court assessmaernits collected

Coun Assessments Remitiad to the State Treasurer

Court Surcharges
Court surchages collecled

Court Surcharges Aemitted to the Siate Treasurer

Victims Services
Coud assassmeants allocated to Viclim Services
Coun surcharges allocated to Victim Services
Town of Hifton Head allocation
County genaral fund allocation

Funds aliocated to Victim Services
Victim Sarvices expenditures

Funds used

Funds camied forward

Funds Avallable far Carrylorward
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$ 2,052,402
{968,029)

$ 1,084373
$ 1,127,634
$ 1127834
3 26,125
$ 26,125
$ 112,438
37,718

45,377

101,310

296,840
(236,345)

60,495
22,928

$ 83,423



- —3

the fiscal year. We sincerely appreciate the efforts of other department heads and their employees who
contributed to this report.

Additionally, we would like to express our appreciation to the County Administrator and to County Council
for their continued support and understanding of the benefits of professional financial operations and
reporting.

Respectfully submitted,

o e

Thomas A. Henrikson, CPA
Controller
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended June 30, 2005

Federal
CFDA
Number
Direct Federal Grants:
US Department of Transportation
Federal Aviation Administration
Airport Improvement Program
Hilton Head Airport - TSA 20.106
US Department of Justice
Law Enforcement Block Grants
2004-LB-BX-0709 16.592
Federal Pass - Through Grants:
Federal Emergency Managemaent Agency
Passed through Office of the SC Adjutant General
EMA-2003-GR-5349 83.564
EMA-2004-GR-5006 97.067
5EMPGO1 97.067
4CCOo1 94.004
HMESC 3042110 20.703
HMESC 4042120 20.703
US Department of Agriculture
Passed through SC Department of Social Services
Summer Food Services for Children (G-12-35-4541) 10.559
Summer Food Services for Children {G-12-354541) 10.559
US Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through SC Health and Human Services Finance Commission
Collaborator Coordinator (#A40545A) 93.778

Passed through SC Department of Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Services
Consolidated Confract BEA-MOA-4

Passed through SC Department of Transportation
Lowcountry Regional Transportation Authority
MT-41359-06

Passed through SC Department of Health and
Environmental Control
State aid to mapping

Homeland Security Grants Administration
Passed through SC Law Enforcement Division
4LETP12
4SHSP40

93.959

20.509

11.419

97.004
97.004

Federal
Award
Expended

171,894

46,311

23,401
60,852
37,645
17,951

5,319
13,500

99,444
137,897

101,912

370,232

20,276

7,000

57,985
347,608

Note - The accompanying Schedule of Expsenditures of Federal Awards is presented on the modified accural basis of accounting.
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H ] The Professional Building
340 Main Street, P.O. Box 429

Accountants and Business Advisors Greenwood. SC 29648'0j29 )

Phone 864.229.4951
Fax 864.229.7822

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Beaufort County Council
Beaufort County
Beaufort, South Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the County of Beaufort as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2005, and have issued our report thereon dated January 23, 2006. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County of Beaufort’s internal
control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal contro! that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the mtemnal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud,
in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited, may occur and not
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions.

We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation
that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County of Beaufort’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

- 127 -
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This report is intended for the information and use of the Beaufort County Council and
management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified
parties.

January 23, 2006 ELiens® o, LLL
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The Professional Building
340 Main Street. P.O. Box 429

Accountants and Business Advisors Greenwood, SC 29648-0429

Phone 864.229.4951
Fax B64.229.7822

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Beaufort County Council
Beaufort County
Beaufort, South Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the County of Beaufort with the types of compliance
requirements described in the United States Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2005. County of Beaufort’s major federal programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor’s
Result section of the accompanying schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of the County of Beaufort’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the County of Beaufort’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States; and OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards
and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the County of Beaufort’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the County of
Beaufort’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County of Beaufort complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2005.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County of Beaufort is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County of
Beaufort’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major
federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control
over compliance and its operation that we considered to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information and use of the Beaufort County Council and
management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified
parties.

January 23, 2006 éu_as:tﬁ.’«' Toweesz, , L
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the year ended June 30, 2005

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1

The auditors’ report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of Beaufort
County, South Carolina.

No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Beaufort County, South
Carolina were disclosed during the audit.

No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in
the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award program for Beaufort County,
South Carolina expresses an unqualified opinion.

No audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for Beaufort County, South
Carolina are reported.

The programs tested as major programs were:

US Department of Justice

Local Law Enforcement Block Grants 16.592
US Homeland Security Administration

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.004

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.
Beaufort County, South Carolina qualified as a low risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM

AUDIT
None
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NONE

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the year ended June 30, 2005
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Fiscal

Year

1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
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Schedule 1

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND REVENUES BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Intergoy-
Licenses emmaental Charges for Fines and Miscellaneous

Taxes and Permits Revenues Services Forefletures Interast Revenues Total
23,674,555 1,028,558 $ 4,185,477 $ 5,270,847 $ 541675 § 809,215 § 309,471 35,819,798
19,737,768 1,178,302 4,416,859 5,659,204 552,419 722,983 271,197 32,538,731
20,184,982 1,289,504 4,646,311 6,299,756 698,075 853,791 149,590 34,122,009
23,506,862 1,681,439 4,899,767 6,889,282 608,774 709,704 218,458 38,514,286
28,336,892 1,862,577 5,701,576 7,625,056 858,908 819,756 277,479 45,482,244
29,198,052 1,882,455 5,856,427 8,003,788 880,995 666,944 136,693 46,625,354
29,913,377 2,521,362 6,173,477 7,832,020 962,131 279,434 169,794 47,851,595
35,602,184 2,456,875 6,068,270 8,557,847 647,030 170,852 215,805 53,718,863
39,902,961 2,618,619 6,018,623 9,795,154 1,023,973 113,045 238,122 59,710,497
47,419,184 3,393,994 6,073,748 12,179,930 882,229 64,028 311,610 70,324,723

™ The Solid Waste disposal function was reclassified into a speclal revenue fund category and a separate millage established.



Schedule 2
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SCUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Cultural

Fiscal General Public Public Public Public and
Year Govemment Safety Works Health Welfare Recreational Total
1996 $ 9,876,274 § 13,424,512 § 6,417,854 $ 1,288,311 § 538,114 § 1,233,816 $ 32,778,881
1997 9,827,019 14,520,222 2,382,008 1,344,586 538,805 1,603,256 30,215,986
1998 9,859,882 15,979,668 2,388,902 1,424,693 539,089 1,534,057 31,826,301
1999 11,337,608 17,233,265 2,731,306 1,630,002 572,212 1,735,328 35,239,722
2000 12,441,100 20,264,680 2,713,618 1,730,192 614,008 1,951,688 39,715,286
2001 13,815,865 20,845,372 2,880,362 1,914 512 631,184 2,102,187 42,289,482
2002 16,556,948 23,292,581 3,852,510 2,063,688 737,956 2,384,426 48,888,109
2003 18,045,305 25,137,795 3,493,180 2,043,378 732,214 2,717,685 52,168,557
| 2004 14,573,990 26,905,522 7,313,102 2,168,726 709,052 3,148,082 54,818,474
2005 15,616,654 29,301,879 7,897,503 2,172,343 717,165 6,702,500 @ 62,408,044

fad
i
" The Solid Waste disposal function was reclasslfied into a specail revnue fund category.

@ The Parks and Lelsure Services programs were reclassified In the general fund category.



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Total

Current Percent Delinquent Collections
Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Tax As Percent
Year Lewy " Collections Collected Collections of Levy
1996 $ 28,451,686 $ 26,438,146 92.9% $ 2,136,843 100.4%
1997 28,921,947 27,026,961 93.5% 1,639,120 99.1%
1998 31,345,601 28,886,985 92.2% 1,991,148 98.5%
1989 34,853,858 32,481,388 93.2% 1,996,436 98.9%
2000 40,349,066 37,255,451 92.3% 3,566,048 101.1%
2001 41,934,211 39,267,259 93.6% 3,128,566 101.1%
2002 43,559,515 40,870,579 93.8% 2,337,525 99.2%
2003 47,656,212 45,147,129 94.7% 3,317,353 101.4%
2004 53,641,630 50,203,062 93.6% 4,251,126 101.5%
2005 63,554,010 60,416,187 95.1% 3,438,851 100.5%

™ Includes County operations and maintenance levy, purchase of real property program levy, solid waste and recycling program

levy, debt service levy, and capital Improvements program levy.

® Includes collections of penalties as established by state statues.
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) Rgassessment year.

Fiscal

Year

1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005 (1)

-

Real Property

Assessed Markat
Valus Value
350,797,714 $§ 6,375,596,450
369,142,611 6,591,832,340
387,874,256 7,182,856,592
593,682,975 12,368,395,312
615,986,525 12,927,605,644
621,274,881 12,058,025,117
708,384,471 14,171,048,525
712,511,246 14,219,019,560
740,613,636 15,640,673,497

1,354,125,807 27,588,878,918

ol | 1

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCALYEARS

Personal Property

Schedule 4

$

Assessed Market
Value Valus
99,841,811 § 882,050,095
114,501,937 1,022,339,170
139,828,470 1,331,709,238
125,016,939 1,180,637,990
137,827,004 1,344,653,688
174,822,319 1,664,973,019
148,572,971 1,097,274,167
170,011,132 1,485,773,836
184,242,051 1,897,765,656
184,286,675 1,911,616,663
1 .| 1 A

Total

Assessed Market
Vaiue Value
459,639,525 § 7,257,646,545
483,644,598 7,614,171,510
527,703,726 8,514,565,830
718,699,964 13,559,033,302
753,813,529 14,272,259,342
796,097,230 13,723,998,136
856,957,442 15,268,320,692
882,522,438 15,704,793,396
924,855,697 17,547,439,153

1,538,412,482 29,500,595,581
i | 1 ¥ |
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Schedule 5
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
PROPERTY TAX MILLAGES-ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2008
County-Wide Levies
County-Operations 51.1 39.6 38.6 326 36.3 36.0 352 40.1 429 32.7
County-Dabt Service 9.9 9.7 9.4 6.8 1.2 7.2 7.2 e i 5.4
County-Capital Improvement Program 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.2 - - - - - -
County-Solld Waste/Recycling - 9.7 9.6 6.2 6.7 6.9 6.2 4.7 5.8 4.5
County-Purchase of Real Property Program - - 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 15
School-Operations 97.9 8994 97.5 75.7 86.7 96.7 97.6 107.0 108.2 75.2
School-Debt Service 205 27.4 306 238 21.7 231 22.2 222 222 19.0
Indigent Health Care 25 2.3 24 1.8 1.9 20 2.0 2.0 20 1.5
Continuing Education 2.0 1.9 2.0 1.5 4.2 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.0
Mupicipal Levies
City of Beaufon 93.0 91.0 91.0 68.9 68.9 68.4 68.4 73.4 73.4 55.8
Town of Port Royal 7.0 99.5 99.5 85.0 85.0 85.0 85.0 85.0 85.0 85.0
Town of Bluffton 40.0 67.0 67.0 48.0 49.0 49.0 48.0 49.0 49.0 420
Town of Hilton Head 41.3 41.3 413 30.5 30.5 30.5 31.0 31.0 31.0 22.3
Town of Yemasses 55.0 65.0 65.0 65.0 65.0 68.0 68.0 68.0 68.0 68.0
Fire Levies
Burton Flre-Operations 40.0 44.6 44.6 42.1 46.3 48,5 49.5 57.9 61.9 49.6
Burton Fire-Debt Service 4.0 5.9 5.9 6.5 6.6 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 4.6
Bluffton Fire-Operation 21.8 23.0 23.0 20.1 215 20.5 215 22.5 25.5 17.9
Bluffton Fire-Debt Service 1.0 05 0.5 0.3 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7
Dautfuskle Island Fire-Operations 25.9 32.2 32.2 34.3 36.8 40.5 405 42.5 47.5 279
Daufuskie Island Fire-Debt Service - - 4.0 4.4 4.9 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 26
Lady’s Island/St. Helena-Operations 292 30.5 30.5 222 248 25.7 26.7 31.9 35.1 271
Lady’s Island/St. Helena-Debt Service 2.4 22 2.2 35 3.0 2.1 2.1 2.1 3.5 14
Sheldon Fire-Operations 324 324 324 258 26.8 30.8 32.6 37.0 39.9 29.6

Sheldon Flre-Debt Services 3.3 4.6 4.6 33 3.3 26 26 26 26 2.3



Schedule 6
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Ratio of Net
Fiscal Estimated Assessed Gross County Less Debt Net County Bonded Debt to Net Bonded
Year Population Value Bonded Debt Service Funds Bonded Debt Assessed Valus Debt per Capita
1896 3 100,226 3 459,639,525 § 31,075,000 % 681,331 § 30,393,669 6.6% § 303.25
1997 102,732 483,644,598 32,105,000 35,862 32,069,138 6.6% 312.18
1898 105,300 527,703,726 27,790,000 191,684 27,598,318 5.3% 262.09
1899 107,832 718,699,964 33,725,000 530,266 33,194,734 4.6% 307.55
2000 110,630 753,813,529 40,325,000 1,264,403 30,060,597 5.2% 353.07
2001 120,937 796,087,230 56,685,000 1,625,423 55,059,577 6.9% 45527
2002 123,960 856,957 442 80,780,000 1,251,544 79,538,456 9.3% 641.65
2003 127,060 882,522,438 141,000,000 3,907,851 137,092,149 15.5% 1,078.96
i 2004 130,260 924,855,697 144,640,000 7,682,002 136,857,898 14.8% 1,110.39
2005 133,520 1,538,412,482 168,855,000 8,280,423 160,574,577 10.4% 1,272.13

=
M . . Bureau of the Census population for 1990 was 86,425
Assumed rate of growth since 1990 at 2.5% per year.

U.S. Bureau of the Census population for 2000 was 120,937.
Assumed rate of growth since 2000 at 2.5% per year.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CARCLINA
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

JUNE 30, 2005

Assessed Value - 2004 Tax Year (Fiscal Year 2005)

Constitutional Debt Limit

Outstanding Subject to Debt Limit "

Legal Debt Limit Remaining Without a Referendum

) Total outstanding debt $ 106,175,000
Less debt issued under referendum (38,010,588)
Less debt Issued paid by other sources (4,735,294)
Total outstanding debt subject to debt limit $ 63,429,118
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$ 1,538,412,482

x 8%
123,072,999

63,429,118

$

58,643,881



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMPUTATION OF OVERLAPPING GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT

Beaufort County School District

City of Beaufort

Town of Hilion Head

Town of Port Royal

Broad Creek Public Service District
South Beach Public Service District
Frpp Isiand Public Service District
Hilton Head No. 1 Public Service District
Bluffton Fire District

Burton Fire District

Daufusklie Island Fire Dlstrict

Lady's Island/St. Helena lsland Fire District
Sheldon Flire District

Total

JUNE 30, 2005

Gross
Debt Outstanding

$ 238,835,000
85,000.00
74,705,000
0
6,400,000
490,000
512,570
530,000
2,207,472
2,403,473
210,256
1,108,108
280,581

$ 327,767,460
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Percentage
Applicable
to Beaufort

County

100%
100%
100%
100%
1Wﬂ
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Scheduie 8

Amount
Applicable to

Beaufort County

$ 238,835,000
85,000.00
74,705,000
0-
6,400,000
480,000
512,570
530,000
2,207,472
2,403,473
210,256
1,108,108
280,581

_— e

$ 327767460




2004

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND BALANCE COMPARED TO ANNUAL EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Unreserved
Fund Balance

$ 9,077,172
9,591,930
4,728,472
7,247,285
7,043,324
9,030,512
9,849,453
5,658,492
2,767,765
4,437,859

10,820,609

- 141+

Emnures

$

General Fund
Annual

29,748,736
32,778,881
30,215,986
31,826,301
35,239,722
39,715,286
42,289,482
48,888,109
52,169,557
58,645,690
62,408,044

Schedule 9

Balancs as %

of Expenditures

30.5%
29.3%
15.6%
22.8%
20.0%
22.7%
23.3%
11.6%
5.3%

7.5%

17.3%



Flscal Year

1986
1897
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005

Schedule10
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT
TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES-LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Ratio of Debt

Service to

Debt General Total General

Sarvice Expenditures dituras
$ 6,853,154 $ 32,778,881 20.9%
7,061,653 30,215,986 23.4%
5,602,965 31,826,301 17.6%
4,640,938 35,239,722 13.2%
4,996,926 39,715,286 12.6%
5675489 @ 42,289,482 13.4%
7,593,739 @ 48,888,109 15.5%
9,376,293 52,169,557 18.0%
10,949,905 “ 58,645,690 18.7%
12,385,535 62,408,044 19.8%

" Excludes $5,350,000 paid to redeem the 1989 General Obligation bonds, funded by refunding bonds.

@ Excludes $10,000,000 paid to redeem a bond anticipation note issued May 2000, and paid April 2001.

® Excludes $10,950,000 paid to redeem the 1993 General Obligation bonds, funded by the 2002 General Obligation bonds and
$12,000,000 paid to redeem a bond anticipation note issued July 2001, and paid April 2002.

4 Excludes $15,000,000 paid to redeem a bond anticipation note issued April 2002, and paid January 2003.
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Construction

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
CONSTRUCTION COSTS AND BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Schedule 11

The following table shows the approximate number of building permits Issued in the County and the approximate cost of construction
represented by those pemmits in each of the last ten years. New construction has, of course, been affected by general economic
conditions in the Unlted States affecting real estate activity.

Year Ended
December 31

1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004

Source: County Building Inspector

Residential
Number of Construction

Permits Costs

1,235 $ 185,060,607
1,834 196,355,130
1,838 209,982,501
2,266 265,296,940
2,415 315,321,027
2,330 337,907,402
2,054 292,779,724
2,312 361,418,522
2,416 291,472,103
2,286 381,422,592
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Commaerclal
Number of Construction
Permits Costs

i64 $ 23,236,851
37 19,830,691
51 37,571,530
59 77,936,180
55 39,593,452
56 39,855,141
56 45,309,121
39 59,819,298

108 75,206,835
93 68,381,756



Year Ended
December 31

1983
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
DEPOSITS OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS WITHIN THE COUNTY

Deposits

$

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Bank

612,765,000
686,898,000
830,556,000
817,957,000
878,116,000

1,043,844,000

1,243,704,000
1,832,106,000
1,983,000,000
2,064,496,000

Source: Federal Deposit Insurance Company 1893-present

- 144 -

Savings
& Loan

Deposits

Not Available
277,828,000
254,051,000
249,869,000
260,935,000
282,520,000
285,769,000

Not Avallable

Not Avallable

Not Avallable

Schedule 12

Total

Depaosits

$ 612,765,000

964,827,000
1,084,607,000
1,067,826,000
1,139,051,000
1,326,364,000
1,529,473,000
1,832,106,000
1,983,000,000
2,064,496,000
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Taxpaver

South Carolina Electric & Gas
Mariott Ownership Resort
Palmetto Electric

Hargray Telephone Company
Greenwood Development Corp
Waestin Hilton Head Limited
Smith Lynn Press

Dunes Motel Assocates

M & M Multl Services

Renwar Industries

Source: Beaufort County Treasurer

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS
JUNE 30, 2005

2003
Taxes Paid

$ 2,793,723
2,756,442
1,660,274
1,225,278

911,913
791,571
661,038
857,184
524,455
516,186

=45 =

Percentage
of total

_Assessed Value

1.26%
1.53%
T9%
57%
A2%
37%
31%
.3wﬂ
.25%
.25%

Schedule 13



Schedule 14
Sheet 1
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL FACTS
AND OTHER DEMOGRAPRHIC DATA
JUNE 30, 2005

GENERAL DESCRIPTION

Beaufort County was created by Legislative Act In 1785. The County provides a full range of services to Its citizenry, Including but
not limited to, general administration, law enforcement, a Courts systems, a detention center, emergency medical services,
emergency preparedness, animal control, mosquito control, maintenance of public buildings, a full range of public works (including
roads and bridges and varlous recreational docks, plers, and boat landings), solid waste disposal, planning and development
boards, libranes, and various social and publlc health services.

FORM OF GOVERNMENT
The County operates under the Councli-Administrator form of government, In accordance with Title 4, Chapter 9 of the Code of
Laws of South Carolina, 1976 (as amended) (the *Home Rule Act"). The County Councll consists of eleven (11) members who
are elected to staggered terms from single member districts for four year terms bsginning on January 1 following the general
etaction.

OTHER SERVICES
Fire protection is provided by organized fire districts, public service districts, voluntary fire fighting units, and municipal fire
departments. Water and sewer services are provided by the Beaufort-Jasper Water and Sewer Authority, municipalities, and
public service distrcts within the County. County govemment does not control these separate bodies, but does have an
obligation, as the central govemning body within the County, to insure continuous service 1o its citizenry.

Refuse collection is franchised to private contractors. Household garbage transfer stations are provided at varlous locations
throughout the County.

LOCATION ANO CLIMATE
Beaufort County Is located In the southeastern comer of the State of South Carolina, known as the *Lowcountry®. With a land
area of 637 square miles, it Is bordered to the south and east by the Atlantic Ocean, to the west by Jasper County, and to the
north by Hampton and Colleton Countles. Beaufort County stretches nearly 30 miles along the Atlantic Ocean and Includes 64
major Islands and hundreds of small Islands. Included In Beaufort County is the resort Island of Hilton Head, connected to the
malnland by bridge, which is the largest sea Islands between New Jersey and Florida, comprising approximately 42 square
miles. The topography of the reglon Is relatively flat with winding inlets and rivers and large areas of marshiand. The County has

a subtroplcal climate with average 24-hour temperatures ranging from 46.1° F in January to 89.9° F in July.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MISCELLANEQUS STATISTICAL FACTS
AND OTHER DEMOGRAPHIC DATA

JUNE 30, 2005

SALARIES AND SURETY BONDS OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

County Councll
Waeston Newton, Chairman

W.R. Von Haren, Vice Chalrman
Frank Brafman
Mark D. Generales
Herbert N. Glaze
Maragret E. Griffin
Starletta Hairston
Willtam H. Ladson
Peter Lamb
Wililam L. McBride
Richard Stewart
Clerk of Court
Elizabeth Smith
Treasurer
Joy Logan
Probate Court Judge
Frank Simon
Auditor
Sharon P. Bunis
Sheriff
P.J. Tanner
Caroner
Curt Copeland
Magistrates
Rita A. Simmons, Hilion Head tsland (Chlef Magistrate)
Andrew Dudley, Beaufort
Charles L. Smith, Bluffton
Josaph McDomick, Jr., St. Helena
Joseph N. Kline, Sheldon
Darlene Smith, at Large
Master-in-Equity
Thomas Kemmerin, Jr.
County Administrator
Gary Kublc

- 147 -

Annual Salary

$ 11,825
9,030
9,030
9,030
9,030
9,030
9,030
9,030
9,030
9,030
9,030

58,848
44 283
73,797
43,680
72,416
53,435
57,683
40,955
54,142
55,078
24,821
54,142

102,182

127,500

Schedule 14
Sheet 2

Amount

of Bond

$ 5,000

2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000

50,000
100,000
15,000
4,000
10,000
10,000
75,000
50,000
20,000
10,000
10,000
20,000

50,000

35,000
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Sheet 3
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL FACTS
AND OTHER DEMOGRAPHIC DATA
JUNE 30, 2005
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE
Type of Coverage and Policy Policy Period Liabllity Annual
Name of Company Number From To Detalls of Coverage Limis Premium
Property F130070000 3/24/05 3/24/06 Building, Contents Scheduled $131,839
IRF* Boiler & Machinery
Fire, Lighting, EC, VAMM
Replacement Cost Valuation $50 Deductible on Vandalism
EDP D130070000 3/24/05 3/24/08 Electronic data processing equip Schedule $8,793
IRF* Hardware and Software of Values
Radio Equip. M130070000C 3/24/05 3/24/06 Inland Marine Form Schedule $14,427
IRF* Radlo Equipment of Values
Boat/Motors M130070000D 3/24/05 3/24/06 inland Marine Poficy Schedule $2,765
IRF* Boats and Motors of Values
Heavy Equipment 1160273 3/24/05 3/24/06 Inland Marine Pollcy Schedule $37,385
IRF* Heavy Equipment of Values
General Liability T130070000 1/1/05 1/1/06 Bodily Injury/Property Damage $1,000,000 $267,175
(Tort) Personal Injury Llability
IRF" Deductlble: $250 p/occurrence
Commerclal L130070000 3/24/05 3/24/08 Bl Labllity $600,000 CSL $320,138
(Vehicle Fleet) PD llabliity {(p/occurrence)
IRF* Baslc Econ. Loss (p/person)

Uninsured Motorist

*IRF Is Insurance Reserve Fund of State Budgef & Control, State Division of General Services
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MISCELLANEQUS STATISTICAL FACTS
AND OTHER DEMOGRAPHIC DATA
JUNE 30, 2005
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE (Cont'd)
Type of Coverage and Policy Policy Pericd Uabllity
Name of Company Number From To Detalls of Coverage Limits
Professional P 130075500 4/9/05 4/9/06 Hospital Medical Prof. Liab. $100,000/
Liabifity Med. Prof.-EMS $500,000
Insurance P130071799 10/1/04 10/1/05 Med. Prof. Liab. -Detention Ctr.
Reserve P130070199 10/1/04 10/1/05 Med. Prof. Liab. -Alcohol & Drug Abuse
Fund P130070899A 10/1/04 10/1/05 Med. Prof. Liab. -DSN
Worker's WC Trust 1/1/05 11/06 Worker's Compensation Liabllity SC Statutory
Compensation Employer's Liability $1,000,000
SC Countles
Aircraft AV4400505 2/8/05 2/8/06 Aviation Llabllity 250/500/250,000
Hope Aviation & Scheduled Property, Damage (helicopter only)
Passenger, Liability and Med. Expenses Coverage
Chemical AA20603 8/11/04 8/11/05 Aerial Application Liabllity
Liability Limlts: $100,000/$500,000
Old Republic
Blanket Bond CPBJ0O1363815  7/10/05 7/10/06 Employee Dishonesty $35,000
Insurance Faithful Performance $5,000
Company of

Schedule 14
Sheset 4

Annual
Premium

$5,001

$428
$204
$602

$1,979,568

$37,500

$4,960

$4,170
(3, yr. Prem.)
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL FACTS
AND OTHER DEMOGRAPHIC DATA

JUNE 30, 2005
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE (Cont'd)
Type of Coverage and Policy Policy Period Liability
Name of Company Number From To Detasils of Coverage Limits

Bond Varies Elected/Appointed Officlals *

Coverage: $2,000 to $100,000

Relative to Office
Group Life Employss 10/1/82 Present Employees/Dependents $ 4,000/1,000
Companion Benefit Plan
Group Health Benefit Plan 1/1/05 Present Employees/Dependents Schedule
Blue Cross Major Medical
and Blue Shield {Max. $100,000 per member)
Dental 0485519 1/1/05 Present Employse and Dependents Schedule
Blue Cross ($500/member/year)
and Blue Shleld

] | | A 1 A A J | -
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Annual
Premium

Varies
wittcovered
Varies
w/#covered
Varies

w/#coverad

Varies
w/#covered
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Sheet 6
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL FACTS
AND OTHER DEMOGRAPHIC DATA
JUNE 30, 2005

ECONOMY

The County is one of the leaders In the Stale In the tourist and recreation industries. Hiliton Head Island, Fripp Island and
Hunting Island State Park are all located in the County and are examples of the economic boom In the lelsure and resort
industries. In 2002, the tourism Industry on Hilton Head Island generated approximately 27,000 jobs and the Town of Hiiton
Head received accommodations tax revenue of approximately $2,600,000..

Several major military Installations are located In the County: the Parris Island Marine Corps Recruit Depot, the U.S. Marine
Corps Alr Statlon, and the U. S. Naval Hospital at Beauforl. The substantlal presence of United States military services In the
County also directly affects civillan employment as the various installations employ approximately1,250 civillans. The payroll for
military and clvillan employees was $355 milllon In 2002. Currently there are no plans to close or reduce the number of
employees at these bases. As a resull of base closures and realignments nationally, the military presence in the County Is
actually increasing. Two new Navy Squadrons are being added to the Marine Corps Air Station.

The South Carolina Department of Agriculture reports that the 1997 (last year avallable) preliminary cash value of crops and
tivestock produced In the County amounted to $12,556,000 and that the preliminary cash value of commercial fishing in the
County amounted to $8,964,997. In addition, the 1984 (last year avallable) preliminary figures for delivered value of forest
products produced In the County amounted to $7,774,000, according to the Department of Forestry of Clemson University.

RETAIL SALES

The State Imposes a 5% sale tax on all retail sales. Additlonally, where counties have approved It on a local-option basls, the
State Imposes an additional 1% sales tax on all retail sales. Beaufort County has not approved the 1% local-option sales tax.
The following table shows the level of retail sales over the last five years for businesses located in the County.

Total Retail Increase Over
Year Sales Previous Year
2000 $ 2,905,307,405 $ 175,100,859
2001 2,917,924,095 12,616,600
2002 2,994,734,542 76,810,447
2003 3,158,157,797 163,423,255
2004 3,414,415,525 256,257,728

Source: South Carolina Tax Commission
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL FACTS

AND OTHER DEMOGRAPHIC DATA

JUNE 30, 2005
UNEMPLOYMENT RATE
CPS LABOR FORCE ESTIMATES
(BY PLACE OF RESIDENCE)
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Civilian Labor Force 51,820 54,070 53,970 55,580 58,122
Employment 50,630 52,950 52,570 54,030 56,375
Unemployment 1,190 1,120 1,400 1,550 1,747
9% of Labor Force 2.3% 2.1% 2.6% 2.8% 3.0%

Schedule 14
Sheet 7

Workers Involved in labor disputes are included among the employed. Total employment also includes agricultural workers, proprietors,
self-employed persons, workers in private households, and unpald famlly workers.

Source: South Carolina Employment Security Commission, Labor Market and Information Dlvislon

LABOR FORCE

The Labor force of Beaufort County has experienced rapid growth in the trade and construction areas. The compaosition of the
clvilian labor force in the County, based on place-of-work basis, for the last 5 years Is as follows:

1999 2000 2001 2002 " 2003 "
Manufacturing 1,170 1,100 1,140 913 958
Construction 4,940 5,620 6,080 5,843 6,396
Transportation & Public Utllitles 1,990 1,850 1,880 1,442 1,003
Wholesale and Retall Trade 15,040 16,020 16,910 19,392 19,241
Finance, Insurance and Aeal Estate 3,850 3,950 4,870 3,287 3,358
Service 17,080 17,770 18,940 20,563 16,445
Government 7,990 8,800 9,330 3,163 @ 8,660
Totals 52,060 55,110 59,160 54,603 56,062

(1) Complled using North American Industry Classlfication Systemn (NAIC) rather than SIC Division

(2) Consldered Public Administration under the NAIC System

Source: South Carolina Employment Security Commission, Labor Market and Information Divislon
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
MISCELLANEQUS STATISTICAL FACTS
AND OTHER DEMOGRAPHIC DATA
JUNE 30, 2005

EDUCATION

The Beaufort County School District Is coextensive with the County. The School District, established by Stata legislation, provides
certaln services with funds from taxes levied and collected for It by the County. The budget for the school district Is subject to
approval by the County Council. The School District currently operates 16 elementary schools, 6 middle schools, 3 senior high
schools, and 1 school for exceptional children.

Pubiic school enrollment in the County for the last 5 years {for which information is available) is shown in the following table:

Pre-K2 Elementary  High School Speclal

Year Kindergarten  Grades 1-8 Grades 9-12  Education Total
2000-01 1,643 10,102 4,435 625 16,753
2001-02 1,719 10,354 4,738 586 17,397
2002-03 1,746 10,398 4,995 618 17,757
2003-04 1,914 10,599 4,761 637 17,911
2004-05 1,978 10,815 5,135 573 18,501

Source: Beaufort County School District

There are also two major private schools located in the County: the Beaufort Academy, with a present enroliment of approximately
450 students in grades K4 through 12; and the Hilton Head Preparatory School, with a present enroliment of approximately 400
students in grades K5 through 12.

There are two tnstitutions of higher education located in Beaufort County: the Technical College of the Lowcountry, as well as, the
University of South Carolina at Beaufort, which has a branch office located on Hilton Head Island. USC at Beaufort is one of the
{astest growing regional campus of the Unliversity system, with a fall 2002 enrollment of 986 full-time students.

TRANSPORTATION

The County Is served by U. S. Highways Nos. 21 and 278 and by South Carolina Highways Nos. 116, 170, 281 , and 802.
Interstate 95 , a major Interstate from Boston to Miaml runs approximately two miles west of the County and has helped the tourist
Industry significantly. The County is served by approximately 32 motor freight camiers. Rail facilitles are provided in the County by
the CSX Rallroad and AMTRAK provides passenger service.

There are two alrporis located in the County: the Beaufort County Alrport, located on Lady's Island, which Is available for general
aviatlon services only; and the Hilton Head Island Airport, which provides service by commerclal cariers and complements the
services offered by the Savannah Intemational Alrport.
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Beaufort County was the fastest-growing County among 46 counties in the State of South Carolina, with a 40% Increase in
population from 86,425 in 1990 to 120,937 In 2000. According to the U.S. Bureau of the Census, there has been a 110.8%
increase In the population for the Town of Hilton Head and a 10.9% In the population for the City of Beaufort from the period

1880 to 1990.

The following table shows population projection informatlon for the County and the State:

Yoar

Beaufort Co.
Population

86,425
94,800
120,937
133,000
145,000

Percent Increase
Prior Census

Source: U. S. Bureau of the Census; U.S. Dept of Commerce

PER CAPITA INCOME

27.8%

9.9%
39.9%
10.0%
20.0%

Stale
Population

3,487,714
3,684,000
3,914,000
4,121,000
4,327,000

Beaufort County presently ranks first among the 46 counties of the State in per capita income. The per capita income In the

County and the State for each of the last 5 years for which information Is available Is shown below.

Year

1999
2000
2001
2002
2003

County
Per Capita

Income

$ 31,307

32,112
34,029
34,935
34,814

State
Per Caplta

Income

$ 22958

24,273
24,886
25,502
26,144

Source: Divislon of Research and Statistical Services of the State Budgst and Control Board of South Carolina
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PROPERTY TAXATION AND ASSESSMENT

Article X, Section 1 of the Stale constitution, requires equal and uniform assessments of property throughout the State for the following
classes of property and at the following ratios of fair market value of such property.

(1) Real and personal property owned by or leased to manufacture, utilities and mining operations, and used In the conduct of such
business — 10.5% of falr market value;

(2) Real and personal property owned by or leased to companles primarlly engaged In transportation for hire of persons of property and
used In the conduct of such business - 9.5% of falr market value;

(3) Legal residence and not more than five contiguous acres - 4% of falr market value (if the property owner makes proper application
and quallfies);

(4) Agricultural real property used for such purposes owned by individuals and ceriain corporations - 4% of use value {if the property
owner makes property application and qualifies);

(5) Agricultural property and timberlands belonging to corporations having more than 10 shareholders - 6% of use value (if property
owner makes proper application and qualifies);

(6) All other property - 6% of fair market vaiue;

(7) Business Inventories - 6% of fair market value (as of 1988, there Is avallable an exemption from taxation of property In this category,
hence this Item is no longer significant);

(8) All farm machinery and equipment except motor vehicles licensed for use on the highways - 5% of fair market value; and
(9) All other personal property - 10.5% of falr market value.

The South Carolina Tax Commission has been charged with the responsibllity of taking steps necessary to ensure equalization of
assessments statewide in order to ensure that all property Is assessed uniformly and equitably throughout the State, and may require
reassessment of any part or all of the property within the County. Upon complstion of a reassessment or equalization program, the total
ad valorem tax for any County or other political subdlvision of the State may not exceed the total ad valorem tax of such County or other
political subdivision for the year immediately prior to completion of such program by more than a state determined CPi percentage, If the
Increase In total taxes was caused by such reassessment or equallzation program. This limitation, however, does not prohiblt an
Increase in total ad valorem taxes as a result of assessments added for property or improvement not previously taxed, for new
construction, or for renovation of existing structures taking placa during the reassessment period, nor does it prohibit any County or
another political subdivision from increasing the millage on all taxable property for the purpose of obtalning additional monies for
increased or new services or for Increased costs of existing services. The latest reassessment was completed in 1998 and was
implemented in the 1998 tax year.

The County Assessor appraises and assesses all of the real property and moblle homes located within the County and cerlifies the
results to the County Auditor. The County Auditor appralses and assesses all motor vehicles, marine equipment, business personal
property and alrplanes. The South Carolina Tax Commisslon fumishes guldes for use by the County In the assessment of automoblles,
automotive equipment, and certain other classes of property and directly assesses the real and personal property of public utilities,
manufacturers and business equipment.

Each year the Tax Commission certifies its assessments to the County Auditor who prepares assessment summaries from the raspective
certifications, determines the appropriate millage levies, prepare tax bills and then In Saptember chargas the County Treasurer with the
collection. South Carolina has no statewide property tax.

TAX COLLECTION PROCEDURE

In the County, taxes are collected from a single tax bill, which must be paid In full by the Indlvidual taxpayer. Taxes are collected on a
calendar year basis. Raal and personal taxes in the County are payable on or before January 15 of each year with the exception of taxes
on motor vehicles. All personal property taxes on motor vehicles are due on or before the last day of the month in which the license tag
for the motor vehicle expires. |If real property taxes are not paid on or before January 16, a penalty of 3% Is added; if not pald by
February 2, an additional penalty of 7% is added; if not paid by March 15, an additional penaity of 5% added and taxes go Into execution.
Unpald taxes, both real and personal, constitute a first lien agalnst the property. The County Treasurer is empowered to seize and sell
so much of the defaulting taxpayer's estate -real and personal as may be sufficient to satisfy the taxes.
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OTHER MISCELLANEOUS FACTS
Miles of Road
Paved (Malntained)
Unimproved

LAW ENFORCEMENT
Sheriff's Department
Administrative personnel
Investigators
Chvil Deputies
Patrol Deputies

Detention Center:
Correctional officers
Administrative personnel

EMPLOYEES
As of June 30, 2005
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14

10
163

Total 209

o &

Total 72

1,061 full time, 38 part-time





